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Course summary

Accounting – Mapping of actions and events into 
financial statements

(Economic) Principles governing the accounting 
mapping: Objectivity, conservatism, revenue recognition, 
and matching 

But the mapping is incomplete and asymmetric 
(for good reasons, of course)
Hence, firms supplement financial information with 
disclosures in 

MD&A section
Footnotes
Management forecasts 
Q&A at conference calls
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Financial statements and basic bookkeeping
Bookkeeping:  Necessary evil! 
Ability to interpret financial statement 
information is essential for decision 
making

Balance sheet
What are the assets and liabilities when buying 
another firm?  
Tangible, intangible, on- and off-balance sheet
What is the investment being made in a project, 
department, firm, or a target?  What appears on 
paper is just a starting point.  
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Financial statements and basic bookkeeping
Income statement

Assessing operating performance
Is it sustainable?  Is it believable?  Is the revenue 
recognized optimistically? Conservatively?  

Cash flow statement
Is the wedge between income and operating cash 
flow worrisome? 
Projections: What are the cash needs going forward?  
For working capital and for fixed asset investments? 
Where will the financing come from? 
In an M&A context, valuation is on the basis of cash 
flows
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Revenue recognition
Revenues is the engine that drives a firm
Revenue growth signals where the firm is 
headed, so everyone focuses on it

Incentive to inflate it
Single biggest source of fraud and manipulation
High bang for the buck:  Every dollar of invented revenue 
increases pre-tax income by a dollar 
Enhances revenue growth and all of the operating 
efficiency ratios

Revenue recognition practices vary with industry, 
so get to know the business
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Inventories
Lower of cost of market
Determinant of COGS

Combined with revenues, profitability depends on 
COGS
Incentive to overstate inventory 

Overstatement increases income and improves the 
balance sheet
Reversal in the following period: Payback time!
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Depreciation
Accounting is quite mechanical! 
No cash flow effect of changing accounting
Why do we care?  

Depreciation cost is crucial from the standpoint of 
making investment decisions
An important component of total cost, so serves as 
one of the inputs into pricing and other decisions
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Where do we go from each 
topic from the course? 

Liabilities
Fixed obligations
Increases the risk of residual claimholders, 
shareholders
Present value calculations are needed to 
determine long-term liabilities 
On- and off-balance sheet liabilities

Pension liabilities
Enron, Freddie Mac and other spectacular cases 
where off-balance sheet liabilities from derivative 
positions have caused havoc
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Where do we go from 
here? 

Course focused almost entirely on 
analyzing a given set of actions and events
More interesting to think about 

How to create opportunities? How to choose 
from among alternative opportunities and 
action choices?  
How to finance the alternative action choices?  
Market them?  Operationalize them?  Organize 
them?  Incentivize employees to take desirable 
actions?  …………

Obviously, too interesting to be a part of this course!  
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Current Liabilities and 
Contingencies

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor S.P. Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 1, 2003

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

10
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



2

Agenda

Nature and reporting of current liabilities
Understand the nature and reporting 
requirements of contingencies
Illustrate the trade-off between reliability 
and relevance in accounting for 
contingencies
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Liabilities and Off Balance 
Sheet Financing

What is the definition of liabilities in GAAP?
Probable future sacrifices of resources
Little or no discretion to avoid the sacrifice
Transaction or event giving rise to the obligation 
has occurred

Classification on a continuum
On Balance sheet 
Off Balance sheet 

Motivation for off balance sheet financing?
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Examples of Liabilities and 
Off Balance Sheet Financing

Bonds, notes payable

Accrued wages, supplier finance

Warranty obligation

AAA receives $ from the sale of memberships for the next two 
years

Columbia pictures signs a binding contract with Cineplex Odeon 
to supply films within the next six months.

Online Corp. signs a contract promising to employ its president 
for the next five years for a salary of $1m per year.

Citibank extends a line of credit for one of its major corporate
clients.www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Examples of Liabilities and 
Off Balance Sheet Financing

ChevronTexaco Corp. signs a throughput contract with an oil pipeline 
company to ship at least 10,000 barrels of crude oil per month for the 
next three years.  ChevronTexaco promises to pay for the pipeline 
services even if it does not ship oil.

Alcoa of Australia (AofA) is party to a number of natural gas and 
electricity contracts that expire between 2002 and 2020. Under these 
take-or-pay contracts, AofA is obligated to pay for a minimum amount 
of natural gas or electricity even if these commodities are not required 
for operations. 

Boise Cascade and Georgia-Pacific start a joint venture to process 
pulp.  The joint venture uses the purchase commitments of Boise 
Cascade and Georgia-Pacific to obtain a loan for the facility.

Seagram ‘sells’ aging whiskey to its bank to obtain financing for its 
production process. After the aging process, Seagram arranges for 
others to purchase the whiskey and remits the proceeds to the bank.
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Warranty liabilities
Warranty liability

Seller provides a warranty for service and/or repairs for a 
specified period after sale
Sales price includes the warranty
Liability recognized at the time of sale
Estimated cost of providing the warranty is recognized as an 
expense 

Dr Cash or receivables (+A)
Dr Warranty expense (- Income statement or -RE)

Cr Sales revenue (+ Income statement or + RE)
Cr Warranty liability (+Liability)

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

15
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



7

Warranty liabilities: Problem 9-23

(See Problem 9-23 on page 522 of the course 
textbook: Stickney, Clyde P., and Roman L. Weil. 
Financial Accounting: An Introduction to Concepts, 
Methods, and Uses. 10th ed. Thomson 
South-Western, 2003. ISBN: 0324183518.)
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Contingencies

A Contingency is defined as 

“… an existing condition, situation or set of circumstances 
involving uncertainty as to the possible gain (hereinafter, a 
gain contingency) or a loss (hereinafter, a loss contingency) 
to an enterprise that ultimately will be resolved when one or 
more future events occur or fail to occur.”

Resolution of uncertainty
Gain contingency                         Loss contingency
Acquisition of asset                            Loss or impairment of asset
Reduction of liability                            Incurrence of liability
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Accounting guidelines on 
contingencies

The accounting treatment of a contingency depends on 
whether the contingency is:

Probable - the future event is likely to occur
Reasonably possible - the chance of occurrence of the 

future event (or events) is more than remote but less than 
likely

Remote - the chance of occurrence of the future event 
(or events) is slight

In addition, the amount of the gain or loss must be  
reasonably estimable.
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Loss Contingencies

Measurable Not Measurable
Probable Accrue                            Disclose in notes
Reasonably possible Disclose in notes            Disclose in notes
Remote None required, but note permitted

Accrual of loss contingency:

A    =                  L               +                E
Accrued liability              (Loss on Contingency)

Dr Loss on contingency (income statement) XX
Cr Accrued liability (balance sheet) XX

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

19
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



11

Gain contingencies

Measurable   Not Measurable
Probable  Disclose                   Disclose, but avoid

misleading inferences

Reasonably possible Disclose but avoid misleading inferences

Remote Disclosure is not recommended
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Disclosure: An Example

See Note 12, “Antitrust Investigation and Related Litigation”
from Archer Daniels Midland Company’s Annual Report 2002.
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Depreciation and 
Deferred Taxes

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 7, 2004
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Tax and Timing Effects

Tax Depreciation
Accelerated depreciation 
No judgment in determining depreciation expense

Tax Reporting ≠ Financial Reporting ==> timing 
differences in measurement of income

Why would a firm prefer accelerated depreciation for tax 
purposes?
Why does government allow this?
Why not use the tax method for financial reporting?

Different depreciation for tax and financial reporting 
gives rise to Deferred Taxes
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Deferred Tax Expense
Is deferred tax expense a line item expense on the income 
statement?

No
If not where is it?

It is a component of reported income tax expense
What is the journal entry?
(Recall: Income tax expense = taxes payable + deferred tax 
expense)

Dr Income tax expense 15,000
Cr Tax payable 7,800
Cr Deferred tax liability 7,200
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Deferred Taxes over Time

Deferred taxes caused by timing differences are temporary; 
they reverse over time.

Year            Financial            Tax Depreciation Deferred   Acc.  Depr       Def Tax
reporting        reporting  difference Tax        Difference,        Liability

Year          depreciation    depreciation Expense        (EB)                 (EB)
2000             30,000             54,000 24,000 7,200          24,000             7,200
2001             30,000             36,000 6,000 1,800          30,000             9,000
2002             30,000                 - (30,000) (9,000)              0                    0

Timing differences that create / increase deferred taxes are called 
originating differences
Timing differences that remove / decrease deferred taxes are called 

reversing differences
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Financial Statement Analysis

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 18, 2004
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Financial Statement Analysis:
Ratio Analysis

What is financial statement analysis?
What is ratio analysis?
The mechanics of and inferences from:

Profitability ratios
Risk ratios
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What is Financial Statement 
Analysis?

A comprehensive analysis of:
Strategy
Competition, regulation, and taxes
Past, current, and projected financial performance
Fundamental valuation in relation to stock price
Planning for the future

Operations
Investments
Financing

Our objective in this course is somewhat limited and 
will focus on financial performance.
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Analyzing Financial Statements:
Different Approaches

Ratio analysis
The process of examining various financial statement 
items with the objective of assessing the success of 
past and current performance and, perhaps more 
importantly, of projecting future performance and 
financial condition.

Analysis Approach
Comparisons across time

Trend and time-series analysis
Cross-Sectional Analysis

Within industry
Across sectors
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Analyzing Financial Statements:
Analysis Techniques

Common-size financial statements
Common-size income statement – as a percentage of 
revenue
Common-size balance sheet – as a percentage of 
total assets

Year-to-year growth analysis
Ratio analysis

Enables inter-temporal and cross-sectional 
comparisons
Our primary focus
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Why perform financial analysis?
As a business owner, what performance 
indicators would you like to have?

How fast are the revenues growing (Demand 
Analysis)? – Growth
What is the operating margin? – Profitability
What is the efficiency of asset usage? – Turnover
Do I have an optimal mixture of debt and equity 
financing? – Financial Leverage
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Why perform financial analysis?
Historical, present, and future (expectations) 
ratios:

Pro forma financial analysis captures expectations
Expectations based on historical and current 
performance and market conditions
Useful for evaluation, planning, and valuation
15.535 – Financial Statement Analysis course
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Financial Ratio Analysis:
Gateway and Dell Computers

Profitability Ratios

Risk Ratios
Short-Term Liquidity Risk
Long-Term Solvency Risk
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Profitability Ratios
Objective

Assess a firm’s operating performance
Return on Assets

Measures a firm’s success in using assets to 
generate earnings, independent of the financing of 
those assets (i.e., debt v. equity).
The numerator is operating income after income 
taxes, excluding any financing costs.
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

ROA = (NI + (1 – T) I + MIE)/ATA
NI… Net Income
T… Tax Rate
I… Interest Expense
MIE… Minority Interest in Earnings
ATA… Average Total Assets
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

Gateway (NYSE:GTW) ROA
(-525,950)/(.5(2,028,438+2,509,407)) =
-0.23

Dell (NasdaqNM:DELL) ROA
(2,645 + (1-.29)(22))/(.5(19,311+15,470) =
0.15
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

Adding (1 – Tax Rate)(Interest Expense) to
Net Income provides an estimate of income as if the 
company were not to have any debt.  For example:

With Debt W/out Debt
Revenues: 1,000 1,000
COGS: 700 700
Interest: 100 0
Inc b/ tax 200 300
Tax (@40%) 80 120
Net Income 120 180
NI + (1 – Tax)(Int Exp) 120 + 60 180

Thus, the effect of leverage on ROA is neutralized
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

Decomposition of ROA
ROA = Profit Margin x Total Assets Turnover

Profit Margin = (NI + (1 – T)(I) + MIE)/Sales
Gateway PM =  -.15
Dell PM =   .06

Assets Turnover = Sales/ATA
Gateway AT =  1.50
Dell AT =  2.38
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

Decomposition of ROA
Profit margin

Measures a firm’s ability to generate operating income from a 
particular level of sales.
One can identify reasons for changes in profit margin 
between years by studying relation between individual 
expenses and sales (i.e., by performing common-size 
analysis of the income statement).

Asset turnover
Measures a firm’s ability to generate sales from a particular 
investment in assets.
May be further decomposed to examine turnover ratios for 
individual assets.
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets (ROA)

Summary of ROA Analysis
Calculate ROA.
Decompose ROA into profit margin and assets 
turnover.
Decompose profit margin into expense rations for 
various cost items.
Decompose asset turnover into various individual 
turnover rates.
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Profitability Ratios:
Return on Common Equity (ROE)

Measures the return to common shareholders.

ROE = (Net Income – Preferred Dividends)/
/(Average Common Equity)

ROE = Profit Margin x Turnover x Leverage
Leverage = Assets / Shareholders’ Equity

Gateway ROE = -0.55
Dell ROE = 0.47
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Profitability Ratios:
Fixed Asset Turnover

Measures the relation between sales and the 
investment in property, plant, and equipment.

How efficiently is the firm using its fixed assets to 
generate sales?

Fixed Asset Turnover =
= Sales/(Average Fixed Assets)

Gateway Fixed Asset Turnover = 8.38
Dell Fixed Asset Turnover = 34.11
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Profitability Ratios:
Fixed Asset Turnover

Changes in the fixed asset turnover ratio can 
signal:

A firm making investments in fixed assets in 
anticipation of higher sales in future periods

A low or decreasing rate of fixed asset turnover may be an 
indicator of an expanding firm that is preparing for future 
growth.

Alternatively, a firm might cut back its capital 
expenditures if the near-term outlook for its products 
is poor.

Such an action could lead to an increase in the fixed asset 
turnover ratio.
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Risk Ratios:
Liquidity and Solvency

Short-Term Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio
Quick Ratio
A/R Turnover
A/P Turnover
Inventory Turnover

Long-Term Solvency Ratios
Long-Term Debt Ratio
Debt/Equity Ratio
Liabilities Assets Ratio
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Current Ratio

Sheds light on a firm’s ability to pay for obligations that 
come due during its operating cycle (i.e., wages, 
purchases of inventory, etc.).
Current ratio = 

= (Current Assets)/(Current Liabilities)
Gateway Current Ratio = 1.67
Dell Current Ratio = 0.98

It matches:
The amount of cash and other current assets that will become 
cash within one year against
The obligations that come due in the next year.

Rule of thumb: A minimum current ratio of one.
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Quick Ratio

A variation of the current ratio is the quick ratio, 
also known as the acid test ratio.
Quick Ratio = (Cash + Marketable Securities +

+ A/R)/(Current Liabilities)
Gateway Quick Ratio = 1.30
Dell Quick Ratio = 0.81

The numerator includes only those current 
assets that the firm could convert into cash 
quickly.
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Accounts Receivable Turnover

A/R Turnover measures how soon sales will 
become cash.

A/R Turnover = Sales/(Average A/R)
Gateway A/R Turnover = 16.68
Dell A/R Turnover = 13.32
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Accounts Receivable Turnover

An intuitive measure of the rate at which receivables are 
being collected is the days receivable outstanding:
Days Receivable Outstanding = 365/(A/R T)

Gateway Days Receivable Outstanding =  21.88
Dell Days Receivable Outstanding =  27.39

Interpretation:
Sustained increases might indicate a deteriorating customer 
base and/or that some customers are experiencing financial 
difficulties.  It could also mean the credit department is doing a 
poor job.
Sustained decreases might indicated that the firm’s credit 
department is being too aggressive.
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Accounts Payable Turnover

Measures how quickly a firm is paying its 
suppliers.

Accounts Payable Turnover =
= Purchases/(Average Accounts Payable)

Gateway A/P Turnover = 8.54
Dell A/P Turnover = 5.10

Purchases can be measured as Cost of Goods Sold plus the 
change in the Inventory account balance.
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Accounts Payable Turnover

Days Payable Outstanding = 365/(A/P Turnover)
Gateway Days Payable Outstanding =     42.76
Dell Days Payable Outstanding =     71.60

Analysis
If the days payable outstanding is rising (i.e., A/P 
turnover falling) the firm is facing a financial difficulty.
Low days payable or high turnover rate might imply 
suppliers unwilling to offer credit (i.e., insist on cash 
payment).

Alternatively, it might be that the suppliers’ cash discounts for 
prompt payments are too good to pass up.
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Inventory Turnover

How quickly is inventory being sold?
Inventory Turnover = COGS/(Average Inventory)

Gateway Inventory Turnover = 28.97
Dell Inventory Turnover = 107.08

Why is Dell’s inventory ratio so high?  

A more intuitive measure of the rate:
Days Inventory Held = 365/(Inventory Turnover)

Gateway Days Inventory Held = 12.60
Dell Days Inventory Held = 3.41
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Short-Term Liquidity:
Inventory Turnover

Alternative interpretations:
A firm would like to sell as many goods as possible with a 
minimum of cash tied up in inventories.

An increase in the rate of inventory turnover between periods would 
suggest a more profitable use of the investment in inventory.

Alternatively, a firm does not want to have so little inventory on 
hand that shortages result, and the firm must turn away 
customers.

An increase in the rate of inventory turnover in this case may 
portend a loss of sales in future.

A low turnover rate might suggest that a portion of the firm’s 
inventory is becoming obsolete and thus not selling.

Firms must make trade-offs in deciding the optimum 
level of inventory to hold.
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Long Term Solvency:
Solvency Ratios

Measure a firm’s ability to meet interest and 
principal payments on long-term debt (and 
similar obligations, like long-term leases) when 
the come due.

The best indicator for assessing long-term 
solvency risk is a firm’s ability to generate 
earnings over a period of years.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

53
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



29

Long-Term Solvency:
Solvency Ratios

Long-Term Debt Ratio =
= (LT Debt)/(LT Debt and S.H.E.)

Gateway Long-Term Debt Ratio = 0.13
Dell Long-Term Debt Ratio = 0.07

Debt/Equity Ratio = (LT Debt)/(S.H.E.)
Gateway Debt/Equity Ratio = 0.15
Dell Debt/Equity Ratio = 0.08

Liabilities/Assets Ratio = (Total L)/(Total A)
Gateway Liabilities/Assets Ratio = 0.64
Dell Liabilities/Assets Ratio = 0.67
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Long-Term Solvency:
CFO to Total Liabilities Ratio

Measure the firm’s ability to generate cash flows 
from operations to service debt.

CFO to Total Liabilities =
= CFO/(Average Total Liabilities)

Gateway CFO to Total Liabilities = 0.06
Dell CFO to Total Liabilities = 0.31
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Long-Term Solvency:
CFO to Capital Expenditures

This ratio assesses a firm’s ability to generate 
cash flow from operations in excess of the 
capital expenditure needed to maintain and build 
plant capacity.

The “excess” cash flow can be used to service debt.

(Cash Flow Continuing Operations)/
(Capital Expenditures)
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Long-Term Solvency:
Interest Coverage Ratio

Measures how many times a firm’s net income before 
interest expense and income taxes exceeds its interest 
expense.

Net Income + Interest Expense + Income Tax Expense
Interest Expense

Interest coverage ratios less that 2.0 suggest a risky 
situation.

If a firm must make other required periodic payments (i.e., 
pensions, leases) the analyst could include them as well.  If so, 
the ratio is referred to as the fixed charges ratio.
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Long-Term Solvency:
Interest Coverage Ratio

A criticism of the interest coverage ratio:
Uses earnings, not cash flows

Firms pay interest and other fixed charges with cash, not 
earnings.

Interest coverage ratio using cash flows:
(CFO + Cash Payments for Interest + Cash Payments 
for Income Taxes)/(Cash Payments for Interest)
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Long-Term Solvency:
Financial Leverage Ratios

Liabilities/(Book Value of Equity)
Liabilities/(Market Value of Equity)
(Liabilities + Equity)/Equity

Remember that market values can be and 
generally are quite different from book values.

Role of market-value-based leverage will 
become apparent in the finance courses in 
determining the cost of capital for a firm.
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Long-Term Solvency:
Financial Leverage Ratios

Expected return increases in risk.
Equity has greater risk than debt, so
Expected return on equity is higher, so
Realized return, on average, must be higher, too.

i.e., interest rate paid to the lenders must be less than the 
rate of return earned by the owners or residual claimants

Financial leverage is a double-edged sword.
Good times will reward equity holders substantially.
Bad times may wipe out the capital.
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Financial Analysis:
Other General Considerations

Earnings management using discretion allowed 
under GAAP:

Taking a bath:
Pre-booking expenses during bad times.

Creating hidden reserves:
Booking too many expenses during good times to avoid 
showing expenses during bad times.

Off-balance-sheet financing:
Undisclosed liabilities.

Overstating financial performance:
Aggressive accounting practices and fraud.
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Financial Analysis:
Other General Considerations

Inherent GAAP Limitations:
Value of R&D, goodwill, and other self-created 
intangible assets are not reported:

Nobody stops a manager from providing estimates (legal 
liability).

No adjustments for inflation in U.S.:
Where inflation has not been a big issue.

Expected performance is not shown:
Except in cases of liabilities or losses through conservatism.

Most assets stated at historical costs:
Consistent with conservatism, objectivity, and verifiability.
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Financial Analysis:
Concluding Remarks

Earnings power:
A company’s ability to increase its wealth through 
operations and generate cash in the future.

Earnings quality:
A measure of the extent to which reported earnings 
reflect “true” financial performance.

Earnings persistence:
The extent to which current income is a predictor of 
future income levels.

Solvency:
A company’s ability to meet its obligations.
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Inventories
15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 24, 2004
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Inventory

Definition: Inventory is defined as goods 
held for sale in the normal course of 
business or items used in the 
manufacture of products that will be sold 
in the normal course of business
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Inventory

Definition: Inventory is defined as goods 
held for sale in the normal course of 
business or items used in the manufacture 
of products that will be sold in the normal 
course of business
Inventory is recorded on the balance sheet 
at the lower of the cost or the market value 
of the inventory.
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Inventory: Lower of cost or 
market.  Why?

$B/S 
Inventory value

Cost

Inventory value on the
balance sheet

Market value of Inventorywww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Inventory

Definition: Inventory is defined as goods held for 
sale in the normal course of business or items 
used in the manufacture of products that will be 
sold in the normal course of business
The inventory is recorded on the balance sheet at 
the lower of the cost or the market value of the 
inventory.
The cost of inventory includes all costs necessary 
to bring the inventory to a saleable condition.
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The “Ins” and “Outs” of 
Inventory Accounting

The “ins” of  
inventory 
accounting

The “outs” of  
inventory 
accounting

Cost of goods 
available for sale

Cost of 
goods sold

Ending
inventory

Acquisition 
costs

Beginning
inventory

BInv + Purchases = COGAS = COGS + EInv
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Which costs ($) come out?
Acquisition 
costs Cost of goods 

available for sale

Cost of 
goods sold
Ending
inventory

Beginning
inventory

BInv + Purchases = COGAS = COGS + EInv
How do we determine

which costs are expensed in COGS and
which costs remain in EInv?

Need a cost flow assumption
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The Key Equation
Inventory

Beg. Inventory

Purchases/
Production

Cost of goods sold

End. Inventory
Beg. inventory + purchases/production 
- COGS = End. inventory
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Which costs go in?
What units to include

FOB shipping point or destination:  who owns goods in 
transit?

What costs to attach to the units
The cost of inventory includes all costs necessary to bring 
the inventory to a saleable condition.
All costs to acquire, manufacture, prepare
Includes shipping costs for retailers
Includes overhead costs (as well as direct labor and 
materials) for manufacturers

More on this in managerial accounting …
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm
Materials

Direct Labor

Overhead

Work in 
Process

Finished
Goods

Cash or Payables
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm
Materials

Direct Labor

Overhead

Work in 
Process

Finished
Goods

Cash or Payables
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm

Buying of inputs

Direct Material xx
Direct Labor xx
Overhead xx

Payables or cash xx
(payment of salaries, purchase of materials)
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm
Materials

Direct Labor

Overhead

Work in 
Process

Finished
Goods

Cash or Payables
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm

Use inputs to manufacture goods

Work in Process xx
Direct Material xx
Direct Labor xx
Overhead xx

(Use of inputs in production)
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm
Cash or PayablesMaterials

Work in 
Process

Finished
GoodsDirect Labor

Overhead
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm

Transfer finished products from 
shop floor to warehouse

Finished Goods xx
Work in Process xx

(production of goods completed)
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Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm
Cash or PayablesMaterials

Work in 
Process

Finished
GoodsDirect Labor

Overhead
Cost of Goods Sold

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

80
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



18

Inventory in a Manufacturing Firm

Sell goods to customers

Cost of Goods Sold xx
Finished Goods xx

(finished goods are sold to customers)
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Keeping track of inventory quantities:
Perpetual vs. Periodic Inventory Systems

How do we know how much has been sold?

Perpetual system: tracks units sold directly
more accurate, more timely, potentially more costly

Periodic system: infer quantities sold by using 
purchases/production, beginning and ending 
inventories.

Units sold = Beg. Units + Production – End. Units
harder to detect inventory “shrinkage” (e.g., theft, 
spoilage) as well as management fraud
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Which costs ($) come out?
Acquisition 
costs Cost of goods 

available for sale

Cost of 
goods sold
Ending
inventory

Beginning
inventory

BInv + Purchases = COGAS = COGS + EInv
How do we determine

which costs are expensed in COGS and
which costs remain in EInv?
Need a cost flow assumption

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

83
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



21

LIFO vs FIFO example

LIFO and FIFO are two assumptions about the 
physical flow of inventory used to determine 
cost of goods sold and the ending inventory
account balance.

The actual physical flow of inventory need
not correspond to these assumptions.
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LIFO vs FIFO example

FIFO -- First In First Out

LIFO -- Last In First Out
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LIFO vs FIFO example

Beginning Inventory           Purchases

Goods available for sale

The accountant must separate goods available
for sale into End. Inv. and COGS. This separation
is done based on the physical flow assumption.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

86
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



24

FIFO – Conveyer Belt
FIFO (conveyor belt)

Beg. inventoryPurchases
physical flow

End. inventory       Cost of goods sold

If 4 units are sold, COGS is the purchase
price of the first 4 units put on the conveyor
belt.
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LIFO vs FIFO example
FIFO (conveyor belt)

Beg. inventoryPurchases
physical flow

End. inventory       Cost of goods sold
(older prices)(recent prices)
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LIFO – Cookie Jar
LIFO (cookie jar) -- If 4 units sold, COGS is the 
purchase price of last 4 units put in the jar.

Beg. inventory

Purchases

End. inventory

Cost of 
goods sold

(older prices)

(recent prices)

physical flow
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LIFO vs FIFO example

Transactions:
1)  Owners invest $24
2)  Buy 1 unit of inventory in March for $10
3)  Buy 1 unit of inventory in April for $12
4)  Sell 1 unit in May for $21
5)  Pay other expenses for $6
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LIFO vs FIFO example - FIFO
Cash +  Inventory =      Liabilities   +  SE
24 24

(10) 10
(12) 12
21 21
(6) (6)

FIFO cost of goods sold?

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

91
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



29

LIFO vs FIFO example - FIFO
Cash +  Inventory =      Liabilities   +  SE
24 24

(10) 10
(12) 12
21 21
(6) (6)

(10) (10)

17 12 29
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LIFO vs FIFO example - FIFO
FIFO

income statement and balance sheet
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LIFO vs FIFO example – FIFO
FIFO Sales         21

COGS       10
GM            11
Oper. Exp 6
Pretax Inc.  5

Cash        17
Inventory  12
TA            29

S. E.         29

•Recent costs on B/S
•Old costs on the I/S
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LIFO vs FIFO example - LIFO
Cash +  Inventory =      Liabilities   +  SE
24 24

(10) 10
(12) 12
21 21
(6) (6)

LIFO cost of goods sold?
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LIFO vs FIFO example - LIFO
Cash +  Inventory =      Liabilities   +  SE
24 24

(10) 10
(12) 12
21 21
(6) (6)

(12) (12)

17 10 27
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LIFO vs FIFO example - LIFO
LIFO

income statement and balance sheet
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LIFO vs FIFO example - LIFO
LIFO income statement and balance sheet

Cash        17
Inventory  10
TA            27

S. E.         27

Sales         21
COGS       12
GM              9
Oper. X     6
Pretax Inc.  3 

•Recent costs on I/S
•Old costs on the B/S
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LIFO versus FIFO

FIFOLIFO

1012COGS

1210End Inv
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LIFO

Recent costs are on the income 
statement; LIFO matches current costs 
with current revenues.
Old costs are on the balance sheet.
Assuming increasing inventory costs, 
using LIFO results in a tax savings
Using LIFO can reduce the political 
visibility 
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LIFO vs FIFO example
Weighted Average

Cash        17
Inventory  11
TA            28

S. E.         28

Sales         21
COGS       11
GM            10
Oper. Exp 6
Pretax Inc.  4 

•Mixture of old and new costs on the
balance sheet and income statement
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LIFO Layers example

2002: 30 units @$1.2

2001: 50 units @$1.1

2000: 100 units @$1

Beginning
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LIFO layers and transactions

2002: 30 units @$1.2 each
2001: 50 units @$1.1 each
2000: 100 units @$1 each

Beginning

Purchase 340 units @ $2 each
Sell          500 units @ $3 each
What is LIFO COGS?
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What is LIFO COGS?
2002: 30 units @$1.2 each 
2001: 50 units @$1.1 each
2000: 100 units @$1 each
Price per unit is in $ ’000

Beginning

Purchase 340 units @ $2 each
Sell 500 units @ $3 each
What is LIFO COGS?
340  @ $2
+30  @ $1.2
+50  @ $1.1
+80  @ $1   
= $851,000

Cumulative units
340
370
420
500
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What is LIFO COGS?
2002: 30 units @$1.2 each
2001: 50 units @$1.1 each
2000: 100 units @$1 each

Beginning

Purchase 340 units @ $2 each
Sell 500 units @ $3 each
What is LIFO COGS?
340  @ $2
+30  @ $1.2
+50  @ $1.1
+80  @ $1   
= $851,000

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS      (851)
EXPs (500)
Pretax NI   149  Given
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LIFO Layers example

2002: 30 units @$1.2

2001: 50 units @$1.1

2000: 100 units @$1

Beg inventory of 2003

End inventory

2003: 20 units @$1
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What is LIFO COGS?

340  @ $2
+30  @ $1.2
+50  @ $1.1
+80  @ $1   
= $851,000

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS      (851)
EXPs (500)
Pretax NI   149  

Assuming a 60% corporate tax rate
taxes paid are $89.4 (149 X 0.6).
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What is LIFO COGS?

340  @ $2
+30  @ $1.2
+50  @ $1.1
+80  @ $1   
= $851,000

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS      (851)
EXPs (500)
Pretax NI   149  

Assuming a 60% corporate tax rate
taxes paid are $89.4 (149 X 0.6).

Company has liquidated LIFO layers and thus
allowed old costs to enter into the income statementwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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LIFO Inventory Incentives

340  @ $2        500 @ $2 
+30  @ $1.2
+50  @ $1.1
+80  @ $1   
= $851,000     =$1,000,000

If purchases had been 500 units (i.e., equal to
current sales), then LIFO COGS would have
been $1,000,000 ($2 X 500).

Difference of
$ 149,000
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LIFO Inventory Incentives

500 @ $2 = $1,000,000

If purchases had been 500 units (i.e., equal to
current sales), then LIFO COGS would have
been $1,000,000 ($2 X 500).  Pretax profits
would be zero.

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS    (1000)
EXPS       (500)
Pretax NI       0
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LIFO Inventory Incentives

Company seems to lose money by purchasing
inventory.  If we do not liquidate any of the
old inventory layers, we will have $149 less
income.  Thus, we had $149 of income 
resulting from LIFO liquidation.

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS    (1000)
EXPS       (500)
Pretax NI       0

NI               
Sales       1500
COGS      (851)
EXPs (500)
Pretax NI   149  
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LIFO Liquidation Profits

Another way to compute LIFO liquidation
profits (profits resulting from old costs
appearing on the income statement):

($2 - $1.2) X 30,000
+ ($2 - $1.1) X 50,000
+ ($2 - $1.0) X 80,000
= $149,000

Old Costs][Units in beg. inv. sold]x[Current costs -
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LIFO vs. FIFO--Which is a Better 
Measure of Future Income

If one wants to predict future cost of 
good sold, one would prefer the most 
recent measure of inventory cost of 
goods sold.
LIFO provides a more recent measure 
of cost of goods sold than FIFO if no 
LIFO liquidation occurs.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

113
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Conversion from LIFO to FIFO --
The LIFO reserve

51

The LIFO reserve is the difference between
inventory value under FIFO and the value of
inventory under LIFO.

LIFO reserve = FIFO value - LIFO value

Companies using LIFO must disclose this
reserve.

The LIFO reserve allows for comparison of
LIFO and FIFO companies.
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What is FIFO Inventory?
2002: 30 units @$1.2 each
2001: 50 units @$1.1 each
2000: 100 units @$1 each

Beginning

Purchase 340 units @ $2 each
Sell 500 units @ $3 each
What is FIFO COGS?
100  @ $1
+ 50  @ $1.1
+ 30  @ $1.2
+320  @ $1   
= $831,000

Cumulative units
100
150
180
320
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FIFO Inventory & LIFO reserve

FIFO Ending Inventory:
20 units @ $2.00 = $40

Recall LIFO Ending Inventory:
20 units @ $1.00 = $20

LIFO reserve: $40-$20 = $20
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Conversion from LIFO to FIFO --
The LIFO reserve example

54

In the previous example, the company had
20 units of inventory at a LIFO value of
$1 each.  The FIFO value of these units
would have been $2 each.

LIFO reserve = [20 X $2] - [20 X $1]
= $20,000

If inventory prices do not decrease, a decrease
in the LIFO reserve indicates that old costs are 
appearing on the income statement.
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LIFO versus FIFO COGS
Remember:
EndInv = BegInv + Purchases – COGS
=>
PurchasesLIFO = (EndInvLIFO – BegInvLIFO) + COGSLIFO

PurchasesFIFO = (EndInvFIFO – BegInvFIFO) + COGSFIFO

Key: The cost of “Purchases” does not differ across 
LIFO/FIFO =>
PurchasesLIFO = PurchasesFIFO
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LIFO versus FIFO COGS
Equating right hand side of LIFO and FIFO 
equations,

COGSLIFO - COGSFIFO = 
(EndInvFIFO – EndInvLIFO) –
(BegInvFIFO - BegInvLIFO) + 

=
End LIFO reserve –
Beg LIFO reserve
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Footnote Disclosures
Kmart, 2001

“Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, primarily 
using the retail method. The last-in, first-out ("LIFO") method, 
utilizing internal inflation indices, was used to determine the cost for 
$5,537, $6,104 and $6,690 of inventory as of fiscal year end 2001, 
2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Inventories valued on LIFO were $269, $194 and $202 lower 
than amounts that would have been reported using the first in, first 
out ("FIFO") method at fiscal year end 2001, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively.”
- Kmart Corporation. Kmart Corporation 2001 Annual Report. 2002.

Vacu-Dry, 1996
“During 1996, the company liquidated certain LIFO inventories that 
were carried at lower costs prevailing in prior years. The effect of 
this liquidation was to increase earnings before income taxes by $ 
642,000 ($384,000 increase in net earnings).”
- Vacu-Dry Co. 1996 Annual Report. 1997. (Currently called Sonomawest Holdings Inc)
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Analyzing Footnote 
Disclosures

Kmart
What is the value of tax savings to Kmart from using LIFO?
(COGSLIFO – COGSFIFO)*(tax rate) =
(Change in LIFO reserve)*tax rate =
(269-194)*0.40 = 30

Vacu-Dry 
Assume change in LIFO reserve = $100,000
What is the difference between COGSLIFO and COGSFIFO that 
solely reflects a change in costs of goods produced?
(COGSLIFO – COGSFIFO) = 100,000
What (COGSLIFO – COGSFIFO) would have been without LIFO 
liquidation = 
(100+642) = 742,000

Given: tax rate = 40%
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LIFO and FIFO Inventory 
Turnover

Inventory turnover =

Cost of Goods Sold        
Average Inventory 
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LIFO and FIFO Inventory 
Turnover

Inventory turnover =

Cost of Goods Sold         old          new
Average Inventory         new          old

FIFO        LIFO

COGS(LIFO)
Average Inventory (FIFO)

New Inventory turnover =
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Summary for Inventories

Inventories are carried on the balance sheet at lower 
of cost or market 

Alternative cost flow assumptions
FIFO and LIFO
FIFO shows balance sheet at relatively current values, but 
income statement cost of goods sold at stale values
Converse for LIFO
LIFO layer liquidation affects income and sometimes 
distorts incentives.
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1

Accounting for Business 
Combinations

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 8, 2004
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Investments and Acquisitions
Agenda

Understand that the accounting method used for 
acquisitions depends on the extent to which the 
investor exerts influence over the investee.
Understand the effects of dividends received and 
investee income on the financial statements of the 
investor under the equity method.
Understand the effects of consolidated accounting 
on the balance sheet and income statement of the 
investor.
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Investments in the Stock of Other Companies

3

The accounting method for stock investments 
depends on the degree of influence the investing 
company has on the decisions of the investee.
Three methods of accounting for this investment:

Ownership: <20% 20-50% >50%

Influence: “passive” “significant 
influence” “controlling”

Reporting 
Method:

Mark-to-
market Equity Consolidation
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Equity Investment Accounting Rationale

4

For any company:
Ending RE = 
Beginning RE + Net Income – Dividends
Following the same logic =>
Ending value of investment on investing 
company’s books =
Beginning value of investment + investor’s 
share of investee’s net income – investor’s 
share of investee’s dividends
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Significant Influence Equity Method

5

Assume the following events
1. Purchase: Investor acquires 48,000 shares amounting to 40% of EE

Corporation for $10 per share
2. Dividends:  EE Corporation pays a dividend of $60,000 or 50 cents 

per share
3. Affiliate earnings: EE Corporation Earns $100,000 in Net Income

Record these events on BSE of investor company.
Long-term

Cash Investment R/E Comment
1. Purchase (480,000) 480,000
2. Dividends 24,000 (24,000) 40% × $60,000
3. Aff. earnings 40,000 40,000 Investment

income
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Equity Investment Journal Entries – For The 
Investing Company

At the time of investment
Dr Long Term Investments 480,000

Cr Cash 480,000

At the time of dividends payment
Dr Cash 24,000

Cr Long Term Investments 24,000

At the time investee declares net income
Dr Long Term Investments 40,000

Cr Investment income 40,000
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Control Consolidation Method

7

When the investor controls the investee,
The investor corporation = parent.
The investee corporation = subsidiary.
The parent prepares consolidated financial statements that treat the 
parent and the subsidiary as a single economic entity even though 
they are separate legal entities.

Consolidated financial reporting brings together multiple sets 
of financial records at the time of reporting to outsiders

Each subsidiary maintains its own set of books that is independent of 
who owns it, whether it is one person/company or one million.
Parent has its set of books pre-consolidation.
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8

What Happens To Goodwill in Subsequent 
Years?

After goodwill is determined, it has to be 
“assigned” to specific business units within 
the merged entity (FAS 142)
Before July 2001 (FAS 142), goodwill had to 
amortized over a maximum period of forty 
years
Now, goodwill does not have to be amortized
It is tested for impairment annually
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Goodwill Impairment

9

What is goodwill impairment?
Reduction in value of goodwill

When does impairment occur?
Technically speaking when “implied goodwill” from fair 
value of business unit is below book value of goodwill 
assigned to that unit.
Requires accountants to value unlisted business units of 
the merged entity!

What happens when goodwill is impaired?
Company writes down the value of goodwill and 
recognizes a corresponding loss in the Income Statement
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Goodwill impairment charges

10

In practice, what do you think will trigger goodwill 
impairment?

Decline in stock prices

In 2002, American companies wrote off close to 
$750 billion (HUGE write-downs by AOL Time 
Warner, AT&T, Nortel, Corning, Blockbuster)

An additional $200 billion of goodwill impairment 
charges expected in 2003.
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Issues In Goodwill Accounting

11

Under FAS 142, what exactly does goodwill 
capture?

The value of synergies
What does goodwill impairment imply?

Synergies lost
What else could they be the result of?

A desire to “clear the decks”, or, in other words, 
our old friend “the big bath”
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Overall Idea Behind Consolidation 
Adjustments

Consolidation combines the financial statements of 
parent and subsidiaries, resulting in one set of F/S.
But there are numerous items that appear twice.
Adjustments correct for the double-counting that 
would result from simply adding the financial 
statements together.
Some other adjustments we haven’t addressed:

Inter-company receivables and payables
Inter-company sales, costs, and profits
Following through the adjustments of S’s net assets to FV
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Summary

13

Accounting for long-term investments depends on degree of 
influence as determined by percentage holdings.
In equity method and consolidation, the investment account:

increases when investee earns profits and
decreases and when investee pays dividends.

Consolidation process:
Shows the combined F/S of parent and sub, and
Removes any double-counting

Acquirer records goodwill when it pays more than fair value 
of the investee’s net assets.
Goodwill accounting raises some fairly complicated issues
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Long-lived Assets

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 25, 2004
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Agenda
Understand how the matching principle 
influences 

the capitalization of long-lived assets
the expensing of capitalized costs to match 
revenues generated in the use of long-lived 
assets

Understand how differences in “book” vs. 
tax accounting for depreciation lead to 
deferred taxes
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Review of Matching Principle

Capitalize versus Expense
Capitalized Costs means show it as an Asset on the 
Balance Sheet

Assets have future benefits
Expense (i.e., not capitalize) when 

benefits are immediate 
OR future benefits are too uncertain or immaterial (e.g., R&D)

Assets are consumed (in future) to generate future 
revenues

Current Assets like Inventory, Prepaid Rent, and Insurance
Non-current assets like Plant, buildings, machinery
NC Intangible assets like Patents, acquired goodwill
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The case of non-current 
assets: PP&E

Accounting for Non-Current assets:

What is the acquisition cost?

What is the expected useful service life?

What is the salvage value?
What pattern of depreciation should be 
used to allocate expense over the useful 
life?

Note: Land is the only non-current asset 
that is never depreciated / amortizedwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Determining Acquisition Cost

What is given up to obtain the asset?
Include all costs required to bring the asset into 
serviceable or usable condition and location.  

Purchased Assets: Purchase price plus cost to 
prepare the asset for use (installation, transport)

Case 1: Cash
Case 2: Financing (down payment plus loan/note)

Self-Constructed Assets
Direct costs of construction
Financing costs (interest on funds borrowed to finance 
construction)
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Determining the 
Acquisition Cost

Purchased Assets: Example 1
ABC, Inc. purchases new equipment on 1/1/03.  
The firm

pays $890,000 to the vendor of the machine
pays $51,000 to transport the equipment
pays $8,000 for insurance during transportation
estimates that maintenance will cost $4,000 in the first 
year, and will rise by about 20% annually for 10 years

What is the balance sheet effect on 1/1/03?
Asset, Equipment = $949,000 (= 890 + 51 + 8)
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Determining the 
Acquisition Cost

Purchased Assets: Example 2
Seattle Manufacturing acquires a work-
station on 1/1/01.  The firm

pays a $30,000 down payment to the vendor
signs a 3-year note payable for $170,000 at an 
annual interest rate of 10%
pays employees $4,000 to configure the work-
station for daily operations and run appropriate 
tests
spends $11,500 to train the employees who will 
operate the work-station

What is the balance sheet effect on 1/1/01? 
Asset, Work station = $204,000 (= 30 + 170 + 4)www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Determining the 
Acquisition Cost

Self-constructed Assets:  Example
Conglomerated Products is constructing a new 
production facility.  Expected completion date is 
6/1/2001. 
During 2000, the company

spends $1.7 million for materials
pays $2.1 million to architects and laborers
accrues interest payable equal to 10% of a $1.6 million 
construction loan
incurs fees related to zoning, inspection, etc. of $52,000

What is the balance sheet effect as of 12/31/00?
Asset, Factory building construction in progress = 
$4,012,000 (= 1,700 + 2,100 + 160 + 52)
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Salvage Value and 
Useful Life

Determining Salvage Value 
Requires managerial judgment
SV = estimated proceeds at disposal, net of 
selling costs 
What factors can affect this estimate?
Depreciable basis = Acquisition cost - SV

Determining Useful life 
Requires managerial judgment
The time period over which the asset will be used
What factors can affect the estimate?

Choose depreciation method
What does GAAP allow?www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

146
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



10

GAAP Depreciation 
Methods

Production (Use) Method
Depreciation cost per machine-hour = depreciable 
basis/service life (in machine-hours)
Depr. Expense = Actual hours used * hourly rate

Example:  
A machine with depreciable basis of $50,000 is 
expected to provide 20,000 hours of service.  During 
Year 1, the machine is used for 2,500 hours.
What is the depreciation expense for Year 1?

$2,500*[50,000/20,000] = $6,250
What is the machine’s book value at the end of Year 
1?

$50,000 - $6,250 = $43,750
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GAAP Depreciation 
Methods

Straight-line Depreciation
Annual Depreciation Expense = depreciable 
basis/service life (in years) =  (AC - SV) / Years
Used by an overwhelming majority of US firms

Example:  
Avis acquires cars for its rental fleet for $30,000 
each.   It expects to rent each car for 2 years, then 
sell them for $15,000 each.
What is the depreciation expense per car for Year 1?

($30,000 - $15,000)/2 = $7,500
What is each car’s book value at the end of Year 1?
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Depreciation Bookkeeping

At the time of acquisition of the asset:
Dr PP&E 30,000
Cr Cash 30,000
Say SV = 15,000
Depreciable basis = (30,000 – 15,000)
Depreciation = (Depreciable basis)/(useful life)

= 15,000/2 = 7,500
Dr Depreciation Expense 7,500
Cr Accumulated Depreciation 7,500
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Depreciation Bookkeeping

At the beginning of first year
PP&E

At the end of first year
Gross PP&E 30,000
Less: Acc Deprecn. 07,500
Net PP&E 22,500

Income effect -07,500
30,000

At the end of first year

PP&E
Acc. Deprecn. Deprecn. Expense (RE)

7,5007,50030,000
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GAAP Depreciation Methods
Accelerated Depreciation

Mostly confined to tax reporting
Higher depreciation expense is recognized in the 
earlier years of an asset’s useful life

Differences between Tax depreciation 
deductions and Financial Reporting
depreciation expense give rise to Deferred 
Tax accounts

More on this at end of lecture
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Depreciation Bookkeeping

What accounts does depreciation affect? 
Accumulated depreciation account, contra-
asset account 
Retained earnings account, depreciation 
expense

Which financial statements are affected?
Balance sheet and income statement

Does depreciation affect cash?
No
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Accounting for Long-Term Debt

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor S. P. Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 2, 2004
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Agenda – Long-Term Debt

Extend our understanding of valuation methods 
beyond simple present value calculations.
Understand the terminology of long-term debt

Bonds – coupon and zero-coupon bonds
At Par vs. Discount vs. Premium

Market interest rate versus coupon rate 
Mortgages – Interest plus Principal paid each period 

Practice bookkeeping for debt issuance, interest 
accruals, periodic payments, and debt retirement.
Understand how long-term debt affects financial 
statements over time.
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Bonds
Bonds

Periodic interest payments and face value due at maturity

Face value (amount)
(Principal) Amount due at maturity

Interest payments
Coupon rate times the face value of debt
Coupon rate is the interest rate stated in the note.  It’s used to 
calculate interest payments

Market rate of interest
The rate of interest demanded in the market place given the 
risk characteristics of a bond 
Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate
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Bonds
Consider a loan with 

principal of $10,000 
initiated on 1/1/01  
The market interest rate is 6% 
Final payment is to be made at the end of the third year, i.e., on 
12/31/03.  

What annual payments are required under the following three 
alternatives?

Annual interest payment at the end of each year and repayment 
of principal at the end of the third year (typical bond terms).
A single payment (of principal and interest) at the end of year 3 
(Zero-Coupon bond). 
Three equal payments at the end of each year (mortgage / new 
car loan terms).
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Bonds - alternative payment 
streams

Coupon         Zero         Mortgage

End of Year 1 Int 0 Int + P

End of Year 2 Int 0 Int + P

End of Year 3 Int + P       Int + P          Int + P
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

At the time of the bond issue
Dr Cash 10,000

Cr Bond Payable 10,000

Periodically thereafter
Cash interest payments = Face Value x Coupon rate
Bond payable at the present value of cash flows, i.e., the present 
value of interest and principal 
Interest expense = Bond payable x market interest rate
Difference between interest expense and cash interest payment is
added to Bond Payable 

At maturity 
Pay interest and entire principal balance
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

What is the present value of the bond?  
Payment stream

Three annual coupon payments of $600 each
Principal payment of $10,000 at the end of three years

Present value 
PV of ordinary annuity, n = 3, r = 6%, Table 4
$600 x 2.67301 = $1603.81
PV of $10,000, n = 3, r = 6%, Table 2
$10,000 x 0.83962 = $8396.20
PV = $1603.81 + $8396.20 = $10,000
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

End of year 1
Interest expense = $10,000 x 6%
Coupon payment = $100,000 x 6%

Dr Interest expense 600
Cr Cash 600

End of year 2
Dr Interest expense 600

Cr Cash 600
End of year 3

Dr Interest expense 600
Cr Cash 600

Dr Bond Payable 10,000
Cr Cash 10,000
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

Cash             =     Bond Payable
Issuance 10,000           =       10,000

Cash           =     Bond Payable   +     Ret Erngs

2001 (600)         =        (600)

2002 (600)         =                                        (600)         

2003 (600)         =                                        (600)        
(10,000) (10,000)
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Accounting for a Zero-
Coupon Bond

The zero-coupon bond pays $10,000 at the end of 
three years.
How much will it sell for?  That is, how much cash 
proceed will the firm receive at the time of issuing 
the zero-coupon bond? 

What is the present value of such a bond at the time of 
issue? 
PV of $10,000, n = 3, r = 6%, Table 2
$10,000 x 0.83962 = $8396.20
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Accounting for a Zero-
Coupon Bond

At the time of the bond issue
Dr Cash 8,396.20
Dr Discount on bonds payable 1,603.80

Cr Bond Payable 10,000.00

Balance sheet presentation
Bond payable, gross $10,000.00
Less Discount ($1603.80)
Net Bond Payable $8396.20
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

Over time, the discount is reduced so that at maturity the net 
bond payable equals the face value of the bonds, $10,000

Periodically after issuance
Cash interest payments = 0
Interest expense = Bond payable x market interest rate
Difference between interest expense and cash interest payment 
reduces Discount Account

At maturity 
Pay interest and entire principal balance
Remove Bonds Payable 
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

End of year 1
Interest expense = $8,396.2 x 6% = 503.77
No cash interest payment, so add the interest to Bond 
Payable
Dr Interest expense 503.77

Cr Discount 503.77
Balance in Discount Account = $(1603.80 – 503.77) 

= $ 1100.03
Net Bonds Payable = $8396.20 + 503.77 = $8899.97
OR
Net Bonds Payable = $10,000 – (1100.03) = $8899.97
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

End of year 2
Interest expense = $8,899.97 x 6% = 534.00
No cash interest payment, so add the interest to Bond 
Payable
Dr Interest expense 534.00

Cr Discount 534.00
Balance in Discount Account = $ (1100.03 – 534.00)

= $ 566.03
Net Bonds Payable = $8899.97 + 534.00 = $9433.97
OR
Net Bonds Payable = $10,000 – 566.03 = $9433.97
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

End of year 3
Interest expense = $9433.97 x 6% = 566.03
No cash interest payment, so add the interest to Bond Payable

Dr Interest expense 566.03
Cr Discount 566.03

Balance in Discount Account = 0

Net Bonds Payable = $9433.97 + 566.04 = $10,000
OR
Net Bonds Payable = $10,000 – 0 =  $10,000

Pay off the bond at maturity
Dr Bond Payable 10,000

Cr Cash 10,000
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Accounting for a Zero-Coupon Bond

Cash           =     [Bond Payable – Discount =]    NBP
Issue     10,000        =     [  10,000             - 1,603.80 =]    8,396.20

Cash       =     [Bond Payable  - Discount  = ]     NBP  +     RE 
2001  0            =   503.77 (503.77)
EB                                            10,000      - 1,100.03           8899.97

2002 0            =                                      534 (534)
EB 10,000      - 566.03          9433.97 

2003         0            =                                       566.03     (566.03)
EB 10,000 0 10,000

Pay off the bond
(10,000)                                                        (10,000)         
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Accounting for a Mortgage

In a mortgage, you make equal payments each 
period until maturity.  
Each payment represents interest and some 
principal repayment.  
PV of an ordinary annuity of three payments = 
$10,000

N = 3, r = 6%, Table 4
$10,000 = PVOA (n= 3, r = 6%) x Mortgage Payment
Mortgage Payment = $10,000/2.67301 = $3741.10
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Accounting for a Bond issued at par
Coupon Rate 6% = Market Rate 6%

At the time of the mortgage
Dr Cash 10,000

Cr Mortgage Payable 10,000
Periodically thereafter until maturity 

Cash mortgage payment equals
Interest expense = Outstanding mortgage balance x Market 
interest rate
The excess of mortgage payment over interest expense 
reduces the Mortgage Principal balance 
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Accounting for a Mortgage

Cash          =       Mortgage Payable
Signing 10,000        =       10,000

Cash            =    Mortgage    +    Ret Earnings

2001         (3,741)        = (3,141) (600)
EB01                                   6,859

2002          (3,741)       =     (3,329)                (412)
EB02 3,530

2003 (3,741)       =     (3,530) (211)
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Bond issued at a Discount
Coupon rate 6% < Market rate at issuance 8%

Cash flows to the bondholder
Interest payments = Coupon rate x Face Value = $600
Principal at maturity = $10,000

Proceeds from bond issue
PV of cash flows discounted at the MARKET interest rate of 8%
PVOA (n = 3, r = 8%) x $600 = 2.57710 x 600 = $1546.26
PV of (10,000, n = 3, r = 8%) = 0.79383 x 10,000 = $7938.30
Total = $9484.56

Bond Payable $10,000.00
Less Discount (515.44)
Net Bond Payable $09,484.56
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Bond issued at a Discount
Coupon rate 6% < Market rate at issuance 8%

At the end of first year
Interest expense 

Net Bond Payable x 8%
$9484.56 x 8% = $758.77
Dr Interest expense 758.77

Cr Cash 600.00
Cr Discount on Bond Payable 158.77

Net Bond Payable = $9484.56 + 158.77 = $9643.33
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Bond issued at a Discount
Coupon rate 6% < Market rate at issuance 8%

Cash           =     [Bond Payable – Discount =]    NBP
Issue 9,485           =     [  10,000 - 515         = ]     9,485

Cash       =     [Bond Payable  - Discount  = ]     NBP +     RE

2001 (600)       = 159 9,643 (759)

2002 (600)       =                                    171          9,815 (771)

2003 (600)       =                                    185          10,000 (785)
(10,000) (10,000)
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Bond issued at a Premium
Coupon rate 6% > Market rate at issuance 4%

Cash           =     [Bond Payable + Premium =]    NBP
Issue 9,485           =     [  10,000 + 555          =]     10,555

Cash       =     [Bond Payable  + Premium   =]     NBP +     RE

2001 (600)       = (178) 10,377 (422)

2002 (600)       =                                    (185)        10,192 (415)

2003 (600)       =                                    (192)        10,000 (408)
(10,000) (10,000)
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Bonds - disclosures
Balance sheet

Current portion of L-T debt in current liabilities
Long-term debt

Income Statement
Interest expense

Indirect SCF
Operations - interest accruals not yet paid, amortization of                
discount/premium
Investing - purchase / sale of available for sale debt
Financing - proceeds, repayment + supplemental disclosure of 
cash paid for interest

Notes 
Details on all of the above
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Does the Balance Sheet Represent 
the Market Value of Debt?

Shoney’s, 1999 1999               1998
Subordinated zero-coupon 
debentures, due April 2004                 $122,520,712    $112,580,014

What is the effective interest rate Shoney has used?
Zero coupon bond valuet = valuet-1 × (1+r)

=> r = 122,520,712 / 112,580,014 – 1
= 8.83%

What is the market interest rate of the debt? The Wall Street 
Journal reported in 1999 that Shoney’s debt was selling for 210 per 
thousand, with 5 years until maturity.

FVn = PV0 × (1+r)n
1000 = 210 × (1+r)5 => (1000/210)1/5 – 1 = 36.6%

Data source: Shoney’s Inc. 1999 Annual Report. 2000.
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Shoney's Statement of Cash Flows:
Effect of Discount Amortization

Years Ended                                                     Oct 31,1999      Oct 25, 1998   

Operating activities
Net loss                                                      $ (28,826,398) $ (107,703,920) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided by operating activities:
…
Interest expense on zero coupon
convertible debentures and other noncash
charges                                                    16,329,932      18,508,713
…

--------------- --------------

Net cash provided by operating activities       34,521,046 55,063,923

The annual discount amortization
on the zeros (which is equal to
the annual interest expense on the 
zeros)  is a non-cash expense and 
is added back to NI to reconcile to 
OCF.

Data source: Shoney’s Inc. 1999 Annual Report. 2000.
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Early Retirement of Debt

You repurchase Zero-Coupon bonds (Face Value = $ 11,190) in the 
open market at the start of 2002 (2 years to maturity) when the market 
rate is 5%.  
What is the market price of the bonds at that time?
PV0 = FVn / (1+r)n

PV0 = 11,910 / (1.05)2 = 10,803

What is the effect on the BSE and financial statements?
Cash (A)   =     Bond Principal  - Discount     +    RE 

BB                                11,190          - 1,310               
10,803                (11,910)               (1,310)   (203)

The gain or loss on early retirement of debt is reported as an 
extraordinary item on the income statement.
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Bonds - debt covenants (TCBY)

Borrower will at all times maintain 
a ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities … that is greater than 
2.0…
a Profitability ratio greater than 1.5 …[defined as] the ratio of Net 
Income for the immediately preceding period of 12 calendar months 
to Current Maturities of Long Tern Debt …
a Fixed Coverage Ratio greater than 1.0 … [defined as] the ratio of 
Net Income … plus noncash Charges to Current Maturities of Long 
Term Debt ... plus cash dividends … plus Replacement CapEx of 
the Borrower 

[Borrower will not] sell, lease, transfer, or otherwise dispose of 
any assets … except for the sale of inventory … and disposition 
of obsolete equipment …[to] repurchase the stock of TCBY
[Borrower agrees it will not take on new loans if] the aggregate 
amount of all such loans … would exceed 25% of the 
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Accounting for Leases 
15.511 Corporate Accounting


Summer 2004 

Professor SP Kothari

Sloan School of Management 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

July 6, 2004 
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Agenda


�	 Understand the rationale for leasing and 
the distinction between operating and 
capital leases. 

�	 Understand the Income Statement and 
Balance Sheet differences between 
operating and capital leases from the 
lessee’s perspective. 

2 
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•

•

_____________________________________________________ 

The Nature of Leases


A lease is an agreement conveying the right to use property, plant, or 
equipment, usually for a stated period of time, in exchange for periodic 
cash payments. 

The owner of the property is referred to as the lessor, and the renter is 
the lessee. 

Lease 

Rent Purchase 

� What is the economic rationale for leasing rather than purchasing an
asset? 

� What is the economic rationale for capitalizing a lease? 
� What are the accounting criteria for capitalizing a lease? 
� How objectively can each lease criterion be applied? What judgment

enters into each assessment? 
3 
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Economic Rationale for Leases


�	 Operational advantages to the lessee: 

�	 Leasing ready-to-use equipment can be more attractive if the 
asset requires lengthy preparation and set-up. 

�	 Leasing avoids having to own the asset that will be required 
only seasonally, temporarily or sporadically (leasing contract 
can be tailored). 
� Lessor might be better positioned to lease the equipment again.  

� Leasing for short periods protects against obsolescence. 
� But lease payments are accordingly higher. 

4 
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Economic Rationale for Leases


�	 Financial advantages to the lessee: 

�	 Lease payments can be tailored to suit the lessee’s cash 
flows (up to 100% financing, instead of the 80% limit by 
banks). 

�	 Properly structured leases may be “off-balance sheet”, 
avoiding debt-covenant restrictions. 

�	 Leasing can be tax advantageous when the lessee is unable 
to take the depreciation tax advantage of owning. 

5 
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Disadvantages to Leasing 

� Disadvantages to the lessee: 
� Leased ready-to-use equipment may be of lower quality 

than custom built (resulting in lower quality products 
and lower sales) 
� High quality equip. might be unavailable for leasing 

� Seasonal leasing may affect equipment availability and 
pricing. 

� Premium must be paid for the protection against 
obsolescence. 

� Disadvantages to financial statement users: 
� Off-balance sheet financing can hide the true leverage 

of the firm. 6 
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________________________________________________ 

Economic substance of leases


Lease 

Rent Purchase 

� Operating lease 
�Lessee rents the property. 
�Lessee accrues rent expense. 

� Capital lease
�lessee economically owns the property.
�Lessee records the leased asset in the balance sheet 
(i.e. capitalizes the asset) and reflects the corresponding 
lease obligation. 7 
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Accounting criteria for lease 
capitalization 

A lease is considered a capital lease if ANY of the 
following conditions apply (SFAS 13): 

1. Transfer of ownership at the end of lease term


2. Existence of a bargain purchase option (BPO) 
payment below market value after the lease term 

3. Minimum present value of lease payments (including 
BPO, if any) at least 90% of asset's market value 

4. Lease term is 75% of assets remaining useful life 
8 
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Accounting for operating leases--
Lessee’s Books 

An operating lease is recorded as a rental of an asset in 
the financial statements. 

When the lease agreement is signed and lessee begins 
using the asset: 

A = L + SE 
No entry 

During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash  = L + Retained Earnings

(PP) = (PP), as rent expense


PP = Periodic lease payment 
9 
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Accounting for capital leases--
Lessee’s Books 

A capital lease is recorded as an asset acquisition with a 100% debt 
financing in the financial statements. 
When the lease agreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset: 

Leased Property = Lease Obligation 
PVL PVL 

During the lease (as payments are made) 
Cash + Leased Property -Acc. Depr. = Lease Obligation + RE 

-PP  (PP- Int. expense)  -Int. expense 
-Depr. -Depr. Expense 

PVL =Present Value of Lease =  (PVA, n, r%) * PP 
PP = Periodic lease payment 
Int. expense = beginning lease liability * r%,  where 

beginning lease liability = present value of remaining payments at r% 
Depr. Expense = depreciation expense 

10 
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Operating and Capital Leases: 
An Example 

Assume GE Capital leases an airplane to Delta Airlines.  Assume the 
airplane has a current cost of $30,000 K, an expected life of 20 years and 
zero salvage value. Assume Delta has borrowing rate of 16%.  

Delta transactions if treated as an operating lease: 
When the lease agreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset: 

A = L + SE 
No entry 

During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash = Retained Earnings 

Y1 -5060 -5060 Rent expense 
Y2 -5060 -5060 Rent expense 
Y3 -5060 -5060 Rent expense 

Y20 -5060 -5060 Rent expense 11 
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Operating and Capital Leases: 
An Example 

Delta transactions if treated as a capital lease 
When the lease agreement is signed and lessee begins using the asset: 

Leased Property = Lease Obligation 
30,000 30,000 

During the lease (as payments are made): 
Cash -Acc Depr. = Lease Obligation  + Retained Earnings 

Y1 -5060 -260          - 4800  Int. Exp. 
-1500             - 1500  Depr. Exp. 

[ Depr = (30,000-0)/20 ]  [ Decrease in LO = 5060-4800 ]  [ Int = 30,000*0.16 ] 

Y2 -5060 -302       - 4758  Int. Exp. 
-1500 -1500 Depr. Exp. 

[ Depr = (30,000-0)/20 ]  [ Decrease in LO = 5060-4758 ]  [ Int = (30,000-260)*0.16 ] 

Y3 -5060 -350                      - 4710  Int exp 
-1500 -1500 Depr. Exp 

[ Depr = (30,000-0)/20 ]  [ Decrease in LO = 5060-4710 ]    [ Int = (30,000-260-302)*0.16 ] 12 
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Lease Obligation 
Calculation Worksheet 

Yr
 Interest 
Expense 

Lease 
Pmt 

End of 
Yr Oblig Yr 

Interest 
Expense 

Lease 
Pmt 

End of 
Yr Oblig 

0 30,000 10 24,456 
1 4,800 5,060 29,740 11 3,913 5,060 23,309 
2 4,758 5,060 29,438 12 3,730 5,060 21,979 
3 4,710 5,060 29,089 13 3,517 5,060 20,436 
4 4,654 5,060 28,683 14 3,270 5,060 18,645 
5 4,589 5,060 28,212 15 2,983 5,060 16,569 
6 4,514 5,060 27,666 16 2,651 5,060 14,159 
7 4,427 5,060 27,032 17 2,266 5,060 11,365 
8 4,325 5,060 26,298 18 1,818 5,060 8,123 
9 4,208 5,060 25,445 19 1,300 5,060 4,363 
10 4,071 5,060 24,456 20 698 5,060 1 

13 
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Capital vs. Operating Lease: 
Income Statement Effects 

0 
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7000 

Interest expense + 
depreciation expense 

(capital lease) 

Rent expense 
(operating lease) 
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Capital vs. Operating Lease: 
Balance Sheet Effects 

0 

Lease Obligation 
(capital lease) 

Leased Asset 
(capital lease)5000 
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Financial Statement Disclosures


Assume this is Delta’s only lease and they use capital lease treatment. How 
would their lease footnote look at the end of year 8? 

Years Ending Capital Leases 
Y9 5,060 
Y10 5,060 
Y11 5,060 
Y12 5,060 
Y13 5,060 
Y14 and after 35,420 
Total minimum lease payments 60,720 
Less: amounts representing interest 34,422 

Present value of future minimum 
capital lease payments                    26,298 
Less: current obligations under capital leases                852 
Long-term capital lease obligations  25,446 

= 5,060 x 7 

= 60,720 - 26,298 (below) 

= 5060 x (PVA,12yr,16%) 

= 26,298 - 852 
16 
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--------------------------------------------- -----------

LEASE OBLIGATIONS (Footnote) 

Actual lease disclosures -- Delta


Years Ending June 30,                        
(In Millions)                              

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
After 2005                                  

Capital 
Leases 

$ 57 
57 
48 
32 
17 

23 

Operating 
Leases 

$ 1,200 
1,200 
1,170 
1,120 
1,110 

9,060 
Total minimum lease payments 234 $14,860 

Less: Amounts of lease payments that 
represent interest 44 

Present value of future minimum 
capital lease payments 190 

Less: Current obligations under 
capital leases 43 

Long-term capital lease obligations $147 17 
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Financial disclosures -- Target


Future Minimum Lease Payments 

(millions) Operating Leases Capital Leases 
2000 $ 113 $ 22 
2001 105 21 
2002 96 21 
2003 80 19 
2004 70 18 
After 2004 634 124 
Total future minimum lease payments $ 1,098 $ 225 
Less: interest* (302) (90) 
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 796 $ 135 ** 

*Calculated using the interest rate at inception for each lease (the weighted 
average interest rate was 8.8 percent). RARELY provided in the footnotes. 
** Includes current portion of $10 million. 18 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

198
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Financial statement 

disclosures-- Target


Based on information in the lease footnote, what value does Target 
show for lease liability on its Balance sheet? 

�$135 million = PV of lease pmts on capital leases, $125 million under 
Long-Term Obligations, $10 million under Current Liabilities 

The footnote says Target’s borrowing rate is 8.8 percent.  Could this 
amount be independently computed? 

Capital lease obligt × r = interest expenset+1 

Capital lease obligt × r = LPt+1 – principle reductiont+1 

r = (22 – 10) / 135 = 12/135 = 8.89% 
19 
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Financial statement 

disclosures-- Target


� Why might a user wish to know the effect on 
Target’s balance sheet and income statement of 
capitalizing the leases mentioned in this note? 

�To determine the effect of off-balance sheet financing 

� How could a user derive an estimate of the 
reporting effects of capitalizing leases? 

�By treating all operating leases as capital leases. 

20 
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Leasing and Debt Covenants


Example


Borrower agrees that it will not create, incur, assume or 
suffer to exist any Lien, encumbrance, or charge of any 
kind (including any lease required to be capitalized under 
GAAP) upon any of its properties and/or assets other than 
Permitted Liens. 

21 
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Off Balance Sheet Financing


�What is the definition of liabilities in GAAP? 
� Probable future sacrifices of resources 

� Little or no discretion to avoid the sacrifice 

�Transaction or event giving rise to the obligation has occurred 

�Classification on a continuum 

�Examples: 

�Operating leases 

�Contingencies, i.e., lawsuits…. 

�Motivation for off balance sheet financing? 

22 
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1

Accounting for 
Marketable Securities

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 7, 2004
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2

Marketable Securities: Agenda
Understand when accounting departs from 
the “transactions- based” model and 
towards market-driven valuations
Illustrate the role of judgment in applying 
the lower-of-cost- or-market (LCM) rule for 
inventory 
Understand how marketable securities are 
valued on companies’ Balance Sheets 
Understand the Income Statement effects 
of valuation adjustments
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3

Should changes in market 
value be recognized?

Accounts receivable
Estimates of uncollectibles
Changes in credit risk

Inventory
Purchase/production cost
Changes in input prices, obsolescence

Fixed Assets
Acquisition cost (historical basis)
Obsolescence
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4

Lower of cost or market rule 
for Inventory

When Market Value of Inventory  <  Capitalized Cost
Loss on inventory write-down = Capitalized cost - Market 

Value
This is added to Cost of Goods Sold, expense increases, 
income decreases

Market value = Lower of the replacement cost and selling 
price

Once inventory is written down in the balance sheet, 
it cannot be “written up” in subsequent periods

Reliable evidence is absent to write up inventory

Issues
Susceptibility to write-downs of LIFO vs.  FIFO
“Hidden reserves” and income smoothingwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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5

Valuation Adjustments: K-Mart

On July 25, 2000, Kmart announced strategic actions designed to make its 
stores, inventory, and information systems more effective. It took a $290 million 
pretax charge “to state the inventory at its net realizable value” and $75 million “to 
reflect the anticipated loss in value of inventory at the closed locations...”  Total is 
$365 million. - Source: Kmart Corporation Press Release. “Kmart 
Corporation Announces Strategic Actions to Enhance Financial Performance.” 25 July 2000. 
http://www.kmartcorp.com/corp/story/pressrelease/archive_00/news/pr000725.stm (accessed July 12, 2004).

13 Weeks Ended July 26, 2000  
($ in millions)                                           Charge For                Excluding                      

As Reported      Strategic Actions          Charge

Sales                              $   8,998                 $  - $  8,998 
Cost of sales, buying 

and occupancy                 7,518                   365    7,153 
Gross margin                      1,480                  (365)  1,845 
Data Source: Kmart Corporation Press Release. “Kmart Corporation Reports Second Quarter 2001 Results.” 23 August 
2001. http://www.kmartcorp.com/corp/investor/financialpress/earnings/pr010823.stm (accessed July 12, 2004).www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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6

Should changes in market value of 
Marketable Securities be recognized?

Marketable securities
Corporate and government bonds, treasuries
Common stock
Derivative instruments: options, swaps, etc.

What is different about marketable securities 
such that both gains and losses can be 
recognized?

Objective (i.e., reliable, verifiable) market values of 
the assets are easily available

Enron troubles due in part to the reliance on 
prices of illiquid securitieswww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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7

New Accounting Rules 
(adopted in 1994) SFAS 115

Prior to 1994, marketable securities 
involving stock and bonds are valued at 
“lower of cost or market” on a portfolio 
basis

SFAS 115: Mark-to-market accounting:  
gains and losses treated similarly
New classifications

Trading securities (debt and equity)
Available for sale (debt and equity)
Held-to-maturity (debt only)
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8

New Accounting Rules 
(adopted in 1994) SFAS 115

Controversy:   where should changes in 
market value be reported?

Taxes are paid/credited only on realized 
gains/losses
Deferred taxes on unrealized (paper) 
gains/losses
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9

Marketable Securities

Trading securities (debt and equity)
Acquired for short-term profit potential
Changes in market value reported in the income statement (net of
taxes), investment marked to market in the balance sheet
Purchases and disposals reported in operating section of SCF

Held to maturity (debt only)
Acquired with ability and intent to hold to maturity
No changes in market value reported in the income statement, thus 
investment carried at historical cost in the balance sheet
Interest income reported in operating section of SCF 

Available for sale (debt and equity)
Securities not classified as either of above
Changes in market value reported in “Other Equity” (net of taxes), 
instead of the income statement! 
Purchases and disposals reported in investing section of SCF
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10

What Is “Other Equity”?
So far, what have we seen in class?
Stockholders’ Equity (SE) = 
Contributed capital (CC) + Retained Earnings 
(RE)
The above is a simplification! It is known as 
the “Clean Surplus Equation”. 
In fact, Clean Surplus is often violated
SE = CC + RE + Other Equity
What causes changes in “Other Equity”?

Changes in the market value of AFS securities, for 
one!
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Marketable Securities:  Income patterns
Trading                                      Available for Sale

-1,500

2,500

4,500
5,500

-1,500

2,500

4,500
5,500

02       03        04 02       03        04
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12

Marketable Securities:  Income patterns

Trading                                      Available for Sale
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Reclassifications of Marketable 
Securities

Trading to Available for sale
Gains or losses of the period recognized on 
reclassification date
Subsequent market value changes reported in 
“Other Equity”

Available for sale to Trading
Cumulative gains or losses, including those of 
current period,  recognized on reclassification date
Subsequent market value changes reported in the 
income statementwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Why does recognition of 
gains/losses matter?

Former SEC Chairman Breeden, on mark-to-market (ca 1990):
“If you are in a volatile business, then your balance sheet and income statement should 
reflect that volatility. Furthermore, we have seen significant abuse of managed earnings. 
Too often companies buy securities with an intent to hold them as investments, and then 
miraculously, when they rise in value, the companies decide it's time to sell them. 
Meanwhile, their desire to hold those securities that are falling in value grows ever 
stronger. So companies report the gains and hide the losses.”
Current SEC Chairman Arthur Levitt, Jr (1997):
“It is unacceptable to allow American investors to remain in the dark about the 
consequences of a $23 trillion derivatives exposure.  We support the independence of the 
FASB as they turn on the light.”
Federal Reserve Chairman Greenspan, on derivatives (ca 1997):
“Putting the unrealized gains and losses of open derivatives contracts onto companies’ 
income statements would introduce ‘artificial’ volatility to their earnings and equity.  
Shareholders would become confused; management might forego sensible hedging 
strategies out of purely window dressing concerns.”www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

216
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



15

A compromise in GAAP?

Recognize all unrealized gains/losses for “trading 
securities” in Net Income                                

Mark “available for sale” securities to market value, but 
don’t report changes in the income statement

Reduces earnings volatility
Managers dislike income volatility

They complain similarly about other accounting method changes 
that increase reported earnings volatility even though underlying 
cash flows are unaffected

Ignore value changes for “held to maturity” categorywww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Marketable Securities in other 
countries

Canada: LCM for investments classified as current 
assets; historical cost for non-current assets, but 
recognize “permanent” declines in value
Mexico: Carry marketable securities at net realizable 
value, report gains/losses in the income statement; 
LCM for other investments
Japan: Marking-to-market for marketable securities
Others: Typically either LCM or mark-to-market, 
exclusively
International Accounting Standards: Similar to US 
GAAP
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Summary

Valuation adjustment necessary when changes in 
market values are objectively measurable
Lower of cost or market applied to inventory valuation
New GAAP in marketable securities: mark-to-market 
treats gains and losses equally
Disclosure vs.  Recognition in mark-to-market 
accounting:  

Not all gains and losses are reported in the income statement

A compromise! 
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Long-lived Assets 

15.511 Corporate Accounting


Summer 2004 

Professor SP Kothari

Sloan School of Management 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

June 29, 2004
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Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

� Caused by change in asset life or Salvage Value 
� Apply the change prospectively, i.e., to future years (no 

restatement of past years’ results) 
� Example: Cost = $100K, SV = 0, Initial UL estimate of 5 

years. After 2nd year, spend $30K on improvement that 
extends UL by 3 years (i.e., to total of 8). 
� What is annual depreciation expense for each of the first two 

years? 

� What is book value at the end of 2nd year? 

� How do we account for the improvement? 

� What is annual depreciation expense for years 3 and beyond? 
2 
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Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

�	 Example: Cost = $100K, SV = 0, Initial UL estimate of 5 years. After 2nd 
year, spend $30K on improvement that extends UL by 3 years (i.e., to 
total of 8). 

�	 What is annual depreciation expense for each of the first two years? 

�	 $(100 – 0)/5 = $20K 

�	 What is book value at the end of 2nd year? 

�	 $[100 – (20*2)] K = $60k 

�	 How do we account for the improvement? 

� Capitalize the improvement costs. BV increases to $ (60+30) = 90K 

�	 What is annual depreciation expense for years 3 and beyond? 

� Years left = (5-2) + 3 = 6


� Therefore, depreciation expense = $90K/6 = $15

3 
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Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

– Acc. = L Ret. 
Depr 

Cash PP&E 
Earn 

Acquire 

PP&E


Yr 1 

Depr.

Yr 2 

Depr

Improve

ment

Year 3 

Depr.
 4 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

223
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

– Acc. = L Ret. 
Depr 

Cash PP&E 
Earn 

Acquire –100 100 
PP&E


Yr 1 

Depr.

Yr 2 

Depr

Improve

ment

Year 3 

Depr.
 5 
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Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

– Acc.Cash PP&E = L Ret. 
Depr Earn 

Acquire –100
 100

PP&E


Yr 1 
 –20 
Depr. 
Yr 2 

20 

–20 
Depr

Improve

ment

Year 3 

Depr.


20


6 
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Changes in Depreciation 
Estimates 

– Acc.Cash PP&E = L Ret. 
Depr Earn 

Acquire –100
 100

PP&E


Yr 1 
 –20 
Depr. 
Yr 2 

20


–20 
Depr 
Improve 

20 

–30 +30

ment

Year 3 

Depr.
 7 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

226
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Changes in Depreciation 

Estimates 

– Acc.Cash PP&E = L Ret. Earn 
Depr 

Acquire –100
 100 
PP&E 
Yr 1 –20 
Depr. 
Yr 2 

20


–20 
Depr 
Improve 

20 

–30 +30 
ment 
Year 3 –15 
Depr. 

15

8 
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Disposal (retirement): 

Gain or Loss 

� Computation: 
� Gain (Loss) = Proceeds from selling the asset - book value, 
�	 where BV = Acquisition cost - Accumulated Depreciation 


associated with the asset

�	 Bookkeeping: Remove asset’s historical cost and 

accumulated depreciation from the balance sheet and
record Gain (Loss). 

�	 Example: At end of 7th year, when BV is $15K, sell Asset
from last example for scrap value of $2K. 

Cash + PP&E - Acc. Dep. + OA = L + CC + RE 
BB . 130K  115K . . . . 
Sale 
EB 

9 
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Disposal (retirement): 

Gain or Loss 

� Computation: 
� 

� 

associated with the asset 

Gain (Loss) = Proceeds from selling the asset - book value, 
where BV = Acquisition cost - Accumulated Depreciation 

�	 Bookkeeping: Remove asset’s historical cost and 
accumulated depreciation from the balance sheet and
record Gain (Loss). 

�	 Example: At end of 7th year, when BV is $15K, sell Asset
from last example for scrap value of $2K. 

Cash + PP&E - Acc. Dep. + OA = L + CC + RE 
BB . 130K  115K . . . . 
Sale 2K (130K) (115K) (13) 
EB 0 0 10 
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Disposal 

Book value at time of sale = 15

Gross PP&E Acc. Deprecn. Sale value =  2


Book value after sale = 0 
115
115
130
 130


Loss on sale (RE)Cash 

13k 
2k 

11 
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Gain/loss on sale of asset –

book keeping 

Dr Cash 002k 
Dr Loss on sale of asset 013k 
Dr Acc. Deprecn. 115k 
Cr PP&E 130k 

12 
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A brief review of the SCF


� Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities: 

� Report Cash Used to Purchase PP&E


� Report Cash Rec’d (if any) from Disposing off PP&E


� Cash From (Used by) Financing Activities: 

� What if PP&E is purchased using borrowed funds?


� Cash From (Used by) Operating Activities: 
� Under the Indirect Method, firms start with Reported Net Income and 

remove non-cash effects 
� What non-cash effects of PP&E bookkeeping are embedded in Net 

Income? 
13 
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An Application: Inferring PP&E 
Events 

Following are from Nike’s financial statements 

Balance Sheet 1998 1997 
Property, plant and equipment,net (Note 3)  1,153.1 922.4 
Identifiable intangible assets (Notes 1 and 6) 435.8 464.2 

Statement of Cash Flows -- Operations 1998 
Net Income $399.6 
Depreciation 184.5 
Amortization and other 49.0 

Statement of Cash Flows -- Investing 
Additions to property, plant and equipment (505.9) 
Disposals of property 16.8 

- Data source: Nike, Inc. Fiscal Year 1998 Annual Report. 1999. 

14 
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An Application: Inferring 
PP&E Events 

Property, plant and equipment includes: 

1998 1997


Land $93.0 $90.8


Buildings 337.3 241.1


Machinery and equipment 887.4  735.7


Construction in process 248.2 151.6


1,819.6 1,425.8


Less accumulated depreciation 666.5 503.4


$1,153.1 $922.4


“Capitalized interest expense was $6.5 MM, $2.8 MM, and $0.9 MM 
for the fiscal years ended May 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 
respectively.” 

- Data source: Nike, Inc. Fiscal Year 1998 Annual Report. 1999. 
15 
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An Application: Inferring 
PP&E Events 

The change in Nike’s Accumulated Depreciation account is 
$666.5 - $503.4 = $163.1MM.  

What 1998 events probably accounted for this change? 

The change in Nike’s gross PP&E account is 
$1,819.6 - $1,425.8 = $393.8 MM.  

What 1998 events probably accounted for this change? 

16 
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An Application: Inferring PP&E 
Events 

PP&E (A) 
Beg Balance 

Additions  

Disposals


Ending balance 

Accumulated depreciation (XA) 
Beg Balance 
Depreciation expense 


Acc Dep of disposed off 

assets


Ending balance 

17 
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An Application: Inferring 
PP&E Events 

PP&E (A) 

Beg Balance 1425.8 


Additions 505.9 

112.1 Disposals 

Ending balance 1819.6 

Accumulated depreciation (XA) 
503.4 Beg Balance 
184.5 Depreciation expense 

Acc Dep of disposed off 21.4
assets 

 666.5 Ending balance 
18 
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An Application: Inferring 
PP&E Events 

Investing CF from disposals of property = $16.8 

But the PP&E account shows disposals = $112.1 and Acc Dep 
associated with disposals = $21.4 

Hence, BV of disposals = $112.1 - $21.4 = $90.7 

Loss on disposals = $90.7 - $16.8 = $73.9 

19 
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Tax and Timing Effects


� Tax Depreciation 
� Accelerated depreciation 
� No judgment in determining depreciation expense 

� Tax Reporting ≠ Financial Reporting ==> timing 
differences in measurement of income 
� Why would a firm prefer accelerated depreciation for tax 

purposes? 
� Why does government allow this? 
� Why not use the tax method for financial reporting? 

�	 Different depreciation for tax and financial reporting 
gives rise to Deferred Taxes 

20 
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Tax and Timing Effects


Cambridge Innovations bought a $90,000 asset at
the beginning of 2001. 

Financial reporting Tax reporting 
Asset life 3 years               2 years 
Depreciation rate Straight line MACRS: 60%, 40% 
Residual value $0 $0 

Schedule of depreciation 
Year Financial Tax  

reporting reporting 
depreciation depreciation 

2001 30,000 54,000 
2002 30,000 36,000 
2003 30,000 

Depreciation Accumulated 
difference difference, 

end of the year 
24,000 24,000 
6,000 30,000 

(30,000) 0 
21 
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Accounting for Timing 
Differences: 2001 

�	 In Year 1, income before depreciation is $80,000 for

both financial and tax reporting. The tax rate is 30% 

with no anticipated change.


Financial reporting Tax reporting 
NI before Depr 80,000 80,000

– Depreciation 30,000 –54,000

= NI before taxes 50,000 26,000


× 30% × 30% 
Tax Payable 7,800 
Tax Expense 15,000 

Tax Expense = Tax Payable + ???

??? = $7,200 is “Deferred Tax Expense”
 22 
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Deferred Taxes over Time


Deferred taxes caused by timing differences are temporary; 
they reverse over time. 

Year Financial            Tax Depreciation Deferred Acc. Depr Def Tax 
reporting reporting difference Tax Difference, Liability 

Year depreciation depreciation Expense (EB) (EB) 
2001 30,000             54,000 24,000 7,200 24,000 7,200 
2002 30,000             36,000 6,000 1,800 30,000 9,000 
2003 30,000 - (30,000) (9,000) 0 0 

� Timing differences that create / increase deferred taxes are called 
originating differences 

� Timing differences that remove / decrease deferred taxes are called 
reversing differences 

23 
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Summary


�	 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of capital 
expenditures over the revenue-producing period 
of a long-lived asset (matching principle). 

�	 Depreciation is a function of acquisition cost, 
economic life, depreciation rate, and salvage 
value. 

�	 Depreciation does not involve cash. Only the 
acquisition and disposal of long-lived assets 
involve cash. 

�	 Deferred taxes arise due to differences in book 
(GAAP) and tax depreciation. 

24 
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1

Introduction

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 7, 2004
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2

Session 1:
Agenda

Administrative matters
Discussion of Accounting

Why is accounting interesting?
Why do we need accounting?

Course objective
Sophisticated financial statement 
user

An overview of information in 
financial statements
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3

The required materials are:
10th Edition of Stickney and Weil

Financial Accounting: An Introduction to Concepts, 
Methods, and Uses

Case Packet 
Class web server

Syllabus
Schedule
Homework assignments
Sample exams
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4

Course Grading
Written Problem Sets 25%
Midterm   30%
Final 45%
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5

Accounting Introduction
Discussion of Accounting

Why is accounting interesting?
Why do we need accounting?

Course objective
Sophisticated financial statement 
user

An overview of financial 
information

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

248
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



6

What is Accounting trying to do? 
Demand for Information

Financial Accounting
Provides information primarily to people outside the company
Provides information that would be helpful in attracting capital

Equity and debt (useful in debt contracts)
Credit from suppliers
Customers 
Employees

Provides information helpful in monitoring and evaluating 
management performance

Managerial Accounting
Provides information to people inside the company

Internal investment decisions
Performance evaluation

Tax Accounting
Provides information to the tax authorities
Legal to prepare separate books for tax and financial purposes
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7

Why do We Need Financial Accounting?

Company

Outsiders
- investors
- employees
- suppliers

Resources
Today

Resources
Tomorrow
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8

Why do We Need Financial Accounting?

Company

Outsiders
- Investors
- Suppliers
- Creditors

Resources
Today

Resources
Tomorrow

Information
(e.g., financial
statements)

Financial accounting promotes the exchange of resourcesFinancial accounting promotes the exchange of resources
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9

Nature of Financial Accounting 
Information

Useful to those making investment and credit decisions, 
who have a reasonable understanding of business and 
economic activities.
Helpful to 

present and potential investors 
creditors 
other users 
in assessing the amount, timing, and uncertainty of future cash 
flows.

Provides information about economic resources, the 
claims to those resources, and the changes in them.
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How important is this information?
The Reaction of Wal-Mart Stock to Announcement of 3rd Quarter Earnings

54

54.5

55
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58.5
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59.5
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O
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K
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R
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E
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Financial Accounting 
Introduction

Discussion of Accounting
Why is accounting interesting?
Why do we need accounting?

Course objective
Sophisticated financial 
statement user

An overview of financial 
information
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WHAT IS OUR COURSE 
OBJECTIVE?

To become intelligent users of accounting 
information.  Examples: 

Managers use accounting information in making 
investment decisions
Investors use accounting information in valuing 
stocks
Bankers rely on accounting information in 
deciding whether to lend money to a business 
and in assessing the risk of the loan
Accounting information is crucial in evaluating 
the performance of employees at various levels 
in an organization
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WHAT IS OUR COURSE 
OBJECTIVE?

To become intelligent users of accounting 
information
Be comfortable looking through an annual report 

Learn the language and techniques
Begin to develop the ability to use financial 
statements to assess a company’s performance 

Have a sense of the limitations of financial 
statement data

What are not our objectives
to train you to be an accountant or bookkeeper
Financial Statement Analysis - take 15.535
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World of a Sophisticated 
Financial Statement User

Events are occurrences that affect the firm.

Examples include:
1) Microsoft sued by the Justice Department

2) McDonald’s sells hamburgers

3) United Airlines workers go on strike

4) The Gap announces a new marketing strategy for
its Old Navy Clothing stores
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World of a Sophisticated Financial 
Statement User

Events / Actions

Rules
&

Management
choices

Financial Statements
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World of a Sophisticated Financial 
Statement User

Rules
&

Management
choice

Financial Statements

Events

Financial Accounting = translates events 
into financial statements

Generally
Accepted 
Accounting
Principles (GAAP)

Management selects 
from alternative rules 
and from allowable 
estimates under GAAP
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Three keys to becoming a sophisticated 
financial statement user

Understand the rules and management’s 
discretion

Understand what explains the rules and 
the type of management discretion 

Incentives

Understand how events affect firm value 
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Understanding the genesis of 
the rules 
Demand for independence: Accounting enters 
objective, verifiable information into accounting 
records

Information produced by managers alone is not 
believable.  Outside investors demand 
independently audited financial information 
In the process, accounting misses out on forward-
looking information that might be valuable, but lacks 
objective evidence (e.g., research in progress)
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Understanding the genesis of 
the rules 

Asymmetry
Asymmetric treatment of good and bad news
Faced with uncertain bad news, accounting 
tends to enter it into the records 
Faced with uncertain good news, tendency to 
ignore it
Why? 

Demand for bad news
Creditors with no upside, but all the downside

Investors believe bad news disclosed by 
management, but skeptical of good news unless 
supported by objective evidence 

Management incentives affect believability of their 
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Financial Accounting 
Introduction

Discussion of Accounting
Why is accounting interesting?
Why do we need accounting?

Course objective
Sophisticated financial statement user

An overview of financial information
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Accounting is complex and 
interesting because……

Diversity of businesses and events
Many different players
Diverse incentives

Economic
Other

Uncertainty
Many regulations
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Financial Accounting 
Introduction

Discussion of Accounting
Why is accounting interesting
Why do we need accounting? 

Course objective
Sophisticated financial statement 
user

An overview of financial 
information
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Financial Reporting 
Requirements

Audited Annual Report (10-K)
Unaudited Quarterly Reports (10-Q)
Current Reports (8-K)

within 10 days of the end of a month 
containing a significant event (e.g., 
major asset sales, changes in 
ownership, bankruptcy, changing the 
auditor)

Foreign Companies (20-F)
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Focus: The Annual Report

The Management Letter
Management discussion on developments during the 
year and current state of the company

The Financial Statements

The Auditors’ Report
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Financial Reports:
The Auditors’ Report

GAAS (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards)
Reasonable assurance that financial statements are free of 
material misstatement
Assess the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management

Actual opinion
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position, the results of operations, etc.
are in conformity with GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles).
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Financial Reports:
The Auditors’ Report
Management responsible for 

the preparation and integrity of the financial statements, etc.
Statements prepared in accordance with GAAP.
Estimated amounts based on management's best estimates 
and judgments.

Maintenance of an internal control system to ensure that 
assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly 
authorized, recorded and reported.

The Board has an Audit Committee composed 
entirely of outside directors 

This committee appoints the auditor who has direct access 
to the Audit Committee.
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Financial Statements

Contain primarily historical Information
Balance Sheet 

Assets, liabilities & owners’ equity
Income Statement 

Revenue (-) Expenses = Net Income
Statement of retained earnings 

Cumulative sum of undistributed profits
Statement of cash flows 

Operating, Investing and Financing activities
Footnotes 

Significant accounting policies, estimates, etc.
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Financial Statements: Balance Sheet

Balance sheet
Statement of the financial position of a business as of a 
certain date.

Assets
Resources owned by a corporation, e.g., cash, accounts 
receivable, equipment, land

Liabilities
amounts/services owed by the company, e.g., loans 
payable, accounts payable, customer advances, etc.

Stockholders’ equity 
initial investment by the owners (capital stock -- common 
and preferred stocks) 
Plus the cumulative sum of undistributed profits (retained 
earnings)
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Financial Statements: Income Statement

Income statement measures the “performance” of a 
company over a period of time
Revenues -- a measure of economic benefits generated by 
the sale of products or providing of services over a period 
of time
Expenses -- a measure of economic sacrifices incurred to 
“earn” the revenues of  a  given period
Examples of expenses -- cost of inventory sold, salaries to 
employees, rent and lighting, advertising, .......
Net  income = revenues (-) expenses
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Dividends

Are dividends paid to owners considered an 
expense?

Owners are residual claimants
Dividends are distributions to the owners out of the 
profits earned by the business
In determining accounting profits to the “residual” 
owners, we only subtract the costs of all factors of 
production, e.g., physical capital (depreciation), 
human capital (salaries), debt capital (interest 
cost), etc.
Dividends are not a factor of production
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Financial Statements: Retained 
Earnings & Shareholders’ Equity

Retained earnings 
A measure of undistributed profits of a business
Do not include capital contributed by owners

Retained earnings = Cumulative sum of profits 
earned from the inception of business (-) 
Cumulative sum of all “dividends” distributed to 
the owners from the inception of business
Statement of shareholders’ equity describes the 
change in retained earnings over a period of time
(e.g., a year)

Beginning balance in retained earnings
Add Net income earned during the period
Subtract Dividends distributed during the period
Ending balance in retained earnings
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Summary

Accounting is a complex field contrary to 
common perceptions.

Financial accounting information facilitates the 
exchange of resources.

To become a sophisticated financial statement 
user, you need to understand how the 
information in financial statements is recorded.
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Receivables and Revenue 
Recognition 

15.511 Corporate Accounting


Summer 2004 

Professor SP Kothari 
Sloan School of Management 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

June 21, 2004


www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

276
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Why do we care about revenue 

recognition?


� Revenue has a BIG impact on bottom-line profitability ==> 
managers may be tempted to manage revenue 

� Large Sample Evidence: over 40% of SEC enforcement actions 
on accounting issues deal with Revenue Recognition 

2 
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Criteria for revenue recognition

� Under accrual accounting, a firm recognizes revenue 


when it has: 


� Delivered goods and the title is transferred to the 

buyer


� Performed all, or a substantial portion of, the services 

to be provided. 


� Incurred a substantial majority of the costs, and the 

remaining costs can be reasonably estimated. 


� Received either cash, a receivable, or some other 

asset for which


� a reasonably precise value can be assigned


� collectibility is reasonably assured. 


� Guidance on revenue recognition in SAB 101 (Details 

to those interested on the next slide)


3 
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Some Details of SAB 101

z	 Fuelled by recent accounting scandals 

z	 Issued by SEC: SAB 101 took effect in calendar year 2000. 

z In general, SEC said that the most common reasons for changes in revenue 
recognition policies to comply with SAB 101 were: 
z Deferral of revenue on product sales until such products are delivered, and title 

transfers to the customer. 
z	 Deferral of various up-front, or prepaid, fees for which the company had not completed 

a separate earnings process. 
z	 Deferral of revenue until certain non-perfunctory seller obligations (such as equipment 

installation) were completed. 
z	 Deferral of revenue that is contingent on the occurrence of some future event (such as 

the achievement by a lessee of certain minimum sales thresholds) until that event 
occurs. 

z	 Did the SEC over-react with SAB 101? Altamuro, Jennifer, Anne Beatty, and
Joseph Weber. “Motives for Early Revenue Recognition: Evidence from SEC 
Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 101.” 1 August 2002. 

4 
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Recognition Criteria 
Cash Basis vs Accrual Basis 

Accrual Cash


Revenue


Expense


5 
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Cash Basis vs Accrual Basis

Recognition Criteria 

Accrual Cash 

Revenue when $ rec’d


Expense when $ paid


6 
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Cash Basis vs Accrual Basis

Recognition Criteria 

Accrual Cash 

Revenue when earned when $ rec’d 
and realized 

Expense when incurred when $ paid 

7 
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Examples of revenue recognition events 
(common cases) 

z At the time of sale 
z Title passes to the buyer and delivery takes place 
z Reasonable estimate of uncollectibles 
z Reasonable estimate of sales returns 
z Reasonable estimation of all other material expenses 

representing uncertain future outflows (e.g., warranty 
costs). 

z Most common in retail, wholesale & manufacturing 
z Even when right of return exists? 

8 
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Revenue manipulation: 
Bill & Hold 
z Hardware 

z Revenue from hardware sales or sales-type leases is recognized when the 
product is shipped. 

z	 Recent experience of Sunbeam 
“…. In the fourth quarter of last year Sunbeam recorded $50 million in sales of 
cooking grills under an ‘early buy’ program … some $35 million were 
categorized ‘bill and hold’ sales and never even left Sunbeam’s warehouses.” 
-- Laing, Jonathan R. “Dangerous Games: Did “Chainsaw Al” Dunlap Maunfacture Sunbeam’s Earnings Last 
Year?” Barron’s, 8 June 1998, 17. 

z	 Agco Corp – SEC investigating their accounting practices 
“Agco stated that in some instances it recognizes revenue when equipment 
remains on its premises after having been invoiced to the dealer. These 
transactions occur at a dealer's request, added Agco, usually so the dealer can 
arrange for its own transportation of the equipment.” 
-- Taub, Stephen. “SEC Digs Into Agco’s Accounting.” CFO.com, 6 February 2004, 
http://www.cfo.com/article/1,5309,12099%7C%7CT%7C121,00.html?f=TodayInFinance_Inside (accessed July 9, 
2004). 

9 
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Is this accounting manipulation? –

channel stuffing & price discounts


z	 Sunbeam 
“... Sunbeam jammed as many sales as it could into 1997 to pump both the 
top and bottom lines. ... Sunbeam either sent more goods than had been
ordered by customers or shipped goods even after an order had been 
cancelled. …” 
-- Laing, Jonathan R. “Dangerous Games: Did “Chainsaw Al” Dunlap Maunfacture 
Sunbeam’s Earnings Last Year?” Barron’s, 8 June 1998, 17. 

z Recent experience of Bristol-Myers Squibb Co. 
z SEC investigating “whether it improperly inflated revenue last year by as 

much as $1 billion through use of sales incentives...Drug makers, like
many other manufacturers, can boost near-term sales by extending 
lower prices to wholesalers, encouraging them to load up. But such 
"channel-stuffing" hurts later sales.” 
-- Harris, Gardiner. “Bristol-Myers Faces Inquiry By SEC Into Revenue Problem.” The 
Wall Street Journal, 12 July 2002, B6. 

z	 Systematic evidence: Roychowdhury, Sugata. "Management of Earnings through 
the Manipulation of Real Activities that Affect Cash Flow from Operations.” MIT Sloan 
School of Management working paper, 25 November 2003. 
http://ssrn.com/abstract=477941 (last accessed July 9, 2004) 

10 
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Examples of revenue recognition events 
(Uncommon cases) 

z During production 
z Establishment of firm contract price 
z Reasonable assurance of collection 
z Reasonable estimate of cost of completion 
z E.g., defense and construction contracts. 

z At Completion of Production 
z Existence of deterministic or stable selling price 
z No substantial cost of marketing 
z E.g., precious metals, agricultural products 

11 
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Examples of revenue recognition events 
(Uncommon cases) 

z At the time of cash collection 
z Impossible to value assets received with fair degree of 

accuracy. 
z E.g., some real estate land development deals. 

z Installment approach 
z Profits recognized in proportion to cash collected 

z Cost recovery approach 
z No profit recognized until all the costs have been 

recovered. 

12 
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Nuts & Bolts Hardware - sales


z	 Its Year 1: Nuts & Bolts makes sales of microwave 
ovens for $ 10,000 

z Say customers paid $4,000 for these purchases with

cash, the rest with their Nuts & Bolts credit cards


z	 So 
Dr Cash 4,000 
Dr Accounts receivables 6,000 

Cr Revenue	 10,000


13 
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Nuts & Bolts Hardware 
receivables 
z When Nuts & Bolts makes its credit sales, it estimates from past 

experience that 5% of its accounts receivables will never be collected 

z What does this imply? 

z What are its accounts receivables actually worth? 

z What is the part of the sale it will actually see? 

z One option: Nuts & Bolts recognizes an expense of $300 and writes 
down its accounts receivable to $ 5,700 

Dr Bad Debt expense 300 
Cr Accounts Receivable 300 

14 
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Nuts & Bolts Hardware - ADA


z Problem – what does Nuts & Bolts not know? – Specific accounts 

z It therefore recognizes Bad Debt expense and creates an Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts (ADA) 

Dr Bad Debt expense 300 
Cr ADA 300 

z On Balance Sheet, accounts receivable are reported net of ADA 
Accounts Receivables 6,000

less ADA 0,300

Net Accounts Receivable 5,700 


z ADA is a contra-asset account! 

15 
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Income Statement and Balance 
Sheet Relations 

Accounts Receivable (A) 
Beg Balance = 0 
Credit Sales = 6,000 

Ending balance = 6,000 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (XA) 
Beg Balance = 0 
Amount of Bad Debt Expense = 300 

Ending balance = 300 

16 
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Nuts & Bolts Hardware – 
write-offs 
z	 Its Year 2 end of quarter 1: For simplicity, assume  no credit sales 

during quarter 1 of Year 2 

z Customers have paid up $ 3,000 
z Dr Cash 3,000 

z Cr Accounts receivables 3,000 

z Also, Customer Smith declares bankruptcy & defaults for $50 
z Nuts & Bolts has now identified a customer who has defaulted: It can 

write off Smith’s Account Receivable 
z Of the original $300 Nuts & Bolts had expected to see as a default, 

what is the amount it still expects to never recover in the future? 
z Which account should reflect this? 
z Dr ADA 50 

z	 Cr Accounts receivables 50 

17 
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Income Statement and Balance 
Sheet Relations 

Accounts Receivable (A) 
Beg Balance = 6,000 

Cash collection = 3,000 

Write-offs = 50 

Ending balance = 2,950 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (XA) 
Beg Balance = 300 

Write-offs = 50 

Ending balance = 250 

18 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

293
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Income Statement and Balance 
Sheet Relations 

Accounts Receivable (A) 
Beg Balance 
Credit Sales 

Cash collected 
Write-offs 

Ending balance 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (XA) 
Beg Balance 
Amount of Bad Debt Expense 

Write-offs 

Ending balance 

19 
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Income Statement and Balance 
Sheet Relations 

- Allowance for doubtful 
Accounts (XA) 

Beginning Balance 

+ Amounts Recorded as Bad 

Debt Expense 

- Amounts Written Off 

= Ending Balance 

Accounts Receivable (A) 


Beginning Balance 

+ Credit Sales 

- Cash Collected 

- Amounts Written Off 

= Ending Balance 


20 
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ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBTS 
(UNCOLLECTIBLES) 

� Methods 


� Direct Write-Off Method 

� Required by IRS 

�Disallowed under GAAP 

� Percentage of Sales 

� Aging 

� How might a firm’s choice of method evolve over time?


21 
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1

Receivables and Revenue 
Recognition

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004
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See Intel Corporation’s consolidated balance sheets: 
December 25, 1999 and December 26, 1998, available at 
http://www.intel.com (last accessed July 9, 2004).
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3

ALLOWANCE FOR RETURNS 
If customer has the right to return the product, the seller must
estimate the dollar value of returns.

Revenue is reported net of the amount expected to be returned.  

Typically, seller sets up a contra-asset account, Allowance for 
Returns:   

• Analogous to Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

• When return actually occurs, reduce both Allowance and face 
value of Accounts Receivable (or Cash) by the invoice amount.

• Return has no effect on Net Income, nor on Net Assets, just as 
Write-off of Uncollectible has no effect on these amounts.

• BSE:     AR - Allowance for Returns = RE

Intel takes a slightly different approach: Deferred Income Liability.
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4

A Quick Look at Intel’s 
Statements

Revenue recognition.  
The company generally recognizes net revenues 
upon the transfer of title. However, certain of the 
company's sales are made to distributors under 
agreements allowing price protection and/or right 
of return on merchandise unsold by the 
distributors. Because of frequent sales price 
reductions and rapid technological obsolescence 
in the industry, Intel defers recognition of 
revenues on shipments to distributors until the 
merchandise is sold by the distributors.
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5

Interpreting Intel’s Revenue 
Footnote
The company generally recognizes net revenues upon the transfer of title.

means that when products ship to customers, Intel recognizes net sales revenue 
(net of allowances for bad debts).

However, certain of the company's sales are made to distributors under 
agreements allowing price protection and/or right of return on merchandise 
unsold by the distributors. 

means that some products are sold to distributors who will resell them.  Intel 
provides a safety net to distributors: returns and price protection.

Because of frequent sales price reductions and rapid technological 
obsolescence in the industry, Intel defers recognition of revenues on 
shipments to distributors until the merchandise is sold by the distributors

means that instead of recognizing sales revenue and related COGS when these 
products ship to distributors, Intel waits for the price/return uncertainty is 
resolved -- giving rise to a Deferred Income Liability.
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DEFERRED INCOME: AN EXAMPLE 

Shipments on 3/1 to OEMs and Distributors: 

Total Billings              $ 350,000  

Direct to OEMs                                     280,000 

To Distributors (PP)                                70,000

COGS                             $ 90,000 

Direct to OEMs                                      72,000 

To Distributors (PP)                               18,000  
• Return / Price Protection expires for $35K of sales on 3/31 

• Invoice Price is reduced from $35K to $25K on the remainder of 
shipment on 4/15
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7

DEFERRED INCOME: AN EXAMPLE

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K
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8

DEFERRED INCOME: AN EXAMPLE

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K

280                                                            280  rev.
(72)                                         (72) exp.

Dr AR 280
Cr Revenue – OEM 280

Dr COGS – OEM 72

Cr Inventory 72www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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9

DEFERRED INCOME: AN EXAMPLE

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K

280                                                            280  rev.
(72)                                         (72) exp.

70                                70
(18)            (18)

Dr AR 70
Cr Def Inc– Distr 70

Dr Def Inc – COGS to Distr 18

Cr Inventory 18www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Deferred Income Liability 

COGS to distributors =18 Sales to distributors = 70

InventoryAccounts receivables

1870

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

306
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



11

DEFERRED INCOME: Confirmed 
sales

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K

280                                                            280  rev.
(72)                                         (72) exp.

70                                70
(18)            (18)

(35)                     35 rev.
9                     (9) exp.

Dr Def Inc 35
Cr Revenue – Distr 35

Dr COGS – Distr 9

Cr Def Inc – COGS to Distr 9www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Deferred Income Liability 

COGS to distributors =18 Sales to distributors = 70

COGS corresponding to 
confirmed sales = 9

Confirmed Sales = 35

COGS Revenues

359
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DEFERRED INCOME: Price 
reductions

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K

280                                                            280  rev.
(72)                                         (72) exp.

70                                70
(18)            (18)

(35)                     35 rev.
9                     (9) exp.

(10)                              (10)

Dr Deferred income 10

Cr AR 10
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Deferred Income Liability 

COGS to distributors =18 Sales to distributors = 70

Confirmed Sales = 35 COGS corresponding to 
confirmed sales = 9

Price reductions = 10

Accounts receivables

70 10
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15

DEFERRED INCOME: Confirmed 
sales (2nd lot)

AR    +    INV
OEM sales

Deferred Income   +     RE

Distrib. Sales

PP Expires
For $35K

PP Applies
For 35K

280                                                            280  rev.
(72)                                         (72) exp.

70                                70
(18)            (18)

(35)                     35 rev.
9                     (9) exp.

(10)                              (10)
(25) 25rev.

Remaining PP expires           9                          (9) exp.

Dr Def Inc 25
Cr Revenue – Distr 25

Dr COGS – Distr 9

Cr Def Inc – COGS to Distr 9www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Deferred Income Liability 

Sales to distributors = 70COGS to distributors =18
COGS corresponding to 
confirmed sales = 9

Confirmed Sales = 35

COGS

9

35

Revenues

Price reductions = 10
COGS corresponding to 
second lot = 9

Confirmed Sales
(2nd lot) = 25

88
88

25

9 60
18
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Distributors pay up

Accounts receivablesCash

70 10
6035+25 = 60

0
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Recognizing Revenue: 
Is additional service required?

Example of Warranty Coverage: Seller promises to repair or 
replace defective products for a specified period of time
Sales transaction commits seller to incur uncertain, but 
predictable, future costs: must be matched to sales revenues
Example:  

On 7/1, MicroSystems sells 30 laptops for $2,000 each on 
account. 
Warranty period of 1 year, parts and labor, applies to each unit.
Past experience indicates that warranty costs will average 
$40/unit and that 5% of credit sales will not be collected.
As of December 31, actual warranty costs incurred are $700.  
$50K has been collected from the customers, and one account 
of $2,000 has been written off.
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Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 

Accrue warranty 
exp. 
Accrue bad debts 

Collect cash 

Incur warranty 
costs 
Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 
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Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 
Accrue bad debts 

Collect cash 

Incur warranty 
costs 
Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

 
 Dr Accounts Receivables 60,000

Cr Revenues 60,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 

1,200 –1,200

Accrue bad debts 

Collect cash 

Incur warranty 
costs 
Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

 
 

Dr Warranty Expense 1,200
Cr Accrued Warranty Liability 1,200 www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 

1,200 –1,200

Accrue bad debts –3,000 –3,000

Collect cash 

Incur warranty 
costs 
Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

 
 Dr Bad debt expense 3,000

Cr ADA 3,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 

1,200 –1,200

Accrue bad debts –3,000 –3,000

Collect cash +50,000 –50,000

Incur warranty 
costs 
Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

 
 Dr Cash 50,000

Cr Accounts receivables 50,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

319
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



24

Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 

1,200 –1,200

Accrue bad debts –3,000 –3,000

Collect cash +50,000 –50,000

Incur warranty 
costs 

–700 – 700

Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

 
 Dr Accrued warranty Liability 700
Cr Cash 700www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

320
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



25

Accounting for Warranty Expense 
(with a refresher on Bad Debt 
expense...)
 

Cash + A/R – ADA 

Accrued 
Warranty
Liability

+ Ret. 
Earn.

7/1 Sale 60,000 60,000

Accrue warranty 
exp. 

1,200 –1,200

Accrue bad debts –3,000 –3,000

Collect cash +50,000 –50,000

Incur warranty 
costs 

–700 –700

Write-off uncoll. 
A/R 

–2,000 +2,000

 
 

Dr ADA 2,000
Cr Accounts receivables 2,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Cash Flow Analysis

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 16, 2004 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

322
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



2

Statement of Cash Flows

Reports operating cash flow as well as 
other cash flow information.

Provides important information to investors 
and creditors. 

In particular, information about 
differences in the timing of revenue and 
expense recognition under GAAP and the 
associated cash inflows and outflows. 
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Statement of Cash Flows

The cash flow statement separates changes in 
cash into three categories: 

operating cash flow
investing cash flow
financing cash flow. 

The statement sums to the actual change in 
cash during the year 

The actual change refers to the difference between the 
beginning and ending cash balances reported on the 
balance sheet.
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Why focus on a cash flow statement?

Net income reported on the income statement provides an 
important measure of performance. 

However, in the absence of cash flow, income does not pay 
the bills. 

Interest and dividend payments, required principal reductions 
on debt, and capital expenditures for plant and equipment 
and for expansion cannot be made without cash. 

Cash provided by operating activities, also known as 
operating cash flow, is a primary source of cash to meet 
these needs.
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Why focus on a cash flow statement?

In the absence of operating cash flow, cash from other 
sources can be used to cover cash requirements. 

For example, cash can be obtained from on-hand balances 
or nonrecurring asset sales, new debt or equity financing.

These non-operating sources of cash flow can be relied 
upon only in the short run. 

In the long run, operating cash flow is the only reliable 
source of cash available to meet recurring needs. 
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1. Emily’s Bakery
Emily contributes $10,000 in cash

Assets     =     Liabilities     +      Owners’ Equity

Cash                                             Contributed Capital

+$10,000                                          +$10,000

Journal Entry
Dr Cash  10,000

Cr  Contributed capital 10,000
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2. The company borrows $3,000 from 
the bank

Assets        =         Liabilities        +       Owners’ Equity

Cash                      Loans Payable

+$3,000                 +$3,000

Journal Entry
Dr Cash  3,000

Cr Loans payable 3,000
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3. Company purchases equipment for 
$5,000 cash

Assets                                    =         L    +   OE

Cash                Equipment

-$5,000            +$5,000

Journal Entry
Dr Equipment 5,000

Cr Cash 5,000
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4. Company performs service for $12,000.  The 
customer pays $8,000 in cash and promises to 
pay the balance at a later date.

Assets                                   =    L   +  Owners’ Equity

Cash          Receivables                          Retained Earnings

+$8,000         +$4,000                                     +$12,000

Journal Entry
Dr Cash 8,000
Dr Accounts receivable 4,000

Cr Retained earnings (Revenue) 12,000
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5. Company pays  $9,000 for expenses (wages, 
interest, and maintenance)

Assets     =    Liabilities    +    Owners’ Equity

Cash                                         Retained Earnings

-$9,000                                          -$9,000

Journal Entry
Dr Retained Earnings (Expenses) 9,000

Cr Cash  9,000
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6. Company pays a dividend of $1,000

Assets       =      Liabilities    +    Owners’ Equity

Cash                                             Retained Earnings

-$1,000                                            -$1,000

Journal Entry
Dr Retained Earnings (Dividends) 1,000

Cr Cash 1,000 
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Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash A/R Equip. L/P C. Cap. R/E
+10,000 +10,000

+ 3,000 + 3,000

-  5,000 + 5,000

+ 8,000 + 4,000 +12,000

-  9,000 -  9,000

-  1,000 -  1,000

   6,000    4,000     5,000    3,000    10,000 + 2,000

+ + = + +
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Balance Sheet as at December 31, 1997

Assets Amount Liabilities and
Owners’ Equity

Amount

Cash    6,000 Loans Payable    3,000

Receivables    4,000 Contributed
Capital

 10,000

Equipment    5,000 Retained
Earnings

  2,000

Total
Assests $15,000

Total Liabilities
and Owners’
Equity $15,000
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Income Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Revenues:  Fees earned for service              $12,000

Expenses:  Wages, interest, maintenance     $ 9,000

Net income                                                      $ 3,000

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

335
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



15

Transactions and Accounting Equation

Cash A/R Equip. L/P C. Cap. R/E 

+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   

-  5,000  + 5,000    

+ 8,000 + 4,000    +12,000 

-  9,000     -  9,000 

-  1,000     -  1,000 

   6,000    4,000     5,000    3,000    10,000 + 2,000 
 
 

+ + = + +
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Operating activities:
Sale of a service (4)                                    8,000
Payments for expenses (5)                        (9,000)

Net cash from operating activities                   (1,000)
Investing activities:

Purchase of equipment (3)                        (5,000)
Net cash from investing activities                  (5,000)

Financing activities:
Borrowings (2)                                           3,000
Owner contributions (1)                           10,000
Payment of dividends (6)                         (1,000)           12,000

Increase in cash balance                                        6,000
Cash balance at the beginning of the year                       0
Cash balance at the end of the year                             6,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Indirect  versus Direct Cash Flow Formats

• Affects only the operating section of the cash flow 
statement

• Direct Cash Flow Statement
Sale of a service (4)                                      8,000
(-) Payments for expenses (5)                     (9,000)

Net cash from operating activities         (1,000)

• Indirect Cash Flow Statement
Net Income 3,000
(-) Sales to customer on account (4,000)

Net cash from operating activities (1,000)
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Cash flow statement 
In general, differences between net income and CFO (cash flow 
from operations) are captured in operating current asset and 
operating current liability accounts
Think accrued salaries expense: If employees have not been 
paid for the last three days of the year, the journal entry made to 
recognize salaries expense is: 
Dr Wage Expense (-RE) 4,000

Cr Wages Payable (+L) 4,000
Thus, to arrive at CFO, adjustments that need to be made to Net 
Income: 

Subtract net increase in operating current assets other than cash itself
Add net increase in operating current liabilities
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Indirect cash flow statement -
depreciation

What about depreciation?
Net Income = Revenues – Depreciation expenses – Other 
expenses

What is the cash consequence of recording depreciation 
expense? 
How are depreciation expenses recorded? Quick tutorial!
Say, buy PP&E for $ 10 million at the beginning of Year 1 
Estimated life is 10 years 
Estimated scrap value after 10 years: 0
Depreciation method:  straight line
Depreciation expense every year: $(10 million / 10) = $ 1 million
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Quick tutorial on depreciation 
– contd.

To record depreciation
Dr Depreciation (-RE) $ 1 MM

Cr Accum. Depreciation (+XA)   $1 MM
Accumulated depreciation is a contra-asset account 
attached to long-term depreciable assets (like PP&E)
At the end of one year, on balance sheet
Gross value of PP&E: 10 million
Less: accumulated depreciation: 1 million
Net PP&E: 9 million
Therefore:
1. Depreciation expense affects Net income (negatively). 
2. The cash effect is zero
3. The difference is in the Accumulated Depreciation account, NOT 

an operating current asset or an operating current liability
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To arrive at CFO from net 
income

Start with Net Income
Add depreciation expense
Subtract increases in operating non-cash current 
assets
Add increases in operating current liabilities

Arrive at CFO
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To arrive at CFO from net 
income

Start with Net Income
Add depreciation expense
Add any other non-cash (or accrued) expense that does not 
affect operating current assets or current liabilities
Subtract increases in operating non-cash current assets
Add increases in operating current liabilities

Arrive at CFO
Some gray areas

What do you do with interest expense? 
Where are dividends recorded in the cash flow 
statement?
What do you do with marketable securities? (usually 
recorded as current assets on the balance sheet)www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Cash Flow Statement: Indirect-Method 

Scientific Technologies, Inc.
Year Ending December 31, 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $3,698
Adjustments to reconcile net income

Depreciation and amortization 337           
Changes in assets and liabilities

A/R, net (18,411)      
Inventories (652)          
Receivable from parent company 675           
Trade accounts payable 670           
Accrued epxenses 590           
Other (98)            

Cash flows from operating activities 3,379        

Data source: Scientific Technologies Inc. 2003 Annual Report. 2004.
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Cash Flow Statement: Indirect-Method

Cash flows from investing activities
Property and equipment (1,041)       
Sale (purchase) of S-T investments 809           
Cash flows from investing activities (232)          

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on debt (50)            
Reissuance of treasury stock 4               
Dividends (957)          
Cash flows from financing activities (1,003)       

Change in cash and cash equivalent 2,144        
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year 103           
Cash and cash equivalent at end of year 2,247        

Data source: Scientific Technologies Inc. 2003 Annual Report. 2004.
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Cash Flow Statement: Direct Method

Scientific Technologies, Inc.
Year Ending December 31, 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers $24,274
Interest received and other cash income 685           
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (19,107)      
Income taxes paid (2,446)       
Interest paid (7)              
Cash flows from operating activities $3,379

Data source: Scientific Technologies Inc. 2003 Annual Report. 2004.
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American Consumer Products, Inc

Net Income And Positive Operating Cash Flow
A Mature firm

American Consumer Product, Inc.
Years Ending December 31, 1990-1994

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994

Revenue $92,911 $95,361 $99,189 $102,734 $106,748
Net income from continuing operations 1,240     517        1,217     317        421        
Cash provided in operating activities 2,646     2,293     2,659     2,108     4,053     

Note : thousands of dollars

Data sources: American Consumer Products, Inc. 1994 Annual Report. 1995.

American Consumer Products, Inc. 1992 Annual Report. 1993.
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A. T. Cross Co.: A Firm in Decline

Declining Net Income And Positive Operating 
Cash Flow

A.T. Cross, Inc.
Years Ending December 31, 1990-1994

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994

Revenue $209,633 $205,248 $187,130 $164,606 $177,136
Net income from continuing operations 27,223    21,187    12,773    519        10,534    
Cash provided in operating activities 32,767    26,304    26,396    24,940    26,851    

Note : thousands of dollars

Data sources: A.T. Cross, Inc. 1994 Annual Report. 1995.

A.T. Cross, Inc. 1992 Annual Report. 1993.
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Summary
A CF statement summarizes 

the sources and uses of cash
Operating cash flows are needed for the long-term 
survival of a corporation

Future investments are paid for through operating cash 
flows in the long run

In the initial stages of a firm’s life
Financing cash flows are positive
Investing cash flows are negative

One can infer a firm’s prospects from a firm’s investing 
activity

High investments (meaning negative investing cash 
flows) suggest management anticipates growth 

Preparation of a cash flow statement can be difficult!  
Details below for your reference
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Preparing a cash flow statement

CF from Operating activities
Net Income

Adjust for Non-Cash Changes in Current Accounts
Subtract increase in net accounts receivable
Subtract increase in inventory
Subtract increase in prepaid expenses
Add increase in accounts payable
Add increase in miscellaneous expenses payable
Add increase in taxes payable
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Preparing a cash flow statement

CF from Operating activities
Net Income

Adjust for Non-Cash Changes in Current Accounts
Adjust for Non-Cash Changes in Non-Current 
Accounts

Add Depreciation & Amortization
Add Loss on Sale of Assets
Subtract Gain on Sales of Assets
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Preparing a cash flow statement
CF from Operating activities
CF from Investing activities

Add cash received from 
Sale of Investments
Sales of PP&E

Less cash paid for
Acquisition of Investments
Acquisition of PP&E 

CF from Financing activities
Add cash from 

Add cash from 
Debt issues
Capital stock issues

Less cash paid for
Debt repayment
Dividends
Repurchase of stockwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Accrual Accounting Process: 
Part I

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 11, 2004
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An accountant’s functions include

Classifying and summarizing, made easier by the 
repetitive nature of business transactions

All repetitive transactions of the same nature are 
recorded and summarized in one account

An account is a storage unit used to classify and 
summarize money measurements of business 
activity of a similar nature

Each account has a title
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T-Account

Used for illustrative and pedagogical purposes

Has two sides
Debit means Left
Credit means Right

Created for each type of 
Asset
Liability
Stockholders’ equity
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Recording changes in Assets and 
Liabilities

Increases in assets are recorded on the left side of the T-
account 
Decreases are recorded on the right side of the T-account

Reverse for liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Assets  =  Liabilities + Stockholders’ equity

Assets are on the left side of the Balance Sheet Equation

Liabilities and owners’ equity are on the right side
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How does a T-account look like?

5

Like a Capital “T”
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Summary of T-account Rules

Assets (cash, receivables, equipment)

Increases Decreases

Liabilities (loans payable)

Decreases Increases

Owners’ equity (contributed capital, retained earnings)

Decreases Increases
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About T-Accounts
What is one major objective of financial statements? 

To provide information to “users” regarding the financial 
performance of a business

Which T-account includes the accountant’s estimate of financial 
performance over a given accounting period?

Retained earnings (includes current period income)
Which financial statement provides the details of the financial 
performance over a given accounting period?

Income statement
How do we construct an income statement from the T-account 
for retained earnings?

Not very easily! But we will try.  

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

359
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



8

Components of stockholders’ equity

Common Stock                  Retained Earnings

Additional        Expenses     Revenue
Capital            Dividends
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Why record expenses and revenues 
separately in various T-accounts?

Retained Earnings
Rent exp.        800
Salaries          650
Interest exp.   450
Salaries       1,000
Rent exp.        400
Dividends    2,000
Interest exp.   350

1,000   Sales revenue
1,100   Interest Income
3,000   Sales Revenue

200   Interest Income
4,500   Sales Revenue

Sales Revenue (1,000 + 3,000 + 4,500) 8,500
Interest Income (1,100 + 200) 1,300
Rent expense (800 + 400) (1,200)
Salaries expense (650 + 1,000) (1,650)
Interest expense (450 + 350) (800)
Net Income 6,150
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Why record expenses and revenues 
separately in various T-accounts?

Retained Earnings

1,000   Sales revenue
1,100   Interest Income
3,000   Sales Revenue

200   Interest Income
4,500   Sales Revenue

Rent exp.        800
Salaries          650
Interest exp.   450
Salaries       1,000
Rent exp.        400
Dividends    2,000
Interest exp.   350 

Interest Expense

450
350
Dividends

2,000

Sales Revenue

1,000
3,000
4,500

Interest Revenue

Rent Expense

1,100
200

800
400

Salaries Expense

650
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Why record expenses and revenues 
separately in various T-accounts?

Sales Revenue

1,000
3,000
4,500

Interest Revenue
1,100

200

Rent Expense

800
400

Salaries Expense

650
1,000

Retained Earnings

8,500  Sales Revenue
1,300  Interest Revenue

Rent Exp.      1,200
Salaries Exp. 1,650
Interest Exp.     800

Dividends      2,000

Interest Expense

450
350

Dividends

2,000
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Why record expenses and revenues 
separately? A Summary

Revenues, expenses and dividends are temporary T-
accounts
Information on changes in retained earnings - pertaining to 
a single accounting period - is collected in these temporary 
accounts
At the end of the accounting period, balances in these T-
accounts are transferred to Retained Earnings
The temporary accounts are set to zero at the end of an 
accounting period in order to start collecting information for 
the next period
Revenues, expenses and dividend accounts are flow
accounts
Retained earnings is a stock account
In fact, all balance sheet accounts are stock accounts
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Recording expenses: A Summary

Expenses decrease retained earnings. 

Decreases in retained earnings are recorded 
on the left side

Expenses are recorded on the left side
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Recording Revenues: A Summary

Revenues increase retained earnings. 

Increases in retained earnings are recorded 
on the right side

(Increase in) revenues are recorded on the 
right side

Decrease in revenues are recorded on the left 
side
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Recording Dividends: A Summary

Dividends decrease retained earnings

Therefore, treated similarly to expenses, but 
dividends is not an expense

Dividends are recorded on the left side
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Expenses and Revenues: Debits 
and Credits

16

Retained earnings (in general) has a credit balance.
Revenues have credit balance because

they increase retained earnings
Expenses and dividends have debit balance because

they decrease retained earnings
Can retained earnings have a debit balance?

Yes, when cumulative earnings are less than cumulative 
dividends
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Recap: T-Account

Has two sides

Debit means Left
Credit means Right
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Recap: Summary of 
T-account Rules

18

Assets (cash, receivables, equipment)

Increases Decreases

Liabilities (loans payable)

Decreases Increases

Owners’ equity (contributed capital, retained earnings)

Decreases Increases
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The Ledger

Accounts are collectively referred to as the ledger

Types of accounts
Balance Sheet accounts or real accounts or 
permanent accounts
Income statement accounts or nominal 
accounts or temporary accounts, 

i.e., revenue, expenses, and dividends - all these 
are subdivisions of retained earnings
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The Recording Process 

Journal entries
Posting to T-accounts
Trial Balance
Adjusting entries (Next class)
Financial statement preparation
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The Journal

Journal contains a chronological record of the 
transactions of a business
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Emily’s Bakery
Emily contributes $10,000 in cash

Assets     =     Liabilities     +      Owners’ Equity

Cash                                             Contributed Capital

+$10,000                                          +$10,000

Journal Entry
Dr  Cash  (+A) 10,000

Cr  Contributed Capital (+CC) 10,000
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The company borrows $3,000 from the 
bank

Assets        =         Liabilities        +       Owners’ Equity

Cash                      Loans Payable

+$3,000                 +$3,000

Journal Entry
Dr  Cash (+A) 3,000

Cr  Loans Payable (+L) 3,000
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Company purchases equipment for 
$5,000 cash

Assets                                    =    L    +   OE

Cash                             Equipment

-$5,000                            +$5,000

Journal Entry
Dr  Equipment (+A) 5,000

Cr  Cash (-A) 5,000
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Company performs service for $12,000.  The 
customer pays $8,000 in cash and promises to 
pay the balance at a later date.

Assets                                   =    L   +  Owners’ Equity

Cash          Receivables                            Retained Earnings

+$8,000         +$4,000                                     +$12,000

Journal Entry
Dr  Cash (+A) 8,000
Dr  Receivables (+A) 4,000

Cr  Service Revenue (+RE) 12,000
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Company pays  $9,000 for expenses (wages, 
interest, and maintenance)

Assets     =    Liabilities    +    Owners’ Equity

Cash                                         Retained Earnings

-$9,000                                          -$9,000

Journal Entry
Dr  Expenses (-RE) 9,000

Cr  Cash (-A) 9,000
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Company pays a dividend of $1,000

Assets       =      Liabilities    +    Owners’ Equity

Cash                                             Retained Earnings

-$1,000                                            -$1,000

Journal Entry
Dr Dividends (-RE) 1,000

Cr Cash  (-A) 1,000 
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Posting 

Transactions from the journal are posted to the 
ledger (we will ignore this step)

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

380
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



29

Trial Balance

Trial balance is a listing of all the accounts and their 
balances in this order:

Assets
Liabilities
shareholders’ equity
Revenues
Expenses

Prepared prior to the preparation of financial statements

Duality is an important check of arithmetic accuracy 
However, equality of debits and credits in a trial balance does 
not mean that accounting is error free

Complete omission of a transaction
Recording an entry in the wrong account
Compensating errors
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Emily’s Bakery
Trial Balance

Debit Credit
Cash 6,000
Accounts Receivable 4,000
Equipment 5,000
Loans Payable  3,000
Contributed Capital 10,000
Retained Earnings         0
Service Revenue 12,000
Expenses  9,000
Dividend  1,000
Total 25,000 25,000
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Prepare Income Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Revenues:  Fees earned for service              $12,000

Expenses:  Wages, interest, maintenance     $ 9,000

Net income                                                      $ 3,000
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Statement of Retained Earnings
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Beginning retained earnings balance                    0

Plus: Net income                                               3,000

Less: Dividend to stockholder                         1,000

Ending retained earnings balance                 $ 2,000   
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Summary

T-accounts 
Debit is Left
Credit is Right
Increases in Assets – Debits
Increases in liabilities – Credits
Increases in shareholders’ equity – Credits
Expenses are Debits
Revenues are Credits

Use balances from T-accounts to prepare 
financial statements at the end of a fiscal period
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1

Accrual Accounting Process: 
Part II
15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2003

Professor S.P. Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 14, 2003
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2

Agenda for Today

Continue with the accrual process
Intuition
Mechanics

Too many slides and a lot of details!  
Some of these are for self-study and for 
recitations
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Cash Flow Versus Accrual 
Accounting
Cash flow accounting 

Measures performance by comparing the cash inflows of a 
certain time period to the cash outflows of that period (e.g., 
cash flow from operations).

Accrual accounting 
Measures performance by comparing revenues (which are 
recognized when the earning process is complete) with 
expenses (which are recognized when assets are 
consumed or liabilities are created).
Geared toward periodic performance measurement that is 
not skewed by investment, financing, and long-horizon 
operational activities
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Cash Flow Versus Accrual 
Accounting

4

Accrual accounting 
Based not only on cash transactions but also on 
credit transactions, barter exchanges, changes in 
prices, changes in form of assets or liabilities, and 
other transactions.
Records events that have cash consequences for an 
enterprise 
But does not require a concurrent cash movement in 
order to record a transaction.
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Cash Flow Versus Accrual 
Accounting

5

Over the entire life of a corporation, total “income” 
under cash flow and accrual accounting is the 
same.
However, cash receipts in a particular period may 
largely reflect the effects of activities of the 
enterprise in earlier periods.
Similarly, many of the cash outlays may relate to 
activities and efforts to be undertaken in future 
periods.
The matching principle in accrual accounting 
addresses this limitation of cash flow accounting.
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Cash Flow Versus Accrual 
Accounting

Isn’t cash flow more important than 
earnings?
What cash flows are important?

Future cash flows!
When compared to current cash flows, 
current earnings are more highly 
associated with future cash flows
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Cash Flow Versus Accrual 
Accounting

Stock price = Present value of expected
future cash flows.

What is “Present Value?” 
Changes in stock prices = f(changes in 
expectations about future cash flows).
When compared to cash flows, earnings have 
a stronger association with stock prices.
Earnings are superior indicators of expected 
future cash flows.  
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Accounting Earnings versus 
Stock Prices
Top management’s incentive compensation is 
usually linked to stock prices and accounting 
earnings.
Why not link it to stock prices alone?

Stock prices are affected by economic factors that are 
outside of a manager’s control (e.g., macroeconomic, 
political factors).
Consequently, stock prices may be a poor indicator of 
managerial performance.
Combining both mitigates this problem
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Accounting Earnings versus 
Stock Prices

A second reason for using accounting earnings
Expected versus delivered performance

Firm X hires manager Y on December 31, 1997.
Stock price of X jumps by 10%!    Why?
Market’s expectations regarding the company’s future 
performance improve.
Accounting earnings of 1998 increases by 10%!  

Why?
Manager Y’s actions produce an actual improvement in the 
financial performance of X in 1998.  Stock prices 
anticipated this improvement in 1997 at the time of the 
earnings announcement.
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Accounting Earnings versus 
Stock Prices

By combining stock prices and earnings to 
reward managers, a firm can reward a manager 
for his/her strategic planning and operational 
execution.
Of course, stock prices do reflect the delivered
performance of the manager as well.

But if payment is on the basis of expected 
performance, then what do you do if the manager 
shirks subsequently?  (Moral hazard problem)
Earnings provide a straightforward measure of 
delivered performance.
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Accrual Accounting and 
Periodic Adjustments

Accountants record exchange transactions.
But this does not capture all economic activities.
Periodic adjusting 

Required to record activities that have taken place, but 
which have not yet been recorded.
To reduce accounting costs

Some economic activities may be continuous in nature.  
The effect of such activities are accumulated over a period 
and then recorded periodically rather than continuously, 
e.g., consumption of stationary.
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Accrual Accounting and 
Periodic Adjustments

In many cases, assets and liabilities are 
created or discharged without the occurrence 
of a visible, documented exchange 
transaction

Interest is earned continually on a bank savings 
account as time passes
Machinery depreciates as it is used in a 
company's operations.

Periodically, adjusting journal entries are 
made to record these effects.
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Accrual Accounting and Periodic 
Adjustments

Adjusting entries
Made whenever financial statements are  
prepared.  Why?
Adjusting entries are designed to

Correctly compute periodic income 
Correctly show balances of assets and liabilities at the 
end of the period 

Will there be a need for adjusting entries if a 
corporation prepares only one income statement 
for the period covering its whole life?
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Periodic Adjustments

Characteristics of an adjusting journal entry:
matching of expenses and revenues
involves at least one temporary (revenue, 
expense, or dividend) account and at least one 
permanent (asset or liability) account.
never involves the cash account
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sFour ways that recognition and 
cash do not coincide

Time
Balance Sheet Date

Pay Cash Recognize Expense

Time
Balance Sheet Date

Pay CashRecognize Expense
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sFour ways that recognition 
and cash do not coincide

Time
Balance Sheet Date

Receive Cash Recognize Revenue

Time
Balance Sheet Date

Receive CashRecognize Revenue
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Types of Periodic Adjustments

Expense or Revenue before Cash
Expense incurred today, but cash paid tomorrow.

Salary earned by employees but not paid at the end of 
accounting period.
Employees earn salary when they perform their duties, 
not when they receive payment.
Unpaid salary is a Salary Payable liability

Revenue earned today, but cash received 
tomorrow

Interest earned today, but cash received tomorrow.
Interest is a reward for lending money, so it is earned 
with passage of time
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Types of Periodic Adjustments

Cash before accruing Revenue or Expense 
(Cost Expirations or Revenue Expirations)
Cash paid yesterday, Expense incurred today.

1998 rent paid in advance in 1997
Rent paid in advance asset

Cash received yesterday, revenue earned today 
Cash advance from customer for services not yet performed
Cash advance is Unearned Revenue liability

Matching is the guiding principle in periodic adjustments.
Objective: To match the revenue earned in a period (whether 
received in that period in cash or not) with all the expenses 
incurred to earn that revenue (whether paid in that period in 
cash or not).
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Accrued Wages
Employees of Sloan Enterprises are paid at the end of 
each week.  
The total weekly payroll is $10,000, which is earned at a 
rate of $2,000 per day for each of the five working days.
Assume December 31 falls on a Tuesday
Books are closed (financial statements are prepared) on 
that December 31.

On December 31
Sloan Enterprises has incurred wage expense for two days
But will not pay it in cash until January 3rd of the next fiscal
year.
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

20

Periodic adjustment on December 31
Assets  =         Liabilities     +     Owners’ Equity

Wages Payable     Retained 
Earnings

+4,000                     -4,000
Dr Wage Expense (-RE) 4,000

Cr Wages Payable (+L) 4,000
Effect of omitting this journal entry?

Liabilities are understated by $4,000
Retained earnings & Net income overstated by $4,000
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

What would you see on the balance sheet as of 
12/31?

Wages Payable $4,000 under Liabilities
What would you see on the income statement for 
the year ended 12/31?

Wage Expense of $520,000
52 Weeks x $10,000 per week

Without the adjusting entry
Wage expense would have been $4,000 less.
Expense would have been understated
Net income overstated
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

22

$10,000 paid on Jan. 3 of next year.
Assets  =         Liabilities     +     Owners’ Equity
Cash          Wages Payable    Retained Earnings

-10,000                -4,000                   -6,000
Dr Wage Expense (-RE) 6,000
Dr Wages Payable (-L) 4,000

Cr Cash (-A) 10,000
What would be the balance in the T-account for 
Wage Expense on January 3rd?
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Consider the $10,000 paid to the employees.
Where and How would it show up in the 
financial statements?

Period 1 Period 2
Cash Flow Statement
Operating cash flow -10,000
Income Statement
Wage expense (-RE) -4,000 -6,000
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Accrued Interest
On December 1, U.S. Bank loans $24,000 to Stone 
Corporation at an annual interest rate of 10%.  
Books are closed on December 31 
Stone Corp. pays U.S. Bank in full (principal and interest) 
on January 31 of the next year.

Assets  =    L    +      OE
Cash     Loan Receivable
-24,000            +24,000
Dr Loan Receivable (+A) 24,000

Cr Cash (-A) 24,000
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Where would you see this in the cash flow 
statement of U.S Bank?
Investing out flow of $24,000
On December 31, U.S. Bank has earned one 
month’s interest on the loan given to Stone 
Corp.

Interest earned =  24,000 x 10%  x 1/12
=  $200.
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Periodic adjustment on December 31
Assets                      =         L     +     Owners’ Equity
Interest Receivable                         Retained Earnings

+200                                               +200
Dr Interest Receivable (+A) 200

Cr Interest Revenue (+RE) 200
Effect of omitting this journal entry?

Assets are understated by $200
Retained earnings & Net income each understated by $200
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

How much cash will U.S. Bank receive on January 
31 of the next year?

$24,000  -- amount lent to Stone Corp. (principal)
Plus $400 as interest for 2 months

Although a single check may be issued, let us 
consider it as two transactions.
Assets =   L    +    OE
Cash            Loan Receivable
+24,000               -24,000
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Assets            =     L    + Owners’ Equity
Cash     Int. Receivable Retained Earnings
+400           -200           +200
Dr Cash (+A) 400

Cr Interest Receivable (-A) 200
Cr Interest Revenue (+RE) 200

Two elements to the journal entry
Exchange of one asset for another asset
Record revenue earned and cash received
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Accruals (Accrue Today, Cash 
Tomorrow)

Effect on cash flow and income statements
Period 1      Period 2

Cash Flow Statement
Investing cash flow -24,000       +24,000
Operating cash flow                             +400
Income Statement
Interest Revenue +200 +200
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Supplies Inventory 
During 2000, Greener Pastures, Ltd. purchases (for cash) 
supplies in the form of spare parts to support the 
manufacture of farm machinery at a total cost of $700.  
The company began the year with $500 in the supplies 
account.

Assets              =  Liabilities      +    OE
Cash       Supplies
-700          +700
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

On December 31, a count reveals that supplies in the 
amount of $300 remain on hand.
Supplies Used  =   Beg. Inv.  +  Purchases  - Ending Inventory

=   $500  +  $700  - $300  
=   $900
Assets       =        L      +    Owners’ Equity
Supplies Retained Earnings
-900                                       -900
Dr Supplies Expense (-RE) 900

Cr Supplies Inventory (-A) 900
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Supplies Account

Beg bal 500 900             Supplies expense

Purchases          700

Ending Inv           300

Supplies expense of $900 is the adjusting entry and the 
corresponding debit is to Retained Earnings (i.e., expense 
on the income statement that affects retained earnings).
The Ending Inventory of $300 appears on the balance 
sheet (and it serves as the ending inventory for the current 
fiscal period and beginning inventory for the following fiscal 
period).   
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

What shows up in the cash flow statement?
The cash paid during the year for purchase of supplies
Operating outflow  =  $700

What shows up in the income statement?
The cost of supplies consumed during the year
Supplies expense  =  $900

What shows up in the balance sheet?
Ending balance in Supplies of $300
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Prepaid Expenses
On January 1, 1999, Crimson Inc. purchased a 
$1,000 insurance premium for a two-year period
January 1, 1999
Assets   =    L    +    OE
Cash     Prepaid Insurance
-1,000             +1,000
Dr Prepaid Insurance (+A) 1,000

Cr Cash (-A) 1,000
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

What happens during 1999?
One-year’s worth of insurance protection expires

How to record this in financial statements?
Assets             =    L     +     Owners’ Equity
Prepaid Insurance      Retained Earnings
-500 -500
Dr Insurance Expense (-RE) 500

Cr Prepaid Insurance (-A) 500
Effect of omitting this journal entry?

Assets are overstated by $500
Retained earnings (income) overstated by $500
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Reporting in Financial Statements?
1999             2000

Operating cash out flow  (-)    1,000
Insurance expense (-RE)         500                500

What shows up in the balance sheet as of 12/31/99?
Assets:  Prepaid Insurance     $500

Why is this an asset?
Represents one-year’s worth of insurance protection for 2000 
available to the company
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Are we not getting insurance protection every 
day? Why wait till December 31 to record the 
expense?

Cost-benefit trade off
Financial statements are prepared quarterly for 
investors and monthly for firm’s management.
The adjusting entries may be recorded more 
frequently.
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Pre-received revenues
Unearned revenue 
Fees received in advance 
Customer advances 
Subscription received in advance, etc.

Magazines Unlimited receives $5,000 during 2000 
for magazine subscriptions to be fulfilled during 
2000 and 2001.  Assume that as of the end of 2000 
Time had fulfilled 60% of the subscriptions.
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

$5,000 received during 2000
Assets         =         Liabilities               + OE
Cash                Unearned Revenue
+5,000                        +5,000
Dr  Cash (+A) 5,000

Cr Unearned Revenue (+L) 5,000
What happens to this liability at the end of 2000?

Decreases by 60% because Magazines Unlimited delivers 
magazines in 2000.
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Assets  =      Liabilities           +   Owners’ Equity
Unearned Revenue    Retained Earnings

-3,000                        +3,000
Dr Unearned Revenue (-L)     3,000

Cr Subscription Revenue (+RE) 3,000
Effect of omitting this entry?

Liabilities are overstated by $3,000
Retained earnings (income) understated by $3,000
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Effect on financial statements?
2000           2001

Operating cash inflow (+)        +5,000
Subscription revenue (+RE)    +3,000       +2,000
What do you see in the balance sheet as of 
12/31/2000?

Liabilities:  Unearned Revenue  =   $2,000
Represents the obligation for unfulfilled journal 
subscriptions.
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Depreciation
Dewey, Inc. invests $10,000 in a quality control equipment 
on January 1, 1990.  Dewey’s management estimates 
initially that the equipment would last for ten years and 
would be scrapped thereafter.

Assets                           =    L    +   OE
Cash           Equipment
-10,000         +10,000
Dr Equipment (+A) 10,000

Cr Cash (-A) 10,000
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Where and when would you see the $10,000  in the 
cash flow statement?

Investing cash outflow of $10,000 in the year of payment
Dewey paid for the equipment in 1990, but the 
equipment provides benefits for 10 years.
What does matching principle suggest?

Apportion the $10,000 as an expense over the 10 year 
period
Depreciation expense
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Depreciation is allocating (or expensing) the cost of 
a long-lived asset over its estimated useful life.
How much to allocate to a given period as 
depreciation expense?

Several methods are allowed under GAAP (Discussed later 
in the course).

One common method is straight line
Equal apportionment of the cost over useful life
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Depreciation expense for each year =  $1,000
At the end of each year, what do we do?
Assets        =  L   +   Owners’ Equity
Equipment                        Retained Earnings
-1,000                                    -1,000
If we repeat this ten times over the next ten years, 
what would be the balance in the T-account for 
Equipment

Zero
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

How does the $10,000 show up in the cash flow and income 
statements?

Periods                   
1           2      3    ......   10

Investing outflow (-)         10,000 0        0   ……    0
Depreciation Exp. (-RE)     1,000  1,000 1,000 ... 1,000
Over a firm’s entire life, would net income be equal to its 
operating cash flows?

No, operating cash flow does not include the outflow for 
equipment whereas net income is computed after subtracting 
depreciation expense
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

How to record depreciation expense?
Equipment                        Retained Earnings
-1,000                                    -1,000
One possibility is 
Dr Depreciation Expense (-RE)    1,000

Cr Equipment (-A)                                1,000
However, this is not GAAP.
What might be the potential limitations of this 
approach?
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Consider two Companies
Company A     Company B

Equipment                       10,000            10,000
Instead of this disclosure, let us consider an 
alternative approach
Equipment (cost)           100,000            20,000
(-) Depreciation to date  (90,000)          (10,000)
Net Book Value 10,000             10,000
What do you learn from the second approach?
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

How do accountants record depreciation?
Dr  Depreciation Expense (-RE)        1,000

Cr Accumulated Depreciation (-A)          1,000
Acc. Dep. is a contra (negative) asset account
Decreases in assets are credits
So, Acc. Dep. has a credit balance

Represents the cumulative depreciation on an asset 
Informs the user about the age of the asset
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Balance sheet presentation after one year.
Equipment (original cost) 10,000
(-) Accumulated Depreciation                   (1,000)
Net Book Value 9,000
Balance sheet presentation after ten years.
Equipment (original cost) 10,000
(-) Accumulated Depreciation                  (10,000)
Net Book Value 0
Does this make sense?
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Cost Expirations (Cash 
Yesterday, Accrual Today)

Yes, if the asset remains in use.
Sometimes fully depreciated asset may still be used.

However, if the equipment is scrapped after ten 
years, how do we record it?

Eliminate it from the books 
Dr Acc. Depreciation (+A) 10,000

Cr Equipment (-A) 10,000
What remains on the books?  
Equipment 0
(-) Accumulated Depreciation 0
Net Book Value 0

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

436
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



52

Summary

Accrual accounting can be confusing! 
Understand the logic behind it and it will be 
clear.  
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Balance Sheet: Investments and 
Financing

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 8, 2004
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Questions from last class

Do private companies file with the SEC?

Only if they have pubic debt outstanding.
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Financial Statements – the 
Annual Report

Management Discussion
Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Net Income
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders 
Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
Notes to Accounts
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Balance Sheet: Assets

Assets
Probable future economic benefits 
obtained or controlled by a particular entity 
as a result of past transactions or events.
The specific types of assets a firm owns 
depends on the  nature of its business --
manufacturing (e.g., General Motors) vs. 
merchandising (e.g., K mart) vs. financial 
(e.g., Citicorp) vs. service (e.g., H & R 
Block) business. 
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Balance Sheet: Assets

Current assets 
Cash and other assets that are reasonably 
expected to be realized in cash or consumed 
during the normal operating cycle of the business 
or within one year, whichever is longerwhichever is longer.

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments  -- at market value  -- We will 
discuss this in detail later.
Accounts receivable  -- Net realizable value
Inventory  -- Lower of Historical Cost or Market Value 
(current replacement cost)
Prepaid expenses
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Cash
payment

Inventory Accts. Rec.
(Raw material to finished goods)

Cash
collection

                                                  

Definition: an operating cycle is defined as the elapsed time 
between the start of production and the eventual receipt cash 
from customers from the sale of the product

                         
Operating cycle

sale

The Operating Cycle
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Balance Sheet: Assets

Long-Term Investments
Investments intended to be held for a period of 
time usually extending beyond one year.
Debt and equity securities such as stocks, 
bonds, and long-term notes receivable.
Tangible assets not currently used in 
operations, e.g., land held for investment 
purposes.
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Balance Sheet: Assets

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Assets of a durable nature that are to be used 
in the production or sale of goods, or 
rendering of services, rather than being held 
for sale.

Machinery, Factory Building, etc.
Carried at Cost (-) Accumulated Depreciation
Land on which the company conducts its 
operations is carried on the balance sheet at 
the original cost – no depreciation.
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Balance Sheet: Assets

Intangible Assets
Non-current, non-physical assets of a business, the 
possession of which provides uncertain future benefits to 
the owner

E.g., goodwill, trademarks, patents, copyrights, etc. 

Is accounts receivable an intangible asset?
Not for accounting purposes

Intangible assets are carried on the balance sheet 
at cost (-) accumulated amortization.
Cost =  Whatever was paid to acquire them.
Internally generated intangible assets are not 
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Balance Sheet: Liabilities

Liabilities
Probable future economic sacrifices arising 
from present obligations of a particular entity to 
transfer assets or provide services to other 
entities in the future as a result of past 
transactions or events.

Current Liabilities
Obligations that are expected to be paid (or 
services expected to be performed) with the use of 
assets that are listed in the current section of the 
balance sheet.
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Balance Sheet: Liabilities

Examples of current liabilities
accounts payable, wages payable, interest 
payable, income taxes payable, deferred 
revenues.

Current portion of long-term debts are 
classified as current liabilities.
However, debt expected to be refinanced 
through another long-term debt are treated as 
long-term liabilities.

What is the intuition here?
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Balance Sheet: Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Obligations usually expected to require 
payment over a period of time beyond one 
year.
Usually financing obligations, e.g., arising 
from issuance of bonds, long-term notes, 
and mortgages.
The maturity date, the rate of interest, and 
any security pledged to support the 
borrowing agreement should be clearly 
shown.
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Balance Sheet: Owners’ Equity

Stockholders' Equity
The residual interest in the assets that 
remain after deducting the liabilities.

Contributed Capital
A measure of the capital contributed to the 
company by its owners.
Contribution can be through cash, noncash
assets, or valuable services.

Different classes of capital: Common 
stock and Preferred stock
Retained earnings
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Financial Statements: Retained 
Earnings & Shareholders’ Equity

Retained earnings 
A measure of undistributed profits of a business
Do not include capital contributed by owners

Retained earnings = 
Cumulative sum of profits earned from the inception of 
business –
Cumulative sum of all “dividends” distributed to the 
owners from the inception of business
How does retained earnings change over a period of 
time (e.g., a year)

Beginning balance in retained earnings
Add Net income earned during the period
Subtract Dividends distributed during the period
Ending balance in retained earningswww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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The Mechanics of Financial Accounting

Fundamental Accounting Equation

Assets          =        Liabilities     +    Owners’ Equity

Retained
Earnings

Contributed
Capital
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What type of account?
Identify assets, liabilities, or equity

Equipment
Retained Earnings
Patent
Common Stock
Dividend Payable
Accumulated depreciation
Prepaid Expense
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What type of account?
Identify assets, liabilities, or equity

Supplies Inventory
Accounts Receivable
Land
Goodwill developed by firm
Unsettled damage suit
Factory
Increase in value of land
Employee payroll taxes payable

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

454
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



18

Should we recognize the 
asset?

Assets arise from transactions and events

A firm issues a $12m check to an insurance 
company for liability insurance over the next 
year. 
A firm issues a check for $500K as a deposit on 
a custom-built machine.
A firm buys stock in another firm for $325K
A firm acquires chemicals to be used as raw 
materials for $800K.
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Should we recognize the 
asset?

Assets arise from transactions and events
A well-known scientist is hired to manage the R&D 
function for 480K a year. Employment starts next month.

The firm receives an order for $15K in products.

The firm writes a check for $1M to obtain an option to 
purchase a tract of land.

A firm receives notice from a supplier that it has shipped 
raw materials of $200K. The firm has title to the goods 
while in transit.

The firm purchases a patent from its creator for $1.2Mwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Should we recognize the 
liability?

Liabilities arise from transactions and events

The firm owes its attorneys $50K in legal expenses.

The firm provides warranties on its products.

The firm borrows $60K from the bank for a 90-day 
period.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

457
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



21

Accounting Transactions

What business transactions are recorded in the 
financial accounting system?

Exchange of assets and liabilities with other entities
As opposed to “executory” transactions

Supplier: I will supply 5,000 units six months from now.
Customer: I will pay when I receive the goods
Exchange of promises

How do transactions affect the accounting 
equation?

The accounting identity is always maintained
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Emily’s Bakery

(1) Emily contributes $10,000 in cash

Assets   =   Liabilities  +  Owners’ Equity

Cash                              Contributed Capital

+$10,000                            +$10,000
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Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash   + A/R     + Equip. = L/P     + C. Cap.+     R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  
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(2)  The company borrows $3,000 from a bank

Assets   =   Liabilities  +  Owners’ Equity

Cash           Loans Payable

+$3,000       +$3,000

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

461
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



25

Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash   + A/R    + Equip. = L/P     + C. Cap.+    R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   
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(3)  Company purchases equipment for $5,000 
cash

Assets                           =   L  +  OE

Cash       Equipment 

-$5,000     +$5,000

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

463
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



27

Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash  + A/R    + Equip. = L/P    + C. Cap.+     R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   

-  5,000  + 5,000    
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(4) Company performs service for $12,000.  The 
customer pays $8,000 in cash and promises to 
pay the balance at a later date.

Assets                =     L   +   Owners’ Equity

Cash         Receivables              Retained Earnings 

+$8,000        +4,000                              +$12,000
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Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash  + A/R    + Equip. = L/P    + C. Cap.+      R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   

-  5,000  + 5,000    

+ 8,000 + 4,000    +12,000
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(5) Company pays  $9,000 for expenses (wages, 
interest, and maintenance)

Assets   =   Liabilities  +  Owners’ Equity

Cash                               Retained Earnings  

-$9,000                              -$9,000
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Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash  + A/R    + Equip. = L/P    + C. Cap.+     R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   

-  5,000  + 5,000    

+ 8,000 + 4,000    +12,000

-  9,000     -  9,000 
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(6) Company pays dividend of $1,000

Assets   =   Liabilities  +  Owners’ Equity

Cash                               Retained Earnings  

-$1,000                                -$1,000
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Transactions and the Accounting Equation

Cash A/R Equip. L/P C. Cap.    R/E 
+10,000    +10,000  

+ 3,000   + 3,000   

-  5,000  + 5,000    

+ 8,000 + 4,000    +12,000

-  9,000     -  9,000 

-  1,000     -  1,000 

   6,000    4,000     5,000    3,000    10,000 + 2,000 
 
 

+ + = + +
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Balance Sheet as at December 31, 1997

Assets Amount Liabilities and
Owners’ Equity

Amount

Cash    6,000 Loans Payable    3,000

Receivables    4,000 Contributed
Capital

 10,000

Equipment    5,000 Retained
Earnings

  2,000

Total
Assests $15,000

Total Liabilities
and Owners’
Equity $15,000
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Transactions and Accounting Equation

Cash A/R Equip. L/P C. Cap. R/E
+10,000 +10,000

+ 3,000 + 3,000

-  5,000 + 5,000

+ 8,000 + 4,000 +12,000
-  9,000 -  9,000
-  1,000 -  1,000
   6,000    4,000     5,000    3,000    10,000 + 2,000

+ + = + +
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Income Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Revenues:  Fees earned for service              $12,000

Expenses:  Wages, interest, maintenance     $ 9,000

Net income                                                      $ 3,000

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

473
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



37

Transactions and Accounting Equation

Cash A/R Equip. L/P C. Cap. R/E
+10,000 +10,000
+ 3,000 + 3,000
-   5,000 + 5,000
+ 8,000 + 4,000 +12,000
-   9,000 -  9,000
-   1,000 -  1,000

   6,000    4,000     5,000    3,000    10,000 + 2,000

+ + = + +
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 1997
[To be revisited later in the course]

Operating activities:
Sale of a service (4)                                    8,000
Payments for expenses (5)                        (9,000)

Net cash from operating activities                   (1,000)
Investing activities:

Purchase of equipment (3)                        (5,000)
Net cash from investing activities                  (5,000)

Financing activities:
Borrowings (2)                                           3,000
Owner contributions (1)                           10,000
Payment of dividends (6)                         (1,000) 12,000

Increase in cash balance                                        6,000
Cash balance at the beginning of the year                       0
Cash balance at the end of the year                             6,000www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Statement of Retained Earnings
For the year ended December 31, 1997

Beginning retained earnings balance                    0

Plus: Net income                                               3,000

Less: Dividend to stockholder                         1,000

Ending retained earnings balance                 $ 2,000   
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Summary

Balance sheet
Listing of 

Resources owned by a firm (assets or 
investments) 
Financing of the assets through obligations to 
external parties (liabilities) 
Financing of the investments through residual 
claimants (shareholders’ equity)

Preparing a balance sheet (and other 
financial statements) using transaction 
historywww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Home work problem:
Initial Balance Sheet

Starting a Company

(1) Issues 50,000 shares of $10 par value common 
stock at par value for cash.
(2) Acquires land and building costing $225,000 with 
the payment of $50,000 cash and the assumption of 
a 20-year, 8-percent mortgage for the balance.
(3) Purchases a used crane for $13,200 cash
(4) Acquires raw materials costing $8,600 on 
account.
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Initial Balance Sheet
Starting a Company

(5) Returns defective raw materials purchased in (4) 
and costing $900 to the supplier. The account has 
not yet been paid.
(6) Pays the supplier in (4) and (5) the amount due, 
less a 2-percent discount for prompt payment. The 
firm treats cash discount as a reduction in the 
acquisition cost of raw materials.
(7) Obtains a fire insurance policy providing $500,000 
coverage beginning next month. It pays the 1-year 
premium of $4,950.
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Initial Balance Sheet
Starting a Company

(8) Issues a check for $1,800 for 3 months rent in 
advance for office space.
(9) Purchases a patent on a machine process for 
$90,000 cash.
(10) Purchases office equipment for $2,700, making 
a down payment of $250 and agreeing to pay the 
balance in 30 days.
(11) Pays $825 to Express Trucking Company for 
delivering the equipment purchased in (3).
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Recording of transactions
Cash + OCA + PP&E + ONCA = CL + NCL + SE

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11) www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Income Statement: Results of 
Operating Performance

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor SP Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

June 10, 2004
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Chapter 3: Income Statement
Accounting in a “one-period” world

- Cash                                        + Cash
Invested                         Returned

0                                                    1

Example: Shipping Expeditions in the 15th Century 
Ship sold at the end of a voyage: Finite project life
No information flow from time ship left port until it 

returned
Performance:  Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
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Accounting in a “multi-period” 
world

Cash Invested

0           1           2           3           4            5  6      …

Cash Returned

No pre-determined end to a firm's life - going 
concern

Cash invested and generated at multiple points in 
time

Subsequent actions affected by prior results -
feedbackwww.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Principles in Preparing Financial 
Statements: Fiscal Period

Artificially divide the life of an organization into annual 
periods for the purpose of financial reporting.

SEC requires quarterly reporting.
Internationally, trend toward quarterly reporting

Why is there a demand for periodic performance 
measures?

Valuation
Evaluate management performance

Reward management
Decide whether to continue to trust the firm’s assets with the current 
management

Ideally, all the relevant information with respect to a 
firm’s performance should be in the quarterly report on a 
timely basis.  Is that the case?  www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Financial Accounting Principles: 
Objectivity and Conservatism

Objectivity: financial accounting information must be 
verifiable and reliable.
Conservatism

Asymmetry in the treatment of gains and losses
Greater degree of verification for gains than for losses
Required by GAAP, but arose voluntarily.  Why?

Management’s incentive to report good information, hide bad 
information
Asymmetric payoff to bondholders
Credibility of information in valuation 

Conservatism does not suggest that financial statements 
should arbitrarily understate assets and overstate liabilities.
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Income Statement: Results of 
Operating Performance

Revenues  -- Sales or service revenue
Gains -- e.g., selling an equipment for cash 
greater than its net book value
Expenses  -- Cost of goods sold, operating 
expenses, etc.
Losses
Other revenues and expenses  

Interest revenue, dividend income, interest 
expense for a manufacturing or merchandising 
firm.
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Income Statement: Results of 
Operating Performance

The income statement measures firm performance regardless 
of when cash is exchanged.  Toward this end, two key principles 
are

Revenue Recognition:
Earnings process substantially complete
Cash collection reasonably assured

Conservatism principle is applicable

The Matching Principle for Expenses:
Match efforts to the benefits generated
Capitalize expenditures that will benefit future periods, 
expense as benefits are  realized
Recognize liabilities when efforts benefiting the current 
period require cash  payment in the future 
Produces a difference between cash flows and earnings
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*

Matching Example
Blockbuster video buys a copy of the Matrix 

Reloaded video for $20.

Experience indicates that video will be rented:

Year1 Year2
50x                   17x  

How much should Blockbuster recognize as an 
expense each year?  
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s

Matching Example
 

Year1 Year2
50x                   17x  

How much should Blockbuster recognize as 
an expense each year?

50 17
67                     67   

Estimate:

(50+17)
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Matching Example
 

Year1 Year2
50x                   17x 

How much does Blockbuster recognize as an 
expense each year?

50 17
67                     67   

($20)($20)

Yearly
Expenses $15 $5

Estimate:
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Matching Example
 

Year1 Year2 Year3
50%        25%        25% Estimate 2:

*
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Matching Example
 

Year1 Year2 Year3
50%        25%        25% 

Yearly
Expenses

$10 $5 $5

Estimate 2:

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

493
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



13

S

Recording video expenses
Cash Video Asset Retained Earn.

Buy Video
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Recording video expenses
Cash Video Asset Retained Earn.

Buy Video (20) 20
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Recording video expenses
Cash Video Asset Retained Earn.

Buy Video (20) 20
Rent 50x
@$3each
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

Buy Video (20) 20
Rent 50x
@$3each

150 150
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

Buy Video (20) 20
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1

150 150
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

Buy Video (20) 20
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1

150 150

(15) (15)
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

(20) 20Buy Video
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1
Rent 17x
@$3each

150 150

(15) (15)
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

Buy Video (20) 20
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1

150

51

150

(15) (15)
Rent 17x
@$3each

51
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

(20) 20Buy Video
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1
Rent 17x
@$3each
End of Y2

150

51

150

(15) (15)

51
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

(20) 20Buy Video
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1
Rent 17x
@$3each
End of Y2

150

51

150

(15) (15)

51

(5) (5)
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Recording video expenses
Retained Earn.Cash Video Asset

(20) 20Buy Video
Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1
Rent 17x
@$3each
End of Y2

150

51

150

(15) (15)

51

(5) (5)

Total video expenses = $20
www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

504
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



24

Recording video expenses
Estimate 1 and Estimate 2

Cash Video Asset Retained Earn.
(20) 20Buy Video

Rent 50x
@$3each

End of Y1
Rent 17x
@$3each
End of Y2

150 150

(15) (15) (10)

5151

(5) (5)

(10)

(5) (5)
End of Y3 (5) (5)
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What is Cost of Goods Sold?

Freshest Grocer buys $10,000 worth of 
cereals from Quality Foods for cash.
Assets                       =    L    + OE
Cash       Inventory
-10,000   +10,000

Exchange of one asset for another asset
Operating outflow = $10,000
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What is Cost of Goods Sold?

Freshest Grocer sold one-half of the cereals 
for $8,000 cash
Assets      =       L    +    Owners’ Equity
Cash Retained Earnings
+8,000                                +8,000

What is the most significant matching
expense?

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

507
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



27

What is Cost of Goods Sold?

The cost to Freshest Grocer of buying the 
cereal that was sold for $8,000
one-half of $10,000  =   $5,000

=  Cost of Goods Sold or Cost of Sales
Assets     =    L     +    Owners’ Equity
Inventory Retained Earnings
-5,000                            -5,000
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What is Gross Profit or Margin?

Assets             =   L   +   Owners’ Equity
Cash    Inventory             Retained Earnings
-10,000  +10,000
+8,000 +8,000

-5,000              -5,000
Increase in retained earnings       +3,000
Gross Profit or Margin = Sales Revenue (-) 
Cost of Goods Sold = $3,000
GM rate =  $3,000/$8,000  =   37.5%
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Components of Income 

Sales or Service Revenue
(-) Cost of Goods Sold
(-) Operating Expenses
(-) Unusual or Infrequent items
(-) Income Tax Expense
= Income from Continuing Operations (ICO)
All items disclosed below ICO are referred to 
as “below the line” items.
The below-the-line items are each shown net 
of income tax.www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in
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Components of Income - Staples

Sales 11,596,075
Cost of goods sold&

Occupancy costs 08,652,593
Gross Profit 02,943,482
Operating expenses
Operating &selling 01,795,428
Pre-opening 00,008,746
General & administrative 00,454,501
Amortization on intangibles 00,002,135
Amortization on goodwill 0
Asset impairment charges 0
Store closure charge 0
Interest & other expenses 00,020,609
Total operating & other expenses 02,281,419
Income before taxes 00,662,063
Income taxes 00,215,963
Net income 00,446,100

Data source: Staples Corporation. "2002 Annual Report." 5 May 2003, p. C-4.
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Cash Flow Statement
Operating Activities

Net income 0,446,100
Adjustments, 

Depreciation and amortization(+) 0,267,209
------

Cash flow from operating 0,468,250
Investing activities

Acquisition of property & equip (0,264,692)
Acquisitions of businesses (1,171,187)
-------
Net cash from investing (1,436,226)

Financing activities
Proceeds from sale of capital stock 0,078,895
Proceeds from borrowings 0,730,897
Payments on borrowings (0,95,235)
------?
Net cash from financing 0,714,083

Net increase/(decrease) 0,201,240

Data source: Staples Corporation. "2002 Annual Report." 5 May 2003, p. C-6.
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Components of Income

Income from Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations

Income or Loss from Discontinued Operations 
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Discontinued 
Operations

Extraordinary Items (Unusual and Infrequent)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting 
Principles
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Advantages of Income Statement 
Components

Forecasting future performance
Distinguish between core operating 
performance (recurring items) versus transitory 
components (unusual and/or infrequent items)
Disclosure on Discontinued Operations
An example: Firm A has two business segments, 
i.e., M & N.
In 1997, A’s total income was $100,000 (M 
earned $70,000 and N earned $ 30,000)
All numbers are assumed after tax
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Advantages of Income Statement 
Components

1997 Net Income (= ICO)  =  $100,000
In 1998, the total income was $100,000 also.
M earned $90,000 income whereas N earned 
only $10,000.
On December 31, 1998, Firm A decides to 
discontinue the business segment N.
It expects to lose $15,000 by disposing off the 
assets of N.
i.e., it will generate $15,000 less cash compared 
to the net book value of the assets of segment N.
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Advantages of Income Statement 
Components

What would Firm A disclose in its 1998 
financial statements?
Usually comparative statements are provided

1998            1997
Income from Cont. Ops.    $90,000     $70,000
Income from Disc. Ops.       10,000      30,000
Loss on sale of Disc. Ops. (15,000)
Net Income                          85,000    100,000
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Summary

Key principles underlying financial statement 
preparation

Objectivity
Conservatism
Matching
Revenue recognition

Income statement 
Preparing an income statement from transaction 
history 
Presentation
Information in components of income
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Time Value of Money

15.511 Corporate Accounting
Summer 2004

Professor S. P. Kothari
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

July 2, 2004
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LIABILITIES: Current 
Liabilities

Obligations that must be discharged in a short 
period of time (generally less than one year)
Reported on balance sheet at nominal value 
Examples:

Accounts payable
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt 
Deposits
Warranties
Deferred Revenues / Income
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LIABILITIES: Long-term 
Liabilities

Obligations spanning a longer period of time (generally 
more than one year)
Generally reported on the balance sheet at present value 
based on interest rate when initiated
Examples:

Bonds
Long-term loans
Mortgages
Capital Leases

How do we compute present values?  And interest 
expense?
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Time Value Of Money

Time 1
$1.00Interest = 10%

Time 1
$1.10

Time 0
$1.00

Future value of $ 1.00 today = $1.00 (1+10%) = $1.10 at the end of one year.

What is the present value of $1.10 to be received one year from now?

Present value of $1.10 one year from now = $1.10/(1+10%) = $1.00

What is the present value of $1.00 to be received one year from now?

Present value of $1.00 one year from now = $1.00/(1.10) = $0.91
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Time Value Of Money

$1.00$0.91$0.83

T=0
$1.00

T=1
$1.10

T=2
$1.21

Future value of $1.00 two years from now = $1.00*(1+10%)*(1+10%)
= $1.00*(1.10)2 = $1.21

Present value of $1.00 to be received two years from now 
= $1.00/[(1.10)2] = $0.83

RECALL: PV of $1.00 to be received a year from now = $0.91
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Calculating present values: An example

You have just won a lottery.  The lottery board offers 
you three different options for collecting your 
winnings:

(1)  Payments of $500,000 at the end of each year for 
20 years.

(2)  Lump-sum payment of $4,500,000 today.
(3)  Lump-sum payment of $1 million today, followed 

by $2,100,000 at the end of years 5, 6, and 7.

Assume all earnings can be invested at a 10 percent annual rate.
Ignoring any tax effects, which option should you choose and 
why?
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Future Value of Option 1: $500,000 at the 
end of each year for 20  years.
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

19 years $0.5m×(1.1)19= $3.06m

18 years $0.5m×(1.1)18= $2.78m

$0.5m×(1.1)1 = $0.55m

17 years $0.5m×(1.1)17= $2.53m

$0.5m×(1.1)0 = $0.50m

$28.64m
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Future Value of Option 2: Lump-sum 
payment of $4,500,000 today
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

20 years $4.5m ×(1.1)20= $30.27m
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Future Value of Option 3: $1m today, and 
$2.1m at the end of years 5, 6, and 7.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

20 years $1.0m×(1.1)20= $3.36m

15 years $2.1m×(1.1)15= $8.77m

14 years $2.1m×(1.1)14= $7.97m

13 years $2.1m×(1.1)13= $7.25m

$30.71m
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Future Values
If you invest all lottery receipts at 10% per year, 
how much will you have in 20 years?

1. $500K × (1.10)19 + $500K × (1.10)18 + ...
... + $500K × (1.10)1 + $500K  = $28.64m

2. $4,500,000 × (1.10)20 = $30.27m

3. $1m    × (1.10)20 + $2.1m × (1.10)15 + 
$2.1m × (1.10)14 + $2.1m × (1.10)13 = $30.71m

FV(Option 1) < FV(Option 2) < FV(Option 3)
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Present Value of Option 1: $500,000 at 
the end of each year for 20  years.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

3 years

1 year$0.5m×(1.1)-1  = $0.45m

$0.5m×(1.1)-2  = $0.41m

$0.5m×(1.1)-19= $0.08m

$0.5m×(1.1)-3  = $0.38m

$4.26m

$0.5m×(1.1)-20= $0.07m

2 years

19 years

20 years
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Present Value of Option 2:
Lump-sum payment of $4,500,000 today

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

$4.5m
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Present Value of Option 3: $1m today, and 
$2.1m at the end of years 5, 6, and 7.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

5 years

$1.0m×(1.1)0 = $1.00m

$2.1m×(1.1)-5  = $1.30m

$2.1m×(1.1)-6  = $1.19m

$2.1m×(1.1)-7 = $1.08m

$4.57m

6 years

7 years
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Present Values

If all lottery receipts can be invested at 10% per 
year, what is the present value of each option?

1. $500K × (1.10)-20 + $500K × (1.10)-19 + …
... + $500K× (1.10)-2 + $500K × (1.10)-1 = $4.26m

2. $4,500,000 × (1.10)0 = $4.5m

3. $1m × (1.10)0 + $2.1m × (1.10)-5 +
$2.1m × (1.10)-6 + $2.1m × (1.10)-7 = $4.57m

PV(Option 1) < PV(Option 2) < PV(Option 3)
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Converting Present and Future Values

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 19 20

Option 2
$4.50m

Present
Values

Future
Values

Option 1
$4.26m

Option 1
$28.64mFV = 4.26 × 1.120 = 28.64

FV = 4.50 × 1.120 = 30.27

FV = 4.57 × 1.120 = 30.71

PV = 28.64×1.1-20 = 4.26

PV = 30.27×1.1-20 = 4.50

PV = 30.71×1.1-20 = 4.57

Option 2
$30.27m

Option 3
$4.57m

Option 3
$30.71m
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Using PV and FV Tables (Appendix)

Table 1:  Future Value of $1 
A one-time payment to be received now and held (reinvested) 
for N periods
Compounded at interest rate r% 
Multiply the dollar amount received by the factor in Row N, 
Column r%

Table 2:  Present Value of $1
A one-time payment to be received N periods from now
Discounted at interest rate r
Multiply the dollar amount to be received by the factor in Row 
N, Column r
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Time Value of Money Terminology

Annuity:  a stream of fixed-dollar payments made at 
regular intervals of time

Ordinary Annuity (annuity in arrears): payments occur at the 
end of the period
Annuity due (annuity in advance):  payments occur at the 
beginning of the period

Formulas:
FV(a) = { [((1+r)^N) - 1] / r} * Fixed Period Cash Flow
PV(a) = { [(1 - (1+r)^(-N))] / r] } * Fixed Period Cash Flow
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Using PV and FV Tables (Appendix)

Table 3: Future Value of $1 ordinary 
annuity (annuity in arrears)

Regular payments to be received at end of year for N years 
and held (reinvested) until time N
Compounded at interest rate r%
Multiply the dollar amount received by the factor in Row N, 
Column r% 

FV of $1 annuity due (annuity in advance) = (FV of an 
ordinary annuity for N+1 years) - $1
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Using PV and FV Tables (Appendix)

Table 4:  Present Value of $1 ordinary annuity 
(annuity in arrears)

Regular payments to be received at end of year for N years
Discounted at interest rate r%
Multiply the dollar amount to be received by the factor in Row 
N,  Column r

PV of $1 annuity due (annuity in advance) = (PV of an 
ordinary annuity for N-1 years) + $1
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15.511 Corporate Accounting 
Recitation 4

June 29, 2004
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Accounting for Inventory 
– Cost flow assumption

InvEB = InvBB + Purchase/Production– COGS
Cost Flow Assumptions

Specific Identification: used when specific products 
can be tracked (e.g. cars)
FIFO (First In, First Out): COGS are assumed to be 
equal to the costs of the oldest available units in the 
financial records.
LIFO (Last In, First Out): COGS are assumed to be 
equal to the costs of the most recently purchased 
units in the financial records.
Averaging: COGS are assumed to be equal to a per-
unit weighted average cost at the end of the period

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

538
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



3

Accounting for Inventory 
– a comparison of LIFO and FIFO

Income 
Statement

Balance 
Sheet

LIFO New costs
(if LIFO liquidation, 
then new costs and 

old costs)

Old costs

FIFO Old costs New costs
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Accounting for inventory 
– tax consideration

LIFO conformity rule: if a firm uses 
LIFO for tax purpose, it must also use 
LIFO for financial reporting purpose.
Given the tax effects, what types of 
firms would you expect to choose 
each inventory method?
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Accounting for inventory 
– LIFO Reserve

LIFO Reserve = Ending Inv (FIFO) – Ending 
Inv (LIFO) = cumulative difference in FIFO 
– LIFO inventory
Change in LIFO Reserve = COGS (LIFO) –
COGS (FIFO)
Cumulative tax savings by using LIFO = 
LIFO Reserve * tax rate
Tax savings for a particular year by using 
LIFO = change in LIFO Reserve * tax rate
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6

Accounting for inventory 
– LIFO Reserve

LIFO Inventory + LIFO Reserve = FIFO Inventory

BB

Purchase

EB

BB

Change

EB

BB

Purchase

EB

COGS COGS

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

542
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



7

Summary of accounting for 
inventory

Matching principle requires a cost flow 
assumption, leading to different accounting 
methods (LIFO vs. FIFO).
Computation is trivial, but implications not: 
LIFO and FIFO produces temporary 
difference in accounting numbers.
No accounting method is innately superior: 
choice depends upon business 
environment, incentives of users, possibility 
of manipulation, etc.
Disclosure available to make numbers 
comparable across firms.
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15.511 Corporate Accounting 
Recitation 5

June 29, 2004
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Accounting for Long Lived Assets

The matching principle in action
What dollar amount to capitalize?
Over what time period should the asset be 
depreciated?
At what rate should the asset be depreciated?

Formulas
PPEEB = PPEBB + Acquisitions – Disposals
AccDepEB = AccDepBB + Depreciation – Acc 
DepDisposal

Proceeds from sale (cash) = Net Book Value + 
gain/loss
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Time value of money
Cash flows arrive at different time periods. We 
cannot add cash flows today to cash flows 
tomorrow.

Key tool to add cash flows: The interest rate, 
also called discount rate, cost of capital or 
opportunity cost.

Interest rate is a convenient (standardized) 
way of expressing the cost of borrowing or 
profit of lending on a per-dollar and per unit of 
time basis.
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Future value
Intuition: A dollar today is worth more than a dollar 
tomorrow. Why? 

Suppose you can invest at 10%:
In one year $1 will become $1.10.
Future value in one year of P invested today at rate of return 
r: P + rP = P(1 + r)

Future value = initial payment + accumulated interest

In general the future value in n years of P invested today 
is: FV = P(1 + r)...(1 + r) = P(1 + r)n

(1 + r)n is called the future value factor.
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Future value
Example 1: Bank pays 8% interest on 5-year CD 
and you deposit $10,000. What will it be worth in 
5 years?

Example 2: Which would you rather be given? (r 
= 8%) (a)  $100 today; (b)  $125 one year from 
today.
Calculate the future value of (a):
$100*(1+8%) = 108

$14,693  8%)(1*$10,000 5 =+
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Present value
What is the value today of $100 received a 
year from now?

How much would I need to save today in order 
to get $100 in one year?

Consider saving P today. One year from now 
you receive: P*(1+r)=100

The present value of $100 received one year 
from now is: 100/(1+r)

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

549
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



7

Present value

With an interest rate of 6%, what is 
the PV of $100 received one year 
from now? 

PV=100/1.06=94.34

What is the PV if r=10%?
PV=100/1.1=90.91
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Present value
With an interest rate of 10%, what is the PV of $100 
received two years from now?

In general the present value of F received n years 
from now is:

The term              is called present value factor.

The higher the r, the longer the time horizon, the 
lower the present value.

210%)100/(1PV +=

nr)F/(1PV +=

 r)1/(1 n+
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Agenda: Recitation 1 

� Highlights of what we covered so far. 

� Review of some technical items. 

� Examples. 
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Objective of Financial Accounting 

� To communicate financial information 
to parties outside the business 
organization. 
� Equity Investors 
� Creditors 
� Employees 
� Suppliers 
� Clients 
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Understanding Business Operations 

� Businesses have an accounting 
system that… 
� Collects and processes financial 

information about the organization… 
� Reports the information to decision 

makers and other interested parties… 
� Insiders (Management) 
� Outsiders (Investors, etc.) 
� Tax Authorities (IRS, etc.) 
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Understanding Business Operations 

� Accounting System 
� Financial Accounting 
� Preparation of four basic financial 

statements and other disclosures for 
external decision makers. 

� Managerial Accounting 
� 

and reports for internal decision makers. 
� Tax Accounting 
� Preparation of forms in accordance with the 

Preparation of detailed plans, forecasts, 

relevant tax code for the tax authorities. 
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Financial Accounting 

� The four basic financial statements: 
� Balance Sheet 
� Income Statement 
� Statement of Cash Flows 
� 

� Most companies prepare financial 
statements at the end of each year (called 
annual reports), at the end of each quarter 
(called quarterly reports), and following 
significant events (called current reports). 

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity 
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The Balance Sheet 

� Components of the Statement: 
� Assets 
� Economic benefits owned by the business 

as a result of past transactions. 
� Liabilities 
� Debt and other obligations of the business 

that result from past transactions. 
� 
� Residual claim of and financing provided by 

the owners of the business. 

Shareholders’ Equity 
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The Balance Sheet 

� Basic Accounting Equation: 

Assets = Liabilities + Shareholders’ Equity 
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The Income Statement 

� Three main groups: 
� Revenues 
� Sales Revenues 

� Expenses 
� Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) 
� 
� Research and Development (R&D) 
� Interest 
� Tax 

� Net Income 

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

� Reports the changes to other 
accounts which affect a change in the 
cash account on the balance sheet. 

� The change in the cash account is 
usually not equal to net income. 
� Revenues reported do not always equal 

cash collected. 
� Expenses reported do not always equal 

cash paid. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

� Indirect Method 
� Starts with net income and makes 

adjustments to yield cash flows from 
operations. 

� Relation to the Balance Sheet 
� The sum of cash flows from operations 

(CFO), cash flows from investing (CFI), 
and cash flows from financing (CFF) 
must equal to the change in the cash 
account on the balance sheet. 
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� Three main components: 
� Capital Contributions 
� Common and preferred stock. 

� Operating Transactions 
� Earnings generated from assets financed by 

creditors and owners. 
� Distributions 
� Dividends and share repurchases. 

� The residual claim is either distributed to 
owners or recognized under the 

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity 

shareholders’ equity account. 
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Statement of Retained Earnings 

� Income of the Enterprise: 
� Distributed to shareholders. 
� Dividends and share repurchases. 

� Retained by enterprise. 
� Retained earnings. 

� Clean Surplus Equation: 
� Beginning Retained Earnings 

Ending Retained Earnings 
+ Net Income – Dividends = 
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Notes 

� Provide supplementary information 
about the financial condition of the 
company. 
� Describe accounting rules applied. 
� Provide additional detail about an item 

on the financial statements. 
� Provide additional information about an 

item not on the financial statements. 
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Journal v. Balance Sheet Equation 

� The Balance Sheet Equation Method 
� Intuitive. 
� Not practical given many transactions. 

� The Journal Method 
� Transactions recorded as they occur 

under two categories (double entry). 
� Debits 
� Credits 

� Periodic posting of accounts in general 
ledger. 
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Text Book Problems 

� 1-18: 
� 1-21: 
� Net Income = 

Capital + Dividends 

� 2-20: 

B/S 
I/S 

Increase in Assets – Increase in 
Liabilities – Increase in Contributed 

B/S 
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1

15.511 Corporate Accounting 
Recitation 2

June 14, 2004          
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2

Agenda: Recitation 2

Journal entry and T-account
Rules and exercises

Cash accounting vs. Accrual accounting
Depreciation and Inventory

Accounting entry for sales, Adjusting 
entries, and Closing entries
Textbook problem 3-29
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Journal entries

Assets: debit means increases, credit 
means decreases
Liabilities and Owners’ Equity: debit 
means decreases, credit means 
increases
Revenues: debit means decreases, 
credit means increases
COGS and expenses: debit means 
increases, debit means decreases
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T-accounts
Assets Retained Earnings

Increases Decreases Decreases Increases

Liabilities Revenues

Decreases Increases Decreases Increases

Owners’ Equity COGS/Expenses

Decreases Increases Increases Decreases
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Journal entry exercises (1)
Dr.

Cr. Accumulated 
Depreciation

Dr. Retained Earnings
Cr.

Dr.
Cr. Prepaid Insurance

Dr. Accounts Receivable
Cr.

Dr.
Cr. Accounts Receivable

Dr. Accounts Payable
Cr.

Dr.
Cr. Accounts Payable
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Journal entry exercises (2)
Dr. Cost of Good Sold

Cr.

Dr.
Cr. Revenues

Dr.
Cr. Retained earnings

Dr. Property Tax Payable
Cr.

Dr. Merchandise Inventory
Cr.

Dr. Advances from 
Customers
Cr.

Dr.
Cr. Advances to 
Suppliers
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7

T-account exercise (1)
Cash Inventory

From owners 
and lenders, 
from sales, 
etc.

Pay owners, 
pay lenders, 
purchase raw 
material, pay 
employees, 
etc.

Purchase/

production
COGS

PP&E

Sell PP&EPurchase 
or build

Account Receivables

Accumulated DepreciationSales Cash 
collections, 
write-offs Sell PP&E Depreciation 

expense
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T-account exercise (2)
Account payable Retained earnings

PurchasesPayment COGS, 
expenses, 
dividends

Revenues

Long-term debt Revenues

Closing to 
retained 
earnings

Sales revenue, 
other revenuePay principal 

back
Borrowing

COGS/expenses
Owners’ Equity

Closing to 
retained 
earnings

COGS, 
expenses, tax 
expense, etc.

Dividend, 
stock 
repurchase

Contribute 
capital, retained 
earnings
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Adjusting entries
Adjusting entries record activities that have 
taken place, but which have not yet been 
recorded.
Four scenarios

Cash first, expenses later: prepaid expense, supplies, 
PP&E
Expenses first, cash later: wage accrued but not paid 
Cash first, revenues later: unearned revenues 
(earned as time goes by vs. earned when service 
delivered)
Revenues first, cash later: interest revenues accrued 
vs. credit sales
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15.511 Corporate Accounting 
Recitation 6

July 7, 2004
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Agenda

Marketable Securities (lecture notes)
Bonds
Leases
Deferred tax
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Accounting for Bonds 
- Terminology

Par value
Proceeds from issuance
Coupon rate
Market rate of interest at issuance
Current market interest rate
Book value of bond
Coupon payment
Interest expense
Zero-coupon bond
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Accounting for Bonds 
- Par/Discount/Premium

Bond sells Proceeds 
from 

issuance

Market 
rate at 

issuance

Coupon 
payment

At Par =Par value =Coupon 
rate

=Interest 
expense

At a 
Discount

<Par value >Coupon 
rate

<Interest 
expense

At a 
Premium

>Par value <Coupon 
rate

>Interest 
expense
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Accounting for Bonds 
- Entries

At issuance: 
At par: Dr. Cash (proceeds) Cr. Bond Payable (principal)
At a discount: Dr. Cash Dr. Discount Cr. Bond Payable
At a premium: Dr. Cash Cr. Bond Payable Cr. Premium

During the period when bond is outstanding
At par: Dr. Interest expense Cr. Cash
At a discount: Dr. Interest expense Cr. Discount Cr. Cash
At a premium: Dr. Interest expense Dr. Premium Cr. Cash

Payback of principal
Dr. Bond Payable  Cr. Cash
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Accounting for Bonds 
- Calculations

Use market interest rate at issuance (r) to discount and 
calculate the interest expense. Coupon rate is ONLY used 
to calculate the coupon payment.

Proceeds from issuance = coupon payments * PVOA 
(r,n) + principal * PV(r,n)
Premium/Discount = proceeds from issuance – par value
Interest Expense = book value of bond (net bond 
payable) * r = (par value -/+ Premium/Discount 
balance) * r
Premium accrual = coupon payment – interest expense
Discount accrual = interest expense – coupon payment

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

582
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



7

Accounting for Leases
Terminology

Operating Lease: Lessee rents the property. Lessee charges rent expenses 
as they become due in each period.
Capital Lease: Lessee essentially owns the property. Lessee records the 
leased asset in B/S together with the corresponding lease obligation. During 
the term of the lease, lessee charges depreciation expenses and interest 
expenses.

Criteria for lease capitalization: a lease is considered a capital lease if 
ANY of the following conditions apply.

Essential transfer of ownership at the end of lease term: no payment for 
leased asset, or Bargain purchase option (BPO) (payment below market value 
after the lease term).
Minimum present value of lease payments (including BPO, if any) at lease 
90% of asset’s market value.
Lease term is 75% of asset’s remaining useful life.
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Accounting for Leases
- Entries for capital leases

Accounting is similar to acquiring an asset with 100% debt financing.
Any payment in advance is recorded as an immediate reduction in the lease 
liability. 
During the lease term, interest expense and depreciation expense are 
recognized.
When the lease terminates, the Lease Obligation is zero and Leased Property –
Acc. Depre. = 0.

Lease inception: Dr. Leased Property  Cr. Lease Obligation
Leased Property = PV of Lease payments

Each lease period:
Dr. Interest Expense Dr. Lease Obligation Cr. Cash
Dr. Depreciation Expense  Cr. Accumulated Depreciation
Interest Expense= interest rate * Beginning balance of Lease Obligation
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Deferred Tax
Permanent differences: Differences between pre-tax GAAP income and 
pre-tax taxable income that will never be reversed, e.g. Government 
Fines, Tax-Exempt Revenue.
Temporary timing differences: Differences between pretax GAAP 
income and pre-tax taxable income that will be reversed at some point 
in the future. Temporary differences create Deferred Tax Liabilities and 
Deferred Tax Assets.
Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL)

Taxable Income < Pre-tax GAAP income, Tax Payable < Tax Expense
Taxpayer pays lower taxes today. A liability must be recorded to account for 
the added taxes to be paid at some point in the future.

Deferred Tax Assets (DTA)
Taxable Income > Pre-tax GAAP income, Tax Payable > Tax Expense
Taxpayer pays higher taxes today. An asset must be recorded to account for 
the value of lower taxes to be paid at some point in the future.
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Deferred Tax – effective tax rate 
vs. statutory tax rate

(GAAP pre-tax income – income from tax-exempt investments 
– foreign income taxed at rate lower than 35% - inter-
corporate dividends received) * statutory rate = Tax expense
Tax expense / pre-tax GAAP income = effective tax rate
Taxable income (including not only the adjustments above, but 
also different accounting treatments such as depre. Method) * 
statutory rate = Tax payable
Conclusion: DTL/DTA does not contain permanent differences. 
However, the difference between effective tax rate and 
statutory tax rate is partially caused by permanent differences.
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Marketable Securities
Sale of Securities Price change – not 

sold yet

Trading securities I/S – Realized 
gains/losses

I/S – Unrealized 
holding 
gains/losses

Available-for-sales I/S – Realized 
gains/losses

B/S (Other Equity) 
– Unrealized 
holding 
gains/losses
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Marketable Securities - example

Harvard, Ltd. And MIT Unlimited made the same 
investment – 200 shares of YOU Corporation at a cost of 
$12/share on Nov.12,2002. Harvard accounts for this 
investment as a trading security and MIT accounts for 
this investment as AFS. On Dec.31,2002 the market 
value YOU Corp. at $45/share. Both Harvard and MIT 
elected to keep the shares at this point of time and the 
tax rate is 30%. On Feb.14,2003 both Harvard and MIT 
decided to sell theirs shares in YOU, then trading at 
$50/share. Record the effects on the BSE of these 
transactions.
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Marketable Securities - example

Harvard, Ltd. – Trading securities

Date Cash Trading 
securities

Trading 
securities Adj.

= DTL Other 
Equity

Retained 
Earnings

11/12/02 -2,400 2,400

12/31/02 6,600 6,600

12/31/02 1,980 -1980

EB -2,400 2,400 6,600 1,980 4,620

02/14/03 10,000 -2,400 -6,600 1,000

02/14/03 -2,280 -1,980 -300

EB 5,320 0 0 0 5,320
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14

Marketable Securities - example

MIT – AFS 
Date Cash Trading 

securities
Trading 
securities Adj.

= DTL Other 
Equity

Retained 
Earnings

11/12/02 -2,400 2,400

12/31/02 6,600 6,600

12/31/02 1,980 -1980

EB -2,400 2,400 6,600 1,980 4,620

02/14/03 10,000 -2,400 -6,600 -4,620 5,620

02/14/03 -2,280 -1,980 -300

EB 5,320 0 0 0 5,320
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15.511 Corporate Accounting
Midterm Review

June 23, 2004
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Midterm review
• General principles

– Objectivity, Conservatism, Matching, Revenue 
Recognition

• Balance Sheet, Income Statement and 
Statement of Cash Flows

• Recording transactions
– BSE, Journal Entries, T-accounts
– Adjusting Entries and Closing Entries

• Ratio analysis
• Revenue recognition and Account Receivables
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General principles
• Objectivity Principle
• Conservatism Principle

– Do we capitalize R&D or expense it?
– Do we recognize bad debt expense even if we do not 

know the exact number?
• Matching Principle

– COGS contains only the cost of the goods sold. The 
cost of the goods unsold sits in Inventory account.

– Adjusting entries: prepaid rent
• Revenue Recognition Principle

– Do we recognize revenue when we receive advances 
from customers? 
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Financial Statements

– Assets = Liabilities + Shareholders’ Equity
– Net Income = Revenues – COGS – Expenses
– Ending balance of Retained Earnings = 

Beginning balance of Retained Earnings + 
Net Income – Dividends

– Total Cash Flow = CFO+CFI+CFF = Change 
in the balance of Cash on B/S
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Journal Entries and T-accounts
– Increases in assets are debited and recorded on the 

left side of the T-account 
– Increases in liabilities are credited and recorded on 

the right side of the T-account
– Increases in revenues are credited and recorded on 

the right side of the T-account
– Increases in expenses are debited and recorded on 

the left side of the T-account 
– Remember that the balances of the permanent 

accounts carry over to the next year!
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Adjusting Entries
– Match expenses to revenues
– Involve at least one temporary account 

(revenue, expense) and at least one 
permanent account (asset, liabilities)

– NEVER involve cash
– Expenses and revenues before cash: salary 

payable, interest receivable
– Cash paid or received before recognizing 

revenue or expense, eg., Advances from 
customers, prepaid insurance, depreciation.
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Closing Entries

• Bridge Income Statement and Retained 
Earnings

• Close Revenue into R/E by
– Dr. Revenues    Cr. R/E

• Close COGS/Expenses into R/E by
– Dr. R/E    Cr. COGS/Expenses

• How about dividend?
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Ratio Analysis

– Profitability
• ROA, ROE
• Decomposition of ROA and ROE

– Short-term liquidity
• Current ratio, quick ratio

– Long-term solvency
• Debt-to-equity ratio, interest-coverage ratio
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Account Receivables

• Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
– Percentage of sales: BDE=% of (credit) sales
– Aging: ADAEB=Pr(Uncollectible)*A/R

• Journal entries and T-accounts
– When sales made: Dr. A/R   Cr.Sales
– When cash collected: Dr. Cash   Cr. A/R
– To record the bad debt expense:  Dr. BDE   Cr. ADA
– To write off specific accounts: Dr. ADA    Cr. A/R
– To reinstate the write-off: Dr. A/R   Cr. ADA
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15.511 Corporate Accounting 
Recitation 3

June 18, 2004
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Why do we need CF/S?
Accrual accounting is often based upon 
subjective judgments that can introduce 
measurement error and uncertainty into the 
reported earnings number.

Estimates of uncollectible receivables, useful life of 
assets, and future pension and health-care benefits, 
write-offs.

Managers can readily manipulate accrual 
income.

Postpone discretionary expenditures like R&D
Manipulate accounting estimates
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Statement Format
Operating cash flows result from events or transactions that 
enter into the determination of net income, i.e., 
transactions related to the production and delivery of goods 
and services to customers. In effect, operating cash flows 
are the cash-basis revenues and expenses of a company.
Investing cash flows result from the purchase or sale of 
productive assets like plant and equipment, from the 
purchase or sale of marketable securities, and from the 
acquisition and divestitures of other companies.
Financing cash flows result when a company sells its own 
stocks or bonds, pays dividends or buys back its own 
shares, or borrow money and repays the amounts 
borrowed.
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The indirect approach
The indirect approach begins with the accrual-basis net 
income and adjust for:

Items included in accrual-basis net income that did not affect 
cash in the current period, such as

Noncash revenues or gains (e.g., revenues earned but not 
received in cash, gains on disposal of fixed assets);
Noncash expenses or losses (e.g., depreciation and 
amortization, expenses accrued but not paid in cash, and 
losses on disposal of fixed assets);

Items excluded from accrual-basis income that did affect 
operating cash flows in the current period, such as

Cash inflows (revenues) received but not recognized as earned 
in the current period (e.g., rent received in advance and 
collections on account);
Cash outflows (expenses) paid but not recognized for accrual 
purposes in the current period (e.g, prepaid insurance and 
payments on account).
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Why indirect approach?
The indirect approach is used by the overwhelming majority 
of public companies. Of the 600 companies included in the 
AICPA’s annual financial reporting survey, 589 (98.2%) 
used the indirect approach for Cash Flow from Operating 
Activities.

For cash flow from investing and cash flow from financing, the 
formats are the same for direct and indirect approach.

Two reasons
The indirect approach is easier for firms to implement because 
it relies exclusively on data already available in the accrual 
accounts.
The indirect approach is more familiar to many accountants 
because this format was widely used in the changes in working 
capital statement that preceded SFAS No. 95.
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One way to understand the adjustments

Cash + N$A = L +SE
∆Cash + ∆N$A = ∆L + ∆SE
∆Cash = - ∆N$A + ∆L + ∆SE
Therefore, increase in N$A appears with negative 
signs; increase in Liabilities appears with positive 
signs; increase in Shareholder’s Equity appears with 
positive signs.
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Another way to understand the adjustments (I)

Increase in A/R means that you collected less cash. 
Revenue overestimates the cash inflow from sales.
Increase in inventory means that you paid cash but 
didn’t recognize all of them into COGS. COGS 
underestimates the cash outflow for purchases.
Increase in prepaid insurance means you paid cash 
but didn’t recognize the payment as expenses yet. 
Expense account underestimates the cash outflow.
Increase in Assets = Decrease in CashIncrease in Assets = Decrease in Cash
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Another way to understand the adjustments (II)

Increase in A/P means you paid less cash for 
purchases or service received. COGS or Expense 
overestimates the cash outflow.
Increase in Salaries Payable, Tax Payable, etc. all 
means that you have not paid cash yet. However, the 
Expenses have been recognized. Expense account 
overestimates the cash outflow.
Increase in shortIncrease in short--term financing = Increase in term financing = Increase in 
CashCash
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Another way to understand the adjustments 
(III)

Increase in PPE, Land, and Intangible Assets means cash 
outflow. However, the Income Statement does not deal with 
them. The increases in Long-term assets are listed under 
Cash Flow from Investing Activities.
Increase in Bonds Payable, other Long-term Liabilities, and 
Common Stock means cash inflow. Again, Income 
Statement does not deal with them either. The increase in 
Long-term liabilities and Common Stock are listed under 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities.
Where do we put the increase in Retained Earnings?

Net Income is at the top of CFO and Dividend is under CFF.
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Two ways to construct the CF/S 

Columnar Work Sheet
Step 1: calculate the change in each balance sheet 
item and enter the changes in non-cash items in the 
first column of the work sheet with the appropriate 
signs.
Step 2: classify the changes as an operating, 
investing, or financing activities and enter  them into 
the appropriate columns.

T-account Work Sheet 
Set up a big T-account for Cash. Set up T-accounts 
corresponding to every other items on the balance 
sheet and enter the beginning and ending balance 
carefully.
Analyze the change in each small T-account and post 
the changes into the big Cash T-account.
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The choice

Use columnar work sheet if there is no 
extra info on the sale of assets.

Use T-account work sheet if there is extra 
info on the sale of assets other than the 
B/S, I/S.

It’s hard to tease out the impact from sales of 
assets on the operating section and investing 
section without the help of T-accounts.
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Statement of Cash Flows Analysis
1 2 3 4

CFO Positive Positive Positive Positive

CFI Positive Negative Positive Negative

CFF Positive Negative Negative Positive

? Cash cow LBO Less mature

Restructuring Growth firm Liquidating ?

5 6 7 8

CFO Negative Negative Negative Negative

CFI Positive Negative Positive Negative

CFF Positive Positive Negative Negative
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Due June 11, 2004 
15.511 
Problem Set 1 
Use of the Balance Sheet Equation to record transactions and for the preparation of 
financial statements 

On July 1, 2000, TIM, Inc. started as a business entity.  A summary of transactions through 
December 31, 2000 is presented below. 

1.	 Stockholders invested $50,000 in cash in Bank Boston in the name of the business. 
2.	 New computer equipment is purchased for $6,000 in cash. Equipment will be used for 3 

years. 
3.	 Office rent for half a year is paid in advance, $8,000. 
4.	 Dividends of $500 paid to existing shareholders. 
5.	 Paid $10,000 to employees for services provided. 
6.	 Paid utility bills, $2000. 
7.	 Provided (and completed) design services on account to customers, $30,000.  
8.	 Collected cash of $2,000 for services billed in 7. 

Required: 

a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the transactions using the Balance Sheet Equation (BSE) through 
December 31, 2000.  Be sure to label your transactions. 

b) Prepare the balance sheet as of December 31, 2000.  From what part of the BSE table did you 
get the information to prepare the balance sheet? 

c) Prepare the income statement for the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000. 
From what part of the BSE table did you get the information to prepare the income statement?  

d) How much cash flowed in and out of TIM, Inc. in the period from July 1, 2000 through 
December 31, 2000?  How much of this cash inflow or outflow do you consider relevant to TIM, 
Inc.’s operations? 

e) Compare the net cash flow that is considered relevant to operations (from (d) above) and TIM, 
Inc.’s profits in the same period.  What transactions and events account for the difference? 

f) Which of the accounts you created in the BSE table are considered “temporary”, and which 
ones are considered “permanent”? Briefly explain the difference.   
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Due on June 15, 2003 
15.511 
Problem Set 2 
Chemalite 

The following questions refer to the Chemalite, Inc case in the course pack (Wilson, David A. 
“Chemalite, Inc.” Boston, MA: Harvard Business School, 2003. Case No. 9-177-078). You should 
ignore the 5 questions at the end of the case and answer the following in their place. 

1.	 Record the effects of Chemalite’s 1991 events on a Balance Sheet Equation (BSE) worksheet, 
filling in appropriate account headings at the top. When you have completed the event 
analysis, compute the ending balances for each account.  Alternatively, you may use journal 
entries and T-accounts to do the problem. 

Note: 
(a) Label each event in the first column, using a “P” prefix for those transactions that 

occurred prior to Chemalite’s start of operations (P1, P2, etc. for events during January 
2, 1991 through June 30, 1991); a “T” prefix for those transactions that occurred on the 
last half of 1991 (T1, T2, etc.) and an “O” prefix for the other remaining events (O1, 
O2, etc…) 

(b) For each event that affects Retained Earnings (RE), provide a brief description in the 
last column (i.e., Revenue, R&D expense). 

(c) If an identified event does not affect the BSE, briefly (10 words or  so) explain why 

2.	 Several of the events you recorded in Question 1 required you to make one or more 
assumptions. Pick two such events and briefly (25 words or less for each) explain your 
rationale for the assumption(s) you made. 

3.	 Prepare year-end financial statements for Chemalite, Inc. - Balance Sheet, Income Statement, 
and Statement of Retained Earnings. 

4.	 Refer to the Cash account in column 1.  Classify whether the transaction that affects cash is 
related to the firm’s operations, investments, or financing activities. Prepare a report that lists 
transactions in these three categories and the corresponding amount of cash inflow or outflow 
(this report is called the direct statement of cash flows).  How much of the total cash change is 
related to operations?  How much is related to financing?  How much is related to 
investments? 

5.	 Based on the information in 3) and 4), explain the apparent contradiction in Alexander’s mind 
on why Chemalite’s bank account fails to reflect his sense that the firm is “doing quite well”.  
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Due June 22, 2004 
15.511: Corporate Accounting 
Problem Set 3 
Revenue Recognition and Accounting for Account Receivables 

1. Dove Company's balance sheet for Dec. 31, 1999 included the following information: 

Accounts Receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $25,200) .........  $462,700 


The company had credit sales of $870,000 during FY2000. Historically, the company's credit 
manager has estimated that 4% of credit sales will not be collected.  

During FY2000, the company wrote off customer accounts with a face value of $30,000.  At the 
end of the year, a newly hired analyst presented the credit manager with the following breakdown of 
outstanding accounts receivable and the probability of customer default: 

Probability 
Balance of not being 

Age of Accounts Receivable  Receivable  Collected 
0 - 30 days $400,000 .005 
31 - 60 days 90,000 .010 
61 - 120 days 40,000 .100 
More than 120 days 20,000 .700 

Required: 
a.	 If Dove Company continues to use its historical percentage-of-credit-sales approach, how much 

bad debt expense will it recognize for FY2000?  What will it report as the ending balance for 
the book value of accounts receivable? 

b.	 If Dove Company applies the aging-of-accounts receivable method, using the credit analyst's 
estimates in the table above, how much bad debt expense will it recognize for FY2000?  What 
will it report as the ending balance for the book value of accounts receivable? 

c.	 What do the differences between the numbers you computed for parts a. and b. above suggest 
about the accuracy of Dove Company's past accruals for bad debt?  Has the company tended to 
over-estimate or under-estimate uncollectible credit sales?  Briefly explain. 
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2 

2.	 The footnotes to Barnes & Noble's FY1999 financial statements include the following information: 

Revenue Recognition 
“Revenue from sales of the Company's products are recognized at the time of sale.  The 

Company sells memberships which entitle purchasers to additional discounts.  The membership 
revenue is deferred and recognized as income over the 12-month membership period.” – Source: 
Barnes & Noble’s 1999 Annual Report, page 42, 2000 

Suppose that B&N sold $240 worth of memberships, for cash, on December 1, 1999. 

Required: 
a.	 Show the effects on the Balance Sheet Equation (BSE) of the 12/1/99 transaction. 
b.	 Estimate how those memberships affected revenue for FY1999 (which ended on 1/29/2000) 

and show the BSE effects of the accounting entry B&N would have had to record on 
1/29/2000.1   Briefly explain how you derived your estimate. 

1 As a retailer, B&N has chosen to define its fiscal year as February through January; FY1999 ends on 
1/29/2000. 
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Due July 6, 2004 
15.511: Corporate Accounting 
Problem Set 4 

I. Accounting for Depreciation, Delta-Pan Am Airlines case write-up 
Answer questions 1. (a), 2, and 3 at the end of the case.  It may be helpful to present your 
answer in question 1 by tabulating the depreciation assumptions used by the two airlines: 

 Depreciation Life 
(yrs) 

Salvage value Annual Depreciation 

Delta: 
Before 01/01/1993 
After 01/01/1993 

Pan Am: 
Before 01/01/1993 
After 01/01/1993 

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

616
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN

cc_ababba
Text Box
Continued on next page....



II. Depreciation Calculation 

1.	 Dove Company acquired a new machine on 1/1/1999.  It paid the vendor $4,000 cash and 
signed a promissory note for an additional $9,000, due in 3 years (10% interest annually).  In 
addition, the firm spent $400 to transport the machine to its factory, $600 to install it, and 
$1,200 to train employees who will operate it.  The manufacturing manager expects the 
machine to last for 6 years, over which time it will provide 24,000 hours of service.  The 
estimated salvage value is $2,000. 

a.	 Calculate the depreciation charge for each of the first three years using the straight-line 
method. 

b.	 Calculate the annual depreciation charges under the activity method.  Actual machine 
usage was 6,000 hours, 5000 hours, and 4,000 hours respectively in 1999, 2000, and 
2001. 

c.	 At the start of 2002, Dove makes an improvement to the machine that extends its useful 
service life to a total of 9 years.  The improvement costs $6,000.  The salvage value 
estimate is unchanged.  For the straight-line depreciation method only, determine how 
much depreciation expense Dove should recognize for this machine in 2002. 

d.	 Assume that after making the improvement in c., Dove continues operating this machine 
through the end of 2005. At that time, a new generation of technology is available, and 
Dove's managers decide to replace this machine.  They are able to sell it for $1,000 cash. 
Record the effects of this sale on the Balance Sheet Equation, assuming the company had 
continued to use straight-line depreciation.   

e.	 Specify how the PP&E-related bookkeeping entries for 2005 would affect Dove's income 
statement and statement of cash flows. 
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III. Inferring Cash Flows from Depreciation Disclosures 

The balance sheets of Wilcox Corporation at the beginning and end of the year contained the 
following data: 

Beginning of End of Year 
Year 

Property, Plant, and Equipment (at cost) $400,000 $550,000 
Accumulated Depreciation 180,000 160,000 
Property, Plant, and Equipment (net) $220,000 $390,000 

During the year, Wilcox Corporation sold machinery and equipment at a gain of $4,000.  It 
purchased new machinery and equipment at a cost of $230,000.  Depreciation charges on 
machinery and equipment for the year amounted to $50,000.  

Calculate the proceeds Wilcox Corporation received from the sales of the machinery and 
equipment. 
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Problem Set 5: Due Saturday, July 10 by Noon 
15.511 
Deferred Taxes, Marketable Securities   

I. Depreciation and deferred taxes 

TJ Co uses an accelerated method of depreciation for tax purposes and straight-line for 
financial reporting. In 1996, TJ Co purchased a new asset for $2,000,000. For financial 
reporting purposes, they will depreciate this asset over 8 years to a salvage value of 
$400,000. For tax purposes, the company will depreciate the asset over 4 years to a 
salvage value of zero using the following annual percentage of the acquisition cost: 
0.3333, 0.4445, 0.1481, and 0.0741. Net income before taxes, and taxable income are 
otherwise the same for financial and tax purposes, and equal $1,000,000 before 
depreciation in each year. The tax rate is 35%. 

Required: 

a.	 Determine the amount of depreciation that will take place for financial reporting 
and tax purposes in each of the first 5 years. Use this information to compute net 
income before taxes (NIBT) and taxable income, respectively, in each year.  Note 
that NIBT is reported in the firm’s financial statements.  Taxable income is 
reported in the firm’s tax filings.  

b.	 At the beginning of year 6, the asset is sold for $1,000,000. Record the balance 
sheet equation effects of this transaction for financial statement purposes. Would 
the same amount of gain/loss be reported to tax authorities?  Briefly explain. 
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II. Accounting treatment of trading and available for sale securities 

Levy Company and Guyer Books made the same equity investment – 300 shares of 
Watson Manufacturing at a cost of $14 per share – on November 18.  On December 31, 
the market value of Watson had risen to $40 per share.  Guyer Books held its investment 
in Watson, while Levy sold the shares and immediately repurchased them at the 
December 31 market value. 

Required: 

a.	 Compute the balance sheet value and income effect associated with these events 
recorded by the two companies, assuming that the investment was classified as 
trading and as available-for-sale.  That is, fill in the following chart with the 
appropriate dollar values. Ignore taxes. 

Guyer Books Levy Co. 
Balance Income Balance Income 

Sheet Effect Sheet Effect 
Value Value 

Investment classified as: 
(a.) Trading Securities 
(b.) Available-for-sale 

Securities 

b. Discuss the difference. 
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III.         Applying the mark-to-market rule to investments in equity securities. 

O’Leary Enterprises began investing in short-term equity securities in 1999.  The 
following information was extracted from its 1999 internal financial records.  Houser and 
Miller were classified as trading securities, while Nordic was classified as available-for-
sale securities. 

Security Purchase Sales Total 
Dividends 
Received 

12/31/99 
Market 
Value* 

Houser Company 90 shares @ $22 60 shares @ $25 $40 $25 
Miller, Inc. 180 shares @ $40 90 shares @ $30 85 35 
Nordic Equipment 170 shares @ $70 145 shares @ $ 95 50 90 
*Per share 


Required: 

Record the balance sheet equation for all transactions and price changes in 1999. Assume

a tax rate of 30% 
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 Name ____________________________ 

 Section ___________________________ 

 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTING 15.511 
SUMMER 2004 
FINAL EXAM 

 
 
Exam Guidelines: 

- You have 120 minutes to complete the exam.  Please use your time efficiently. 
- This exam contains 11 pages. Please make sure your copy is not missing pages. 
- If necessary, make assumptions to solve problems. State your assumptions clearly. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Good luck! 
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Problem 1 (15 marks, 15 minutes) 
 
A company provides you with the following information about their inventory purchases 
and sales: 
 
Date  Units Unit Cost Total 
January 1,   2004 Beginning Inventory 6 $14.00 $84.00 
January 10, 2004 Purchase #1 20 $14.25 $285.00 
January 20, 2004 Purchase #2 10 $14.50 $145.00 
     
January 15, 2004 Sale #1 12 $32.00 $384.00 
January 25, 2004 Sale #2 15 $32.50 $487.50 
 
  
 
 

A. Using the FIFO method, calculate the company’s cost of goods sold for January 
2004 and the company’s ending inventory as of Jan. 31, 2004.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Using the LIFO method, calculate the company’s cost of goods sold for January 
2004 and the company’s ending inventory as of Jan. 31, 2004. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 2
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Problem 2 (30 marks, 30 minutes)   
(You may answer using journal entries, T-accounts, or balance sheet equation.)   
 
On January 1, 2005, Golf Tee Inc. will acquire a vehicle from a car dealership for $50,000.  
The dealership offers to lease the vehicle to Golf Tee Inc. for five years with payments of 
$12,462 due on December 31 of each year.  The expected resale value of the car after five 
years is $0, and the borrowing rate for Golf Tee Inc. is 12%. 
 
 

A. By simply examining the terms, do you believe this lease qualifies as a capital lease 
or an operating lease?  Explain.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. What borrowing rate is the car dealership charging Golf Tee Inc.?  Is it 10%, 12%, 

or 14%?  Explain.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 3
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C. Assuming the borrowing rate is 12%, and assuming the lease qualifies as an 
operating lease, provide the journal entrees for Golf Tee Inc. for the first two years 
of the lease. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D. Assuming the borrowing rate is 12% and assuming the lease qualifies as a capital 

lease, provide the journal entries for Golf Tee Inc. for the first two years of the 
lease. 
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Problem 3 (25 marks, 25 minutes) 
 
Use financial statement information for Coca-Cola to answer parts a, b and c of this 
question.   

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement and Balance Sheet (pp. 51-53) 
from:  The Coca-Cola Company. “United States Securities and Exchange Commission  
Form 10-K.” 27 February 2004.  Available at: http://www.coca-cola.com/ (accessed July 
31, 2004). 

 
Use financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo to answer parts d and e of 
this question.   
 

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement and Balance Sheet (pp. 58 and 
60) from:  PepsiCo. “PepsiCo 2003 Annual Report.” 9 February 2004.  Available at: 
http://www.pepsico.com/ (accessed July 31, 2004). 

 
 
 

A. Using information from the financial statements for Coca-Cola, compute the 
current ratio and the quick ratio for 2003.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. What is your analysis of the short-term liquidity of Coca-Cola? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 5
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C. Using information from the financial statements for Coca-Cola, compute the 
interest coverage ratio 2003. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D. Using the financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo for 2003, 

which company’s profit margin is higher?   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. Using the financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo for 2003, 

which company is more efficient in using assets to generate sales?   
 

   
 

 6
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Problem 4 (50 marks, 50 minutes) 
(You may answer using journal entries, T-accounts, or balance sheet equation.)   
 
Ignoring taxes unless otherwise stated, fully account for the following events related to 
Nanosoft Corporation as they occur: 
 

A. January 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation acquires a building for $1,500,000. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

B. February 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation acquires 10,000 shares of Pear 
Corporation at $20 per share for short-term profit potential.  Pear Corporation has 
200 million shares outstanding. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
C. June 6, 2000:  On good news, the stock price of Pear Corporation appreciates to $25 

per share. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
D. September 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation sells one-fourth of its shares in Pear 

Corporation for $75,000. 
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E. December 31, 2000:  The office building acquired in part A has an estimated useful 
life of 5 years, after which point, the company expects to sell it for $500,000.  
Nanosoft Corporation decides to use a straight-line depreciation schedule.  Record 
the financial accounting (GAAP) depreciation for the year 2000. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
F. December 31, 2000: Nanosoft Corporation reports Sales Revenues of $1,000,000, 

COGS of $200,000, SG&A Expenses of $50,000.  Pear Corporation’s stock closes at 
$30 per share during the last trade of the year. 
  
At this stage ignore taxes.  Prepare Nanosoft Corporation’s GAAP income 
statement for the year 2000 up to income before taxes.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G. Given a 20% tax rate, calculate the GAAP tax expense and the Net Income for the 
year 2000. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H. Tax authorities prescribe an accelerated depreciation schedule, which stipulates a 
depreciation of 60% and 40% of the assets historical cost in the first and second 
year, respectively, and no depreciation after that point.  Calculate the depreciation 
expense for tax accounting purposes for year 2000.   
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I. Will item H. cause the deferred tax liability to increase?  {For extra credit:  By how 
much?} 
 

 
 

 9

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

630
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



 Name ____________________________ 

 Section ___________________________ 

 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTING 15.511 
SUMMER 2004 
FINAL EXAM 

 
 
Exam Guidelines: 

- You have 120 minutes to complete the exam.  Please use your time efficiently. 
- This exam contains 11 pages. Please make sure your copy is not missing pages. 
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Good luck! 
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Problem 1 (15 marks, 15 minutes) 
 
A company provides you with the following information about their inventory purchases 
and sales: 
 
Date  Units Unit Cost Total 
January 1,   2004 Beginning Inventory 6 $14.00 $84.00 
January 10, 2004 Purchase #1 20 $14.25 $285.00 
January 20, 2004 Purchase #2 10 $14.50 $145.00 
     
January 15, 2004 Sale #1 12 $32.00 $384.00 
January 25, 2004 Sale #2 15 $32.50 $487.50 
 
  
 
 

A. Using the FIFO method, calculate the company’s cost of goods sold for January 
2004 and the company’s ending inventory as of Jan. 31, 2004.  

 
FIFO COGS = 6units*$14/unit+6units*$14.25/unit + 14units*$14.25/unit + 1unit*$14.5/unit = 
$383.5 
 
FIFO Ending Inventory = 9 units * $14.5/unit = $130.5 
 
 
To double check, Cost of Goods Available for Sale = COGS + Ending Inv. = $514 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Using the LIFO method, calculate the company’s cost of goods sold for January 
2004 and the company’s ending inventory as of Jan. 31, 2004. 

 
 
LIFO COGS = 12units * $14.25 + 10units*$14.5/unit + 5units*$14.25/unit = $387.25 
LIFO Ending Inventory = 6units * $14/unit + 3units * $14.25/unit = $126.75 
 
To double check, Cost of Goods Available for Sale = COGS + Ending Inv. = $514 
 
 
 

 2
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Problem 2 (30 marks, 30 minutes)   
(You may answer using journal entries, T-accounts, or balance sheet equation.)   
 
On January 1, 2005, Golf Tee Inc. will acquire a vehicle from a car dealership for $50,000.  
The dealership offers to lease the vehicle to Golf Tee Inc. for five years with payments of 
$12,462 due on December 31 of each year.  The expected resale value of the car after five 
years is $0, and the borrowing rate for Golf Tee Inc. is 12%. 
 
 

A. By simply examining the terms, do you believe this lease qualifies as a capital lease 
or an operating lease?  Explain.   

 
 
Capital Lease, because “the expected resale value of the car after five year is $0”, which 
means that the useful life of the car is five years Golf Tee Inc. leases the whole useful life of 
the car. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. What borrowing rate is the car dealership charging Golf Tee Inc.?  Is it 10%, 12%, 

or 14%?  Explain.   
 
Answer 1) 12%. It is the borrowing rate for Golf Tee Inc. If the car dealership charges more than 
12%, then Golf Tee can go borrow the money from its bank and purchase the car. Therefore, 
12% is the highest rate the car dealership can charge Golf Tee. 
 
Answer 2) 8%. Since Golf Tee leases five years out of the five years useful life of the car, the 
market value of the car has to be equal to the present value of the lease payments. 
50,000 = $12,462 * PVOA(r,5 periods) 
PVOA(r,5 periods) = 4.0122 
r= 8% (approximately) 
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C. Assuming the borrowing rate is 12%, and assuming the lease qualifies as an 
operating lease, provide the journal entrees for Golf Tee Inc. for the first two years 
of the lease. 

 
 
12/31/: Dr. Rent Expense   $12,462 
  Cr. Cash                 $12,462 
 
2nd year: Dr. Rent Expense   $12,462 
  Cr. Cash                 $12,462 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4
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D. Assuming the borrowing rate is 12% and assuming the lease qualifies as a capital 

lease, provide the journal entries for Golf Tee Inc. for the first two years of the 
lease. 

 
PV of lease payments = $12,462 * PVOA(12%,5) = $12,462 * 3.60478 = $44,922.77 
 
1/1/2005: Dr. Leased Assets             $44,922.77 
  Cr. Lease Obligation               $44,922.77 
 
12/31/2005: Dr. Interest Expense     $5,391 (=$44922.77*12%) 
           Lease Obligation     $7,071 (=$12,462-$5391) 
   Cr. Cash                              $12,462 
 
      Dr. Depreciation Expense   $8,984.5 (=44,922.77/5) 
   Cr. Accumulated Depreciation   $8,984.5 
 
12/31/2006: Dr. Interest Expense     $4,542 (=($44922.77-$7,071)*12%) 
           Lease Obligation     $7,920 (=$12,462-$4,542) 
   Cr. Cash                              $12,462 
 
      Dr. Depreciation Expense   $8,984.5  
   Cr. Accumulated Depreciation   $8,984.5 
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Problem 3 (25 marks, 25 minutes) 
 
Use financial statement information for Coca-Cola to answer parts a, b and c of this 
question.   

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement and Balance Sheet (pp. 51-53) 
from:  The Coca-Cola Company. “United States Securities and Exchange Commission  
Form 10-K.” 27 February 2004.  Available at: http://www.coca-cola.com/ (accessed July 
31, 2004). 

 
Use financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo to answer parts d and e of 
this question.   
 

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement and Balance Sheet (pp. 58 and 
60) from:  PepsiCo. “PepsiCo 2003 Annual Report.” 9 February 2004.  Available at: 
http://www.pepsico.com/ (accessed July 31, 2004). 

 
 
 

A. Using information from the financial statements for Coca-Cola, compute the 
current ratio and the quick ratio for 2003.   

 
 
Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities = 8,396/7,886 =1.06 
Quick ratio = (cash + receivables) / current liabilities = (3,362+2,091)/7,886 = 0.69 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. What is your analysis of the short-term liquidity of Coca-Cola? 
 
 
From the class slides, we know that an adequate current ratio is around 2.  Coca-Cola’s 
current ratio is well-below that target ratio, therefore the company needs to improve its short-
term liquidity situation.  Nevertheless, Coca-Cola still meets the “minimum” current ratio of 
1; however, the quick ratio is well-below an optimum ratio of 1.  Given the company’s 
immense brand power, this might only cause slight concern among analysts and investors, 
but Coca-Cola’s management should take some actions to solidify its short-term liquidity.  
 
 
 

 6
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C. Using information from the financial statements for Coca-Cola, compute the 
interest coverage ratio 2003. 

 
 
Interest coverage ratio = (Net income + interest expense + tax expense)/interest expense = 
(4,347+1,148+178)/178 = 31.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D. Using the financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo for 2003, 

which company’s profit margin is higher?   
 
Profit margin = (Net income + interest expense (1-tax rate))/sales 
 
Coco-Cola profit margin = (4,347+178*(1-21%))/21,044 = 21.3% 
PepsiCo profit market = (3,568+163*(1-29%))/26,971 = 13.7% 
 
Coco-Cola’s profit margin is higher. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. Using the financial statement information for Coca-Cola and PepsiCo for 2003, 

which company is more efficient in using assets to generate sales?   
 

   
Asset turnover ratio (sales/average total assets) reflects how efficient a company uses its assets to 
generate sales. 
 
Coco-Cola asset turnover ratio = 21,044/(0.5*(27,342+24,501)) = 0.812 
PepsiCo asset turnover ratio = 26,971/(0.5*(25,327+23,474)) = 1.1 
 
PepsiCo uses its assets more efficiently. 

 7
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Problem 4 (50 marks, 50 minutes) 
(You may answer using journal entries, T-accounts, or balance sheet equation.)   
 
Ignoring taxes unless otherwise stated, fully account for the following events related to 
Nanosoft Corporation as they occur: 
 

A. January 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation acquires a building for $1,500,000. 
 

January 1, 2000: Dr.  PP&E    $1,500,000 
    Cr. Cash    $1,500,000 
   Building purchased. 

  
 

B. February 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation acquires 10,000 shares of Pear 
Corporation at $20 per share for short-term profit potential.  Pear Corporation has 
200 million shares outstanding. 

 
February 1, 2000: Dr. Marketable Securities  $200,000 
    Cr. Cash    $200,000 

10,000 shares of Pear Corporation purchased at $20 per share and 
classified as Trading Securities. 

  
 

C. June 6, 2000:  On good news, the stock price of Pear Corporation appreciates to $25 
per share. 

 
June 6, 2000:  Dr. MS Adjustment  $50,000 
    Cr. Capital Gain (RE)  $50,000 

Value of holding in Pear Corporation marked to market and capital 
gain recognized. 

  
 

D. September 1, 2000:  Nanosoft Corporation sells one-fourth of its shares in Pear 
Corporation for $75,000. 

 
September 1, 2000: Dr. Cash    $75,000 
    Cr. Marketable Securities  $50,000 
     MS Adjustment  $12,500 
     Capital Gain (RE)  $12,500 

2,500 shares of Pear Corporation sold at $30 per share and capital 
gain recognized. 

 September 1, 2000: Dr.  MS Adjustment  $37,500 
     Cr. Capital Gain (RE)  $37,500 
    Value of remaining holding in Pear Corporation marked to market. 
  
 OR 

 8
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 September 1, 2000: Dr. MS Adjustment  $50,000 
     Cr. Capital Gain (RE)  $50,000 

Value of holding in Pear Corporation marked to market and capital 
gain recognized. 

 September 1, 2000: Dr. Cash    $75,000 
     Cr. Marketable Securities  $50,000 
      MS Adjustment  $25,000 
    2,500 shares of Pear Corporation sold at $30 per share. 

 
 

E. December 31, 2000:  The office building acquired in part A has an estimated useful 
life of 5 years, after which point, the company expects to sell it for $500,000.  
Nanosoft Corporation decides to use a straight-line depreciation schedule.  Record 
the financial accounting (GAAP) depreciation for the year 2000. 

 
December 31, 2000: Dr. Depreciation Expense (RE) $200,000 ([1.5m-.5m]/5) 
    Cr. Accumulated Depreciation $200,000 
   Adjustment for depreciation on building. 

 
 

F. December 31, 2000: Nanosoft Corporation reports Sales Revenues of $1,000,000, 
COGS of $200,000, SG&A Expenses of $50,000.  Pear Corporation’s stock closes at 
$30 per share during the last trade of the year. 
  
At this stage ignore taxes.  Prepare Nanosoft Corporation’s GAAP income 
statement for the year 2000 up to income before taxes.  
 
Income Statement 
 
Sales Revenues  $1,000,000   (Given) 
COGS       $200,000   (Given) 
SG&A         $50,000   (Given) 
Depreciation      $200,000   (Calculated in E) 
Capital Gain      $100,000   (Calculated in C and D) 
Income Before Taxes     $650,000 

 
 

G. Given a 20% tax rate, calculate the GAAP tax expense and the Net Income for the 
year 2000. 
 
Income Before Taxes x Tax Rate = $650,000 x 20% = $130,000 
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H. Tax authorities prescribe an accelerated depreciation schedule, which stipulates a 
depreciation of 60% and 40% of the assets historical cost in the first and second 
year, respectively, and no depreciation after that point.  Calculate the depreciation 
expense for tax accounting purposes for year 2000.   

 
Historical Cost of Asset x 60% = $1,500,000 x 60% = $900,000 

 
 

I. Will item H. cause the deferred tax liability to increase?  {For extra credit:  By how 
much?} 
 
Increase. 
 
The higher depreciation expense under tax accounting will result in a lower taxable 
income than income before taxes for financial accounting purposes.  As a result, tax 
expense will be higher than the tax payable or actually paid.  To balance the two 
accounts, a deferred tax liability account will be created. 
 
Change in deferred tax liability due to differences in depreciation expense = 

(Depreciation Expense for Tax Purposes – Depreciation Expense for Financial 
Purposes) x Tax Rate = 
(900,000 – 200,000) x 20% = $140,000 
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Name ___________________________ 

Section ___________________________ 

ACCOUNTING 15.511 
SUMMER 2004 
MIDTERM EXAM 

Exam Guidelines:  

- You have 80 minutes to complete the exam.  Please use your time efficiently 
and read the questions carefully. 

- This exam contains 12 pages, including the cover page. Please make sure your 
copy is not missing any pages.  

- If necessary, make assumptions to solve problems, and state your assumption 
clearly. 

Good luck! 
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2 

PROBLEM 1 (30 Minutes, 30 Marks) 

CW Company engages in the following activities during Year 1: 

1. January 1, Year 1: CW issues 10,000 shares of stock at $20 par-value.  

2. January 20, Year 1: 	CW purchases a building for $50,000 and purchases equipment 
for $20,000. It pays half the price in cash and the other half through a bank loan.   

3. March 1, Year 1: 	CW acquires finished goods for $20,000.  CW pays cash for half of 
the merchandise, and the remainder is purchased on account. 

4. March 30, Year 1: CW pays $25,000 in employee salaries. 

5. July 1, Year 1: 	CW decides to rent additional building space and pays for six months 
rent, at $2000 a month, in advance. 

6. August 22, Year 1: 	 CW sells all of the finished goods for $400,000, of which 
$200,000 is on account and the remainder is received in cash.  CW expects to collect 
95% of its credit sales. 

On the sales made on August 22, CW also offers certain services on the sold 
merchandise for the first three months.  CW estimates these services to amount to 
$5000. 

7. October 30, Year 1: CW collects $100,000 in cash from its accounts receivable, and 
uses this money to pay down its accounts payable. 

8. November 23, Year1: CW Company performs services on sold merchandise at cost of 
$5000 to date. 

9. December 30, Year 1: Depreciation for the year is $2000 on the building and $2400 on 
the equipment.   

10. December 30, Year 1:  CW pays $250,000 in dividends. 
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3 

A. Make entries to record the above transactions. 	 You may use the Balance 
Sheet Equation or a journal entry. 
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4 

B. Make necessary adjusting entries on December 31, Year 1.   
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5 

PROBLEM 2 (5 minutes, 5 marks) 

Answer ONE of the following two:   

A. Why is conservatism important in accounting? 

OR 


B. Why is objectivity important in accounting? 
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6 

PROBLEM 3 (15 minutes, 15 marks) 

The following is a comparative balance sheet for a company. 

12/31/03 12/31/02 Difference 

Assets: 
Cash 40,500 13,000 27,500 
Accounts receivable 27,000 45,750 (18,750) 
Inventory 12,000 9,000 3,000 
Long-term Investments      0 3,000 (3,000) 
Buildings 15,000 29,750 (14,750) 
  Accumulated depreciation on buildings (2,000) (6,000) 4,000 
Equipment      40,000 20,000 20,000 
  Accumulated depreciation on equipment  (2,000) (4,500) 2,500 
Patent 5,000 6,250 (1,250) 
Total Assets 102,750 76,000 

Liabilities and Owners’ Equity: 
Account payable 9,000 3,000 6,000 
Taxes payable 9,000 10,000 (1,000) 
Long-term debt     15,000 18,000 (3,000) 
Common stock 50,000 40,000 10,000 
Retained earnings 20,750 6,000 14,750 
Total Liabilities and Equity 102,750 76,000 

For 2003, the company recorded net income of $25,000. 
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A. What effect does the accounts receivable account have on cash flow from 
operating activities for 2003? (5 Marks) 

B. What effect does the taxes payable account have on cash flow from operating 
activities for 2003? (5 Marks) 

C. Are cash flows from investing activities positive or negative for 2003 and 
why? Assume no loss or gain has in the disposal of PP&E. (5 Marks) (This is 
difficult. Attempt to get the direction, positive or negative, by inspecting 
changes in the appropriate accounts from the balance sheet.) 

D. [Extra Credit] What is the effect of dividends on cash flows from investing 
activities? (5 Marks) 
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PROBLEM 4 (20 Minutes, 25 Marks) Financial Statement Analysis 

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, and
Statement of Cash Flows (pp. 53-55) of:
 
      Intel Corporation. "2002 Annual Report." 2003. 
 
Available at: http://www.intc.com (accessed July 31, 2004). 
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Using the information for Intel, answer the following: 

A. ROA can be defined as: ROA = Profit margin x Asset Turnover 

Calculate Intel’s ROA, profit margin, and asset turnover for 2001 and 2002. 
For simplicity, ignore interest income and interest expense in your 
calculations.   

B. What is your inference from the trends in these ratios?   
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C. For the years 2001 and 2002, calculate one ratio each year that is indicative 
of Intel’s short-term liquidity.  Briefly comment on Intel’s liquidity.   

D. For 2002 calculate the Days Inventory held by Intel.  	What is the cost and/or 
risk of holding high inventory for Intel? 
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PROBLEM 5 (10 minutes, 15 marks) 

The press release below was issued by Applied Industrial Technologies (NYSE: AIT) on 

January 17, 2002. 


"Applied Industrial Technologies today reported that financial results for its second 

quarter ended December 31, 2001 were consistent with the company’s guidance provided 

in a December 11, 2001 news release. The company has taken a charge of $12,100,000, 

or $0.63 per share, for impaired goodwill associated with its fluid power businesses.  This 

non-cash charge is being recognized on the company's statement of consolidated income

as the effect of a change in accounting principle related to Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets.  This impairment within the fluid power businesses is primarily attributed to the

downturn in the industrial economy in the years following the company’s acquisitions. 

Regarding the goodwill impairment charge, Applied Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer David L. Pugh commented,  'The charge was dictated by early adoption of a new 

accounting principle (SFAS 142). This new accounting standard requires goodwill and 

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives to no longer be amortized but instead be 

tested for impairment.' "      

    
  - Press release courtesy of Applied Industrial Technologies. Used with permission.

A.	 What accounts would be affected as you record the goodwill impairment of 
$12,100,000? Use the balance sheet equation below or make a journal entry.   
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B. What is the impact of the impairment loss on the operating cash flow for 
the firm?   

C. Why do you think managers emphasize that this is a “non-cash” charge?   
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Name ___________________________ 

Section ___________________________ 

ACCOUNTING 15.511 
SUMMER 2004 
MIDTERM EXAM 

Exam Guidelines:  

- You have 80 minutes to complete the exam.  Please use your time efficiently 
and read the questions carefully. 

- This exam contains 12 pages, including the cover page. Please make sure your 
copy is not missing any pages.  

- If necessary, make assumptions to solve problems, and state your assumption 
clearly. 

Good luck! 
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PROBLEM 1 (30 Minutes, 30 Marks) 

CW Company engages in the following activities during Year 1: 

1. January 1, Year 1: CW issues 10,000 shares of stock at $20 par-value.  

2. January 20, Year 1: 	CW purchases a building for $50,000 and purchases equipment 
for $20,000. It pays half the price in cash and the other half through a bank loan.   

3. March 1, Year 1: 	CW acquires finished goods for $20,000.  CW pays cash for half of 
the merchandise, and the remainder is purchased on account. 

4. March 30, Year 1: CW pays $25,000 in employee salaries. 

5. July 1, Year 1: 	CW decides to rent additional building space and pays for six months 
rent, at $2000 a month, in advance. 

6. August 22, Year 1: 	 CW sells all of the finished goods for $400,000, of which 
$200,000 is on account and the remainder is received in cash.  CW expects to collect 
95% of its credit sales. 

On the sales made on August 22, CW also offers certain services on the sold 
merchandise for the first three months.  CW estimates these services to amount to 
$5000. 

7. October 30, Year 1: CW collects $100,000 in cash from its accounts receivable, and 
uses this money to pay down its accounts payable. 

8. November 23, Year1: CW Company performs services on sold merchandise at cost of 
$5000 to date. 

9. December 30, Year 1: Depreciation for the year is $2000 on the building and $2400 on 
the equipment.   

10. December 30, Year 1:  CW pays $250,000 in dividends. 
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A. Make entries to record the above transactions. 	 You may use the Balance 
Sheet Equation or a journal entry. 

1.	 Dr. Cash 200,000 

Cr. Common Stock 200,000 


2.	 Dr. PPE 70,000 
Cr. Cash 	 35,000 


Loan Payable 35,000 


3.	 Dr. Inventory 20,000 
Cr. Cash 	 10,000 


Account Payable 10,000 


4.	 Dr. Salary Expense  25,000 

Cr. Cash 25,000 


5.	 Dr. Prepaid Rent 12,000 

Cr. Cash 12,000 


6.	 Dr. Cash 200,000 

       Account Receivable 200,000 


Cr. Sales Revenue 400,000 


Dr. Cost of Goods Sold 20,000 

Cr. Inventory 20,000 


Dr. Bad Debt Expense 10,000 

       Cr. Allowance for doubtful accounts 10,000


Dr. Warranty Expense  5,000 

       Cr. Warranty Liability  5,000 


7.	 Dr. Cash 100,000 

      Cr. Accounts Receivable  100,000 


Dr. Accounts Payable 10,000 

Cr. Cash 10,000 


8.	 Dr. Warranty Liability  5,000 

Cr. Cash 5,000 


9.	 Dr. Depreciation Expense 4,400 

Cr. Accumulated Depreciation 4,400 


10. Dr. Dividends 	250,000 

Cr. Cash 250,000 
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B. Make necessary adjusting entries on December 31, Year 1.   

The only adjusting entry is 

Dr. Rent Expense 12,000 
Cr. Prepaid Rent 12,000 
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PROBLEM 2 (5 minutes, 5 marks) 

Answer ONE of the following two:   

A. Why is conservatism important in accounting? 

OR 


B. Why is objectivity important in accounting? 

A. Why is conservatism important in accounting? 

- Accounting requires certain estimates and judgments.  Conservatism improves the 
process of estimation by allowing accountants to assign values to certain transactions. 

- Conservatism makes accounting numbers credible. 
- Lenders bear the downside risk without upside potential; therefore, lenders would like 

to get the bad news more timely.  Conservatism allows for this. 
- Conservatism improves investor believability of public companies’ financial 

statements.  

B. Why is objectivity important in accounting? 

- Information produced by managers alone is not believable.  Outside investors demand 
independently audited financial information. 

- Allows investors to better trust the information contained in the financial statements. 
- Allows for consistency in financial information among the different firms.  Analysts 

and investors can then compare various companies on the basis of their financial 
statements and forward estimates. 

- Important for the auditors that review the financial statements.  
- Establishes the internal control system through which transactions are properly 

authorized, reported, and recorded. 
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PROBLEM 3 (15 minutes, 15 marks) 

The following is a comparative balance sheet for a company. 

12/31/03 12/31/02 Difference 

Assets: 
Cash 40,500 13,000 27,500 
Accounts receivable 27,000 45,750 (18,750) 
Inventory 12,000 9,000 3,000 
Long-term Investments      0 3,000 (3,000) 
Buildings 15,000 29,750 (14,750) 
  Accumulated depreciation on buildings (2,000) (6,000) 4,000 
Equipment      40,000 20,000 20,000 
  Accumulated depreciation on equipment  (2,000) (4,500) 2,500 
Patent 5,000 6,250 (1,250) 
Total Assets 102,750 76,000 

Liabilities and Owners’ Equity: 
Account payable 9,000 3,000 6,000 
Taxes payable 9,000 10,000 (1,000) 
Long-term debt     15,000 18,000 (3,000) 
Common stock 50,000 40,000 10,000 
Retained earnings 20,750 6,000 14,750 
Total Liabilities and Equity 102,750 76,000 

For 2003, the company recorded net income of $25,000. 
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A. What effect does the accounts receivable account have on cash flow from 
operating activities for 2003? (5 Marks) 

+18,750 

B. What effect does the taxes payable account have on cash flow from operating 
activities for 2003? (5 Marks) 

-1,000 

C. Are cash flows from investing activities positive or negative for 2003 and 
why? Assume no loss or gain has in the disposal of PP&E. (5 Marks) (This is 
difficult. Attempt to get the direction, positive or negative, by inspecting 
changes in the appropriate accounts from the balance sheet.) 

Negative. 

(A complete numeric answer would require detailed information on depreciation). 


Net Buildings: 13,000 = 23,750 + CAPEX – Depreciation – BV (Disposals) 

Net Equipment: 38,000 = 15,500 + CAPEX – Depreciation – BV (Disposals) 

Patent: 5000 = 6250 + Purchase – Amortization – Sale 


Hence, to calculate CFI, one needs information on depreciation.  Given that there are no 

gains made or losses incurred, a sum of CAPEX, BV (Disposals), Purchases, and Sales 

would yield CFI. 

We can use the given information to determine that the CFI is negative.  CAPEX on 

Equipment is at least 22,500.  The net change in the Buildings and Patent account is at

most 10,750 and 1250, respectively. Thus, the maximum proceeds of 12,000 are less 

than the lowest expenditure of 22,500. 


D. [Extra Credit] What is the effect of dividends on cash flows from investing 
activities? (5 Marks) 

None. 
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PROBLEM 4 (20 Minutes, 25 Marks) Financial Statement Analysis 

For this financial data, please see the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, and
Statement of Cash Flows (pp. 53-55) of:
 
      Intel Corporation. "2002 Annual Report." 2003. 
 
Available at: http://www.intc.com (accessed July 31, 2004). 
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Using the information for Intel, answer the following: 

A. ROA can be defined as: ROA = Profit margin x Asset Turnover 

Calculate Intel’s ROA, profit margin, and asset turnover for 2001 and 2002. 
For simplicity, ignore interest income and interest expense in your 
calculations.   

ROA = NI/(Average Total Assets) 

2001: 1291/.5(44395 + 47945) = 2.8% 
2002: 3117/.5(44395+44224) = 7% 

Profit Margin = NI/Sales 

2001: 1291/26539 = 4.9% 
2002: 3117/26764 = 11.6% 

Asset Turnover = Sales/(Average Total Assets) 

2001: 26539/.5(44395 + 47945) = 57% 
2002: 26764/.5(44395 + 44224) = 60.4% 

B. What is your inference from the trends in these ratios?   

Intel improved both its profit margin and its asset turnover.  As a result, Intel was able to 
generate a higher return on its total assets. 
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C. For the years 2001 and 2002, calculate one ratio each year that is indicative 
of Intel’s short-term liquidity.  Briefly comment on Intel’s liquidity.   

Current Ratio = (Current Assets)/(Current Liabilities) 

2001: 17633/6570 = 2.68 
2002: 18925/6595 = 2.87 

Quick Ratio = (Cash + Marketable Sec. + Accounts Receivable)/(Current Liabilities) 

2001: (7970 + 2607)/6570 = 1.61 
2002: (7404 + 2574)/6595 = 1.51 

Intel has very high liquidity. 

D. For 2002 calculate the Days Inventory held by Intel.  	What is the cost and/or 
risk of holding high inventory for Intel? 

Inventory Turnover = COGS/(Average Inventory) = 8650/.5(2276 + 2253) = 3.82 

Days Inventory Held = 365/(Inventory Turnover) = 365/3.82 = 95.6 days 

The cost or risk associated with holding high inventory is that prices drop quickly, 
particularly in Intel’s industry.  There is also concern for the obsolescence of finished 
goods. 
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PROBLEM 5 (10 minutes, 15 marks) 

The press release below was issued by Applied Industrial Technologies (NYSE: AIT) on 

January 17, 2002. 


"Applied Industrial Technologies today reported that financial results for its second 

quarter ended December 31, 2001 were consistent with the company’s guidance provided 

in a December 11, 2001 news release. The company has taken a charge of $12,100,000, 

or $0.63 per share, for impaired goodwill associated with its fluid power businesses.  This 

non-cash charge is being recognized on the company's statement of consolidated income

as the effect of a change in accounting principle related to Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets.  This impairment within the fluid power businesses is primarily attributed to the

downturn in the industrial economy in the years following the company’s acquisitions. 

Regarding the goodwill impairment charge, Applied Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer David L. Pugh commented,  'The charge was dictated by early adoption of a new 

accounting principle (SFAS 142). This new accounting standard requires goodwill and 

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives to no longer be amortized but instead be 

tested for impairment.' "           - Press release courtesy of Applied Industrial Technologies 


A.	 What accounts would be affected as you record the goodwill impairment of 
$12,100,000? Use the balance sheet equation below or make a journal entry.   

Assets = Liabilities  + Contributed Capital  + Retained Earnings  

(12,100,000) 	 (12,100,000) 

or Dr. Goodwill impairment charge  12,100,000 
 Cr. Goodwill 12,100,000 
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B. What is the impact of the impairment loss on the operating cash flow for 
the firm?   

Zero. 

Net Income was lower by 12,100,000; but this non-cash charge was added back to Net 
Income to get CFO. Therefore, there is no cash impact from the impairment loss. 

C. Why do you think managers emphasize that this is a “non-cash” charge?   

Managers like to emphasize the non-cash aspect of this type of accounting entry to create 
the impression that the charge does not really affect the firm’s valuation.  However, the 
fact that goodwill is impaired does affect the firm’s valuation.  We should not forget that 
at some point in the past the company paid cash to acquire firms.  The fact that the 
company paid more than the fair value of the assets of the target implies that the company 
thought the acquisition would create additional cash flows in the future. The impairment 
today indicates that the hopes of creating additional cash flows have disappeared. So 
clearly, that affects how we view the future cash flow of the firm. 
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